State Board of Education & Early Development
Tentative Agenda
Audio-conference

July 14, 2017
State Board Room
Department of Education & Early Development
801 West 10t Street
Juneau, AK 99801

Mission Statement: An excellent education for every student every day.

9:00 AM
Call to Order and ROl Call ... James Fields, Chair
Pledge Of AllEQIANCE ........oiiiiice e s James Fields, Chair
AdOPLIoN OF AGENUA.......ooiiiiiiiei e James Fields, Chair
Disclosures of potential conflicts of Interest............ccccovvvvrvniiiieieicce, James Fields, Chair
9:10 AM

Public Comment

Public comment is open on agenda and non-agenda items. Comment at this oral hearing
is limited to three minutes per person and five minutes per group. The public comment
period is an opportunity for the board to hear the public’s concerns. The board will not
engage in discussions with members of the public during the comment period.

Public comment can be made for this meeting, during this time only, by calling 1-
844-586-9085 if you are outside of Juneau. For participation from Juneau, call 586-
9085. This meeting will be streamed through the Legislative Information Office

over http://www.alaskalegislature.tv/ beginning at 9:00 AM on July 14, 2017, (audio
only). Click on the meeting name to listen to the proceedings. When public comment is
over, the meeting will continue to be broadcast at the above web site.

In the event there are more than two hours of public comment, the board may move
to amend the agenda to extend the oral hearing to accommodate those present
before 8:55 AM who did not have an opportunity to comment. The board also
reserves the right to adjourn at a later time.

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 1


http://www.alaskalegislature.tv/

Work Session

9:40 AM

1. Every Student Succeeds Act, 2" Draft..........cc.cocvvvevennn. Dr. Michael Johnson, Commissioner
........................................................................ Margaret MacKinnon, Federal Programs Coordinator
10:40 AM

2. Regulations t0 adopt .......cccveveieeiree e Dr. Michael Johnson, Commissioner

2A. Cut Scores, PEAKS & Dynamic Learning Maps
...................................... Margaret MacKinnon, Federal Programs Coordinator

11:00 AM BREAK

Business Meeting
11:15 AM
3. Regulations t0 adOpt .......cccoveeeiieiieierie e Dr. Michael Johnson, Commissioner

3A. Cut Scores, PEAKS & Dynamic Learning Maps
...................................... Margaret MacKinnon, Federal Programs Coordinator

11:20 AM  Board Comments

11:35 AM  Adjourn

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 2



To: Members of the State Board of July 14, 2017
Education and Early Development

From: Dr. Michael Johnson Commissioner Agenda Item: 1

¢ ISSUE

The board will receive an update of the department’s progress in developing Alaska’s
state plan and gathering stakeholder input and feedback required by the federal Every
Student Succeeds Act.

¢+ BACKGROUND
e In December 2015, the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA), the bill that
reauthorized the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA), was passed by
Congress and signed by the President.

e ESSA requires the department to develop a State Plan addressing standards and
assessment; state, district, and school accountability; school support and improvement;
educator quality; preparing, training, and recruiting high-quality educators; and
instruction for English language learners.

e In developing the State Plan, the department must engage in meaningful consultation
with the Governor, members of the state legislature and state board of education, local
educational agencies, representatives of Indian tribes located in the state, teachers,
principals, other school leaders, charter school leaders, specialized instructional support
personnel, paraprofessionals, administrators, other staff, and parents.

e The department’s ESSA development team has completed Alaska’s Second Draft
Application for the Every Student Succeeds Act and has shared the plan with
stakeholders.

e The second draft of the state application and an executive summary will be presented at
the meeting. These documents will also be available
at https://education.alaska.gov/akessa/#c3gtabs-stateplan.

e Margaret MacKinnon, Federal Programs Coordinator, will be present to brief the board.

¢ OPTIONS
This is an information item. No action is necessary.

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 3


https://education.alaska.gov/akessa/#c3gtabs-stateplan

Alaska Department of Education

and Early Development EDUCATION

& EARLY DEVELOPMENT

Alaska’s 2nd Draft Application
for the
Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA)

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 4




Note to Alaska Stakeholders:

This is the second draft of Alaska’s ESSA State Application. While this draft has been shaped by
thousands of stakeholder comments and formal stakeholder feedback, DEED recognizes that there may
still be additional revisions needed prior to submitting this application to the U.S. Department of
Education. Suggestions from the State Board of Education and the Governor’s office, as well as
additional feedback from you, will continue to inform this work and lead to additional revisions.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 5



July 13, 2017
Dear Alaskans,

The Department of Education and Early Development (DEED) has completed the second draft of
Alaska’s State Application for the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA), the new federal
education law. All states must submit State applications to the U.S. Department of Education
(US ED) to demonstrate compliance with the new law and to access the federal funding provided
to implement it. ESSA provides states with greater flexibility than the No Child Left Behind Act
it replaces.

To ensure Alaska’s application takes full advantage of this additional flexibility, and is fully
aligned to Alaska’s unique educational needs and priorities, DEED is seeking your input to
strengthen its application. The draft to follow has been created by DEED using guidance
provided by the US ED and shaped by over 4,000 stakeholder comments provided by nearly
1,000 stakeholders at the more than 40 meetings and conferences conducted across the state over
the last year. Additionally, DEED considered the feedback provided by stakeholders on the first
draft of Alaska’s State Application for ESSA.

Alaska’s ESSA application will support Alaska’s public education mission to provide an
excellent education for every student every day. DEED is committed to supporting districts in
providing a public education system that ensures all students can succeed in their education and
work, shape worthwhile and satisfying lives for themselves, exemplify the best values of society,
and be effective in improving the character and quality of the world about them.

Given Alaska’s diversity, achieving its educational vision and mission requires support for
locally relevant, informed, and innovative solutions. To ensure that Alaska’s State Application is
aligned with what Alaskans value, DEED invites parents, tribal leaders and members, education
practitioners, community partners, and state leaders to review this draft and provide feedback to
inform the final drafts.

When reviewing the second draft, it is important to understand what it is and what it is not.

What the ESSA Draft Application IS.... What the ESSA Draft Application
IS NOT....
1. Truly a second draft. 1. Complete or final.

2. Alaska’s draft application for federal funds 2. Restricting the State’s or districts’

authorized under ESSA. allowable use of federal funds beyond
what is stated in law.

3. Reflective of the broader system within 3. Inclusive of all the detail needed for
which Alaska will function to support schools to implement ESSA (this will
ESSA. be provided in guidance and technical

assistance).

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development ii
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 6




What the ESSA Draft Application IS.... What the ESSA Draft Application

IS NOT....
4. Based on feedback collected across our 4. Inclusive of all feedback. DEED is
ESSA Advisory Committee, focus groups, continuing to compile, summarize, and
and other stakeholder feedback groups. consider feedback within ESSA

requirements.

5. Developed by working closely with 5. Limiting additional stakeholder

stakeholders.

feedback or engagement.

6. Open for additional feedback, which will 6. All that is important to Alaska’s public
be reflected in the final draft of the state education system.

application when released in August 2017.

7. The second draft of the application that 7. Limiting the State’s ability to revise
will be submitted to US ED on September the application in future submissions to
18, 2017 (US ED then has a 120-day US ED for approval.

review period to approve state

applications).

Draft Timeline

DEED has indicated to US ED that Alaska will submit its ESSA State Application by the
September 18, 2017, submission deadline.

Time Period

Application Development Activities

May 21 — July 22, 2017

Review and consideration of stakeholder feedback from initial
draft by DEED staff.
Second draft released to stakeholders for feedback via two
methods:
e Webinar; and
e DEED’s ESSA website with executive summary and
survey.

July 31, 2017

DEED revises the second draft application based on
stakeholder feedback.

August 1, 2017

Draft of State Application presented to the State Board of
Education and Governor for review.

September 18, 2017

State Application submitted to US ED.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development

7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 7




DEED will be gathering stakeholder feedback on this second draft application through July 31,
2017. Please take time to provide your thoughts by going to Alaska’s ESSA online feedback
form. The State Board of Education will also gather public comment concerning the State
Application at its regularly scheduled meetings. Your feedback is valuable, and it will be
considered in the final ESSA State Application that will be submitted to US ED.

Thank you for your continued input, support, and collaboration on the development of our ESSA
State Application. Together, Alaskans can fulfill our mission — an excellent education for every
student every day.

Sincerely,

Dr. Michael Johnson, Commissioner
Alaska Department of Education and Early Development

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development iv
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 8


https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/ESSA2NDDRAFT
https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/ESSA2NDDRAFT

Cover Page

Contact Information and Signatures

SEA Contact (Name and Position):

Margaret MacKinnon
Federal Programs Coordinator

Telephone:

(907) 465-2970

Mailing Address:

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development
801 West 10™ Street, Suite 200

P.0. Box 110500

Juneau, AK 99811-0500

Email Address:

margaret.mackinnon@alaska.gov

By signing this document, | assure that:

and correct.

To the best of my knowledge and belief, all information and data included in this application are true

The SEA will submit a comprehensive set of assurances at a date and time established by the
Secretary, including the assurances in ESEA section 8304.

Consistent with ESEA section 8302(b)(3), the SEA will meet the requirements of ESEA sections 1117
and 8501 regarding the participation of private school children and teachers.

Authorized SEA Representative (Printed Name)

Dr. Michael Johnson
Commissioner
Alaska Department of Education and Early Development

Telephone:

(907) 465-2800

Signature of Authorized SEA Representative

Date:

Governor (Printed Name)

The Honorable Bill Walker
Governor of Alaska

Date SEA provided application to the
Governor under ESEA section 8540:

Signature of Governor

Date:

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 9




Programs Included in the Consolidated State Application

Instructions: Indicate below by checking the appropriate box(es) which programs the SEA included in its
consolidated State plan. If an SEA elected not to include one or more of the programs below in its
consolidated State plan, but is eligible and wishes to receive funds under the program(s), it must submit
individual program plans for those programs that meet all statutory and regulatory requirements with its
consolidated State plan in a single submission.

[ Check this box if the SEA has included all of the following programs in its consolidated State
application.

or

If all programs are not included, check each program listed below that the SEA includes in its
consolidated State plan:

Title I, Part A: Improving Basic Programs Operated by Local Educational Agencies
Title I, Part C: Education of Migratory Children

Title I, Part D: Prevention and Intervention Programs for Children and Youth Who Are Neglected,
Delinquent, or At-Risk

Title Il, Part A: Supporting Effective Instruction
Title lll, Part A: English Language Acquisition, Language Enhancement, and Academic Achievement

Title IV, Part A: Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grants

Title IV, Part B: 21st Century Community Learning Centers

L1 Title V, Part B, Subpart 2: Rural and Low-Income School Program

Title VII, Subpart B of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act: Education for Homeless Children
and Youth Program (McKinney-Vento Act)

Instructions

Each SEA must provide descriptions and other information that address each requirement listed below
for the programs included in its consolidated State plan. Consistent with ESEA section 8302, the Secretary
has determined that the following requirements are absolutely necessary for consideration of a
consolidated State plan. An SEA may add descriptions or other information, but may not omit any of the
required descriptions or information for each included program.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 2
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 10



Table of Contents

Introduction

A. Title I, Part A: Improving Basic Programs Operated by Local Educational

Agencies

. Title I, Part C: Education of Migratory Children

. Title I, Part D: Prevention and Intervention Programs for Children and Youth
Who Are Neglected, Delinquent, or At-Risk

. Title ll, Part A: Supporting Effective Instruction

Title Ill, Part A: English Language Acquisition, Language Enhancement, and
Academic Achievement

Title IV, Part A: Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grants

. Title IV, Part B: 21st Century Community Learning Centers

. Title V, Part B, Subpart 2: Rural and Low-Income School Program

Title VII, Subpart B of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act: Education
for Homeless Children and Youth Program (McKinney-Vento Act)

Appendix A

50

54

56

64

68

70

73

74

78
82

Appendix B

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 11



Introduction

The Alaska Department of Education and Early Development (DEED) is pleased to provide the second
draft of its Consolidated Plan for the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). ESSA was signed into federal
law on December 10, 2015, replacing the No Child Left Behind Act (NCLB). ESSA requires states to
develop plans that address standards, assessments, school and district accountability, and support for
struggling schools, giving states more flexibility in the process of how to hold schools accountable and
how to provide support to schools in the greatest need of support.

This document represents over a year's worth of stakeholder engagement and department preparation
in creating a plan to implement ESSA requirements within the unique context of Alaskan education. The
elements of Alaska’s ESSA State Plan are designed to support the broader work of improving Alaska’s
education system.

The State Board of Education and Early Development (State Board) has adopted a statewide mission and
vision for public education. The State Board has also adopted five strategic priorities for the Alaska
education system.

e Mission: An excellent education for every student every day.

e Vision: All students can succeed in their education and work; shape worthwhile and satisfying
lives for themselves; exemplify the best values of society; and, be effective in improving the
character and quality of the world around them.

e Fjve Strategic Priorities:
o Amplify student learning
o Inspire community and tribal ownership of educational excellence
o Modernize the education system
o Ensure excellent educators
o Promote safety and well-being

As the draft of this plan is written, work is also being conducted through the committees of Alaska’s
Education Challenge. The Education Challenge is seeking ways to transform education in Alaska under
the five strategic priorities adopted by the State Board.

Alaska’s ESSA plan is a description of the system to help schools and districts measure their performance
on key indicators, identify solutions for improvement, and target resources and support for all students
to receive an excellent education and be prepared for college or career after high school. Moving
forward, it is anticipated that Alaska’s ESSA plan will be modified to support the recommendation of the
Education Challenge.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 4
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 12



A. Title I, Part A: Improving Basic Programs Operated by Local
Educational Agencies

1. Challenging State Academic Standards and Assessments (ESEA section 1111(b)(1) and (2) and 34
CFR §$§ 200.1-200.8.):

Alaska adopted more rigorous standards in English Language Arts (ELA) and Mathematics in 2012 to
ensure our students would be prepared for college and/or careers after high school. Stakeholder
feedback indicated Alaska should keep the new ELA and Mathematics Standards, but consider
reviewing them in the future to determine if any revisions are needed.

These standards were first assessed in 2015 with the Alaska Measures of Progress Assessment. Due to
technical issues and a construction accident that severed the internet connection in 2016, that
assessment was cancelled. Alaska administered the Performance Evaluation for Alaska’s Schools
(PEAKS) assessment in 2017 to all students in grades 3-10. Alaska will continue to administer the
PEAKS assessment to students in grades 3-8 and at least one grade in high school in 2018 and beyond.
DEED will work with stakeholders to determine whether to make a transition from testing in one high
school grade with an end-of-grade test, to testing students with an end-of-course test in the grade in
which they take the particular course.

Alaska’s Science Standards and Grade Level Expectations were last revised in 2006. Students in grades
4, 8, and 10 take the Alaska Science Assessment. The Science Standards will be considered for revision
during the 2017-2018 school year. A plan will be created to transition to a new assessment to
measure the new Science Standards after new standards are adopted by the Alaska State Board of
Education.

2. Eighth Grade Math Exception (ESEA section 1111(b)(2)(C) and 34 CFR § 200.5(b)(4)):
i Does the State administer an end-of-course mathematics assessment to meet the
requirements under section 1111(b)(2)(B)(v)(l)(bb) of the ESEA?

Yes
CINo

Alaska has administered assessments to students in grades 9 and 10 in high school through
2016-2017. The State has proposed a regulation change that will allow the State flexibility to
administer an assessment in only one grade in high school, and to move to end-of-course
assessments in high school. As of this draft, the State is considering piloting a high school
mathematics Algebra | end-of-course assessment in 2018. Based on that possibility, the State
is responding with a “yes” answer to this question.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 13



ii. If a State responds “yes” to question 2(i), does the State wish to exempt an eighth-grade
student who takes the high school mathematics course associated with the end-of-course
assessment from the mathematics assessment typically administered in eighth grade
under section 1111(b)(2)(B)(v)(l)(aa) of the ESEA and ensure that:

a. The student instead takes the end-of-course mathematics assessment the State
administers to high school students under section 1111(b)(2)(B)(v)(I)(bb) of the
ESEA;

b. The student’s performance on the high school assessment is used in the year in
which the student takes the assessment for purposes of measuring academic
achievement under section 1111(c)(4)(B)(i) of the ESEA and participation in
assessments under section 1111(c)(4)(E) of the ESEA;

c. Inhigh school:

1. The student takes a State-administered end-of-course assessment or
nationally recognized high school academic assessment as defined in 34
CFR § 200.3(d) in mathematics that is more advanced than the
assessment the State administers under section 1111(b)(2)(B)(v)(l)(bb) of
the ESEA;

2. The State provides for appropriate accommodations consistent with 34
CFR § 200.6(b) and (f); and

3. The student’s performance on the more advanced mathematics
assessment is used for purposes of measuring academic achievement
under section 1111(c)(4)(B)(i) of the ESEA and participation in
assessments under section 1111(c)(4)(E) of the ESEA.

XYes
CINo

Alaska is answering this question with a “yes” in anticipation of offering end-of-course
assessments in mathematics in the future, and including the flexibility to offer the end-of-
course high school mathematics test to eighth graders and exempting those students from
the 8" grade assessment.

iii. If a State responds “yes” to question 2(ii), consistent with 34 CFR § 200.5(b)(4), describe,
with regard to this exception, its strategies to provide all students in the State the
opportunity to be prepared for and to take advanced mathematics coursework in middle
school.

When Alaska offers high school end-of-course (ECO) assessments in mathematics, and allows 8t
graders to be exempted from the 8" grade math assessment to take the high school ECO assessment,
the State will include strategies to provide all students in the state with the opportunity to be
prepared for and to take advanced mathematics coursework in middle school. Possible strategies will
include:
e Providing guidance and technical assistance to implement the middle school mathematics
standards that support preparation for Algebra |
e Providing or partnering with organizations in the state to provide cohesive professional
development for middle school teachers to be prepared to teach the mathematics standards
and possibly Algebra |

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 14



e Offering an endorsement to middle school teachers for Algebra |

e Ensuring options for students in small schools to have access to advanced math courses
through virtual/distance delivered courses

e Including an incentive in the accountability system to schools offering Algebra | in middle
school

3. Native Language Assessments (ESEA section 1111(b)(2)(F) and 34 CFR § 200.6(f)(2)(ii) ) and
(f)(4):

i.  Provide its definition for “languages other than English that are present to a significant
extent in the participating student population,” and identify the specific languages that
meet that definition.

Yup’ik languages represent over 40 percent of the state’s languages other than English, and this
includes all dialects. Spanish represents about ten percent of the languages, followed by Inupiaqg and
Filipino at over nine percent each. Alaska will work with stakeholders to determine the final definition
of languages other than English that are present to a significant extent in the participating student
population in grades 3-10.

ii. Identify any existing assessments in languages other than English, and specify for which
grades and content areas those assessments are available.

There are currently no existing State content assessments in languages other than English.

iii. Indicate the languages identified in question 3(i) for which yearly student academic
assessments are not available and are needed.

This will be determined with stakeholders.

iv.  Describe how it will make every effort to develop assessments, at a minimum, in
languages other than English that are present to a significant extent in the participating
student population including by providing

a. The State’s plan and timeline for developing such assessments, including a
description of how it met the requirements of 34 CFR § 200.6(f)(4);

b. A description of the process the State used to gather meaningful input on the
need for assessments in languages other than English, collect and respond to
public comment, and consult with educators; parents and families of English
learners; students, as appropriate; and other stakeholders; and

c. Asapplicable, an explanation of the reasons the State has not been able to
complete the development of such assessments despite making every effort.

a. Alaska will work with stakeholders to determine in which languages content
assessments are needed and are feasible, and will work with the testing
contractor to develop assessments in those languages. The timeline has not yet
been identified, but it will reflect the need to work with indigenous language
experts.

b. The process for consultation will begin as early as fall 2017.

c. Because of the timeline for administering the State’s newest tests, stakeholder
discussions and plans for potentially testing in languages other than English have
not yet been developed.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 15



4. Statewide Accountability System and School Support and Improvement Activities (ESEA section
1111(c) and (d)):

Subgroups (ESEA section 1111(c)(2)):
a. List each major racial and ethnic group the State includes as a subgroup of students,
consistent with ESEA section 1111(c)(2)(B).

The nine subgroups identified by the State for inclusion in the accountability system are:

students with disabilities
economically disadvantaged students
English learners

Caucasian

Alaska Native/American Indian
Asian/Pacific Islander
African-American

Hispanic

Two or more races

These subgroups are the subgroups required under ESSA.

b. If applicable, describe any additional subgroups of students other than the statutorily
required subgroups (i.e., economically disadvantaged students, students from major
racial and ethnic groups, children with disabilities, and English learners) used in the
Statewide accountability system.

None

c. Does the State intend to include in the English learner subgroup the results of
students previously identified as English learners on the State assessments required
under ESEA section 1111(b)(2)(B)(v)(l) for purposes of State accountability (ESEA
section 1111(b)(3)(B))? Note that a student’s results may be included in the English
learner subgroup for not more than four years after the student ceases to be
identified as an English learner.

XYes

LINo

Alaska has included students formerly identified as English learners for two years in the
accountability system under NCLB. The State will take advantage of the option to include
formerly identified English learners in the accountability system for four years. Stakeholders
have indicated over the years that it is important to recognize the progress made by English
learners and to include their assessment results for a period of time after they have become
proficient in English.

d. If applicable, choose one of the following options for recently arrived English learners
in the State:

Applying the exception under ESEA section 1111(b)(3)(A)(i); or
L1 Applying the exception under ESEA section 1111(b)(3)(A)(ii); or

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 16




L] Applying the exception under ESEA section 1111(b)(3)(A)(i) or under ESEA section
1111(b)(3)(A)(ii). If this option is selected, describe how the State will choose which
exception applies to a recently arrived English learner.

Note that the exception chosen is consistent with current practice in Alaska. Exception
1111(b)(3)(A)(i) allows recently arrived English learners to be exempt from one administration
of the ELA assessment. EL students must take the math assessment and the ELP assessment.
The math assessment score is not included in the accountability system for the first year. In
the following years, the EL student takes the ELA and math assessments and those scores are
included in the accountability system.

The exception allowed under 1111(b)(3)(A)(ii) would require recently arrived ELs to take both
the ELA and math assessments in the first year, but those scores would not be included in the
accountability system. In the following years, student growth on the ELA and math
assessments would be included in the accountability system.

ii. Minimum N-Size (ESEA section 1111(c)(3)(A)):

a. Provide the minimum number of students that the State determines are necessary to
be included to carry out the requirements of any provisions under Title |, Part A of
the ESEA that require disaggregation of information by each subgroup of students for
accountability purposes.

Alaska proposes ten as the minimum number of students (minimum n-size) necessary to be
included for accountability purposes. As has been the case in Alaska, the minimum n-size
represents a balance between recognizing the small size of many subgroups and schools,
prioritizing and ensuring student privacy, and incorporating actionable data into the
accountability system.

b. Describe how the minimum number of students is statistically sound.

In proposing a minimum n-size of ten, Alaska considered the number of students in the all students
group as well as those in subgroups that would be included in the accountability system for academic
achievement. Approximately 87 percent of Alaska’s schools would be included in the academic
achievement indicator with a minimum n-size of ten. Alaska had n-sizes of five and six under its
previous accountability system. An n-size of ten would capture most subgroups in most schools while
minimizing the extreme effect of the performance of one student on a smaller n-size.

c. Describe how the minimum number of students was determined by the State,
including how the State collaborated with teachers, principals, other school
leaders, parents, and other stakeholders when determining such minimum
number.

Specific stakeholder input was gathered from the Alaska Principals’ Pre-Conference activity and from
the State’s ESSA Advisory Committee. General feedback was received from the public on the first
draft of the state plan. Many responses were in the range of an n-size of five or somewhere between
five and ten, with rationale being that Alaska should hold the most schools accountable. Others were
on the higher end of ten or 20, with the rationale that there can be greater variability in smaller
subgroups. Stakeholders indicated a preference for aggregating data over three years for schools with
less than ten students in order to include more schools and subgroups. Alaska will continue to
collaborate with stakeholders including teachers, principals, other school leaders, and parents in
determining the minimum number.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 17



d. Describe how the State ensures that the minimum number is sufficient to not
reveal any personally identifiable information.

(Consistent with ESEA section1111(i), information collected or disseminated under ESEA section 1111
shall be collected and disseminated in a manner that protects the privacy of individuals consistent
with section 444 of the General Education Provisions Act (20 U.S.C. 1232g, commonly known as the
“Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974”). When selecting a minimum n-size for reporting,
States should consult the Institute for Education Sciences report “Best Practices for Determining
Subgroup Size in Accountability Systems While Protecting Personally Identifiable Student
Information” to identify appropriate statistical disclosure limitation strategies for protecting student
privacy.
DEED employs suppression rules in public reporting to protect student privacy. These rules are based
on an n-size of five whether there are two or four reporting categories. The suppression rules are
most often applied to assessment results to prevent the linkage of a particular performance level to a
specific student. These rules also serve as a starting point when there is a need to suppress non-
assessment datasets, including special education child counts and discipline statistics. DEED consults
with the US ED’s Privacy Technical Assistance Center when unique suppression-related challenges
emerge.

DEED uses a multi-step approach to data suppression that considers both the count of students and
the distribution of students among the reporting categories. DEED's two-way suppression rules
specifically for assessment reporting are:

1. If the count of tested students is less than five, no results are reported.
If the count of tested students is five or higher, and one of the reporting categories (Proficient
or Not Proficient) has zero, one, or two student(s), percentage ranges are reported instead of
the actual percentages. Otherwise, the actual percentages are reported.

3. If a percentage range needs to be reported, the range depends on the count of tested

students:
Number of Tested Students Percentage Range Published
5-7 >=60% or <=40%
8-9 >=75% or <=25%
10-19 >=80% or <=20%
20-39 >=90% or <=10%
40 or more >=95% or <=5%

e. If the State’s minimum number of students for purposes of reporting is lower
than the minimum number of students for accountability purposes, provide the
State’s minimum number of students for purposes of reporting.

Alaska’s minimum number of students for purposes of reporting has been five. As noted in Section
A.4.ii.d., Alaska’s suppression rules are based on an n-size of five whether there are two or four
reporting categories.
iii. Establishment of Long-Term Goals (ESEA section 1111(c)(4)(A)):
a. Academic Achievement. (ESEA section 1111(c)(4)(A)(i)(!)(aa))

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 10
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 18



1. Describe the long-term goals for improved academic achievement, as
measured by proficiency on the annual statewide reading/language arts and
mathematics assessments, for all students and for each subgroup of students,
including: (i) baseline data; (ii) the timeline for meeting the long-term goals,
for which the term must be the same multi-year length of time for all
students and for each subgroup of students in the State; and (iii) how the
long-term goals are ambitious.

Alaska proposes a long-term goal of reducing by half the percentage of students not reaching the
proficient or advanced achievement levels on the State Performance Evaluation for Alaska’s Schools
(PEAKS) assessment in English language arts (ELA) and in mathematics over ten years (by the school
year 2026-27). This fits with the mission of the State Board of Education of “an excellent education for
every student every day.”

The baseline data for the long-term academic goal will be the results from the 2016-17 PEAKS
assessment. Alaska administered its new assessment, PEAKS, in grades 3-10 for the first time in spring
2017. US ED granted Alaska a waiver from the administration of the State assessment in 2016 due to
technical issues. As such, the first and only measure of student performance on the new State
standards in ELA and mathematics was in spring 2015. While the PEAKS 2017 data is not yet available,
the data from the 2015 assessment is being used as a placeholder for the new baseline.

The long-term goal is ambitious. The percentage of students meeting the standards on the first
assessment of Alaska’s new standards in 2015 for all students was 35.4 percent for ELA and 31.9
percent for math. While Alaska expects to see improvement in student performance in 2017 after two
more years of instruction based on the new standards, there is still much room for improvement.
Measures of interim progress will be uniform annual increases in the percentage of students reaching
the proficient or advanced level on PEAKS. The annual increase needed for the all students group will
be 3.3 percent in ELA and 3.4 percent in math. Some subgroups at the state level may see annual
increases in measures of interim progress that could be as high as 4.8%.

One rationale for choosing the long-term goal of reducing by half the percentage of students not
proficient over ten years is to provide a realistic goal and measures of interim progress for all students
and all subgroups based on their starting points. At the end of ten years, the long-term goal for ELA
for all students will be 67.4 percent proficient or advanced and in math it will be 65.6 percent
proficient or advanced. This long-term goal correlates in part on predictions in the percentage of jobs
both nationally and in Alaska that will need postsecondary education. According to the publication
Recovery: Job Growth and Education Requirements through 2020 by Georgetown University, the
percentage of jobs both nationally and in Alaska that will need any type of postsecondary education is
66 percent. The PEAKS assessment measures student achievement on the state’s college-and-career
ready standards. While it is important for all students in Alaska to be prepared for their future upon
graduation, the long-term goal of 66-67 percent of students reaching proficiency recognizes that not
all jobs will require postsecondary education upon graduation by 2026. The State will re-set the long-
term goal in the future.

2. Provide the measurements of interim progress toward meeting the long-

term goals for academic achievement in Appendix A.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 11
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 19



See Appendix A

The statewide measures of interim progress for all students and all subgroups are outlined in
Appendix A. In addition to the state level, Alaska will set measures of interim progress toward the
long-term goals for each school and district for all students and for each subgroup of students based
on the baseline data for the school and district. This practice recognizes stakeholder input that it is
important to recognize the difference between schools and to give schools credit and incentives for
increasing the achievement of all students.

3. Describe how the long-term goals and measurements of interim progress

improvement necessary to make significant progress in closing statewide
proficiency gaps.

toward the long-term goals for academic achievement take into account the

Alaska proposes to set uniform annual measures of interim progress toward the long-term goals for
academic achievement at the state level for all students and for each subgroup of students. Because
the lower-performing subgroups are further from the long-term goal, the annual increases in the
measures of interim progress will be greater. These groups will have to make significant progress
annually to close the statewide proficiency gaps. The following charts show that the lowest-
performing subgroups in the state (Alaska Native/American Indian, Economically Disadvantaged,
Students with Disabilities, and English Learners) all have to make more progress annually than the all
students group in order to make significant progress in closing statewide proficiency gaps. Some
subgroups at the state level may see annual increases in measures of interim progress that could be
as high as 4.8 percent.

ELA: Reduce by 1/2 percentage not proficient by 2027

80.0

70.0

60.0

50.0

40.0

30.0

20.0

0.0 4.4
2016- 2017-2018 2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025 2025-2026 2026-2027
2017

—&—All students AK Native/Al Ec Disadvantaged SWDs —@—ELs

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 20

12



Math: Reduce by 1/2 percentage not proficient by 2027
70
65.6
60
54.0
50
40
30
20
10
0
-t b(
& e S N N S N v &V N S
oy v v v v v v v v v v
. N N o> i Qv 4 o> % Vi
» > > > > > > W > W
—&— All students AK Native/Al Ec Disadvantaged SWDs =—@=—Els

b. Graduation Rate. (ESEA section 1111(c)(4)(A)(i)(I)(bb))
1. Describe the long-term goals for the four-year adjusted cohort graduation
rate for all students and for each subgroup of students, including: (i)
baseline data; (ii) the timeline for meeting the long-term goals, for which
the term must be the same multi-year length of time for all students and
for each subgroup of students in the State; and (iii) how the long-term
goals are ambitious.

Alaska proposes a long-term goal of 90% for the four-year adjusted cohort graduation rate for all
students and for each subgroup of students by the school year 2026-27. This will be the same goal for
all students and for each subgroup of students. This fits with the vision of the State Board of
Education that “all students can succeed in their education and work.” While it is important for every
student to leave high school prepared for work or postsecondary education, the long-term goal of 90
percent recognizes the reality that some students will take longer than four years to earn a diploma,
and others may earn alternate credentials such as a GED. The baseline data will be the graduation
rate from the 2016-2017 school year. While Alaska has had a goal of 90 percent for the four-year
adjusted cohort graduation rate previously, the long-term goal is ambitious because the statewide
graduation rate for all students was 76.1 percent in 2016. The four-year graduation rate in 2016 was
53.9 percent for students with disabilities and was 54.7 percent for English learners.

2. |If applicable, describe the long-term goals for each extended-year
adjusted cohort graduation rate, including (i) baseline data; (ii) the
timeline for meeting the long-term goals, for which the term must be the
same multi-year length of time for all students and for each subgroup of

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 13
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 21



students in the State; (iii) how the long-term goals are ambitious; and (iv)
how the long-term goals are more rigorous than the long-term goal set
for the four-year adjusted cohort graduation rate.

Alaska proposes a long-term goal of 93 percent for a five-year adjusted cohort graduation rate for all
students and for each subgroup of students by the school year 2026-27. This will be the same goal for
all students and for each subgroup of students. This fits with the vision of the State Board of
Education that “all students can succeed in their education and work.” While it is important for every
student to leave high school prepared for work or postsecondary education, the long-term goal of 93
percent recognizes the reality that some students will take longer than five years to earn a diploma,
and others may earn alternate credentials such as a GED. The baseline data will be the graduation
rate from the 2016-17 school year. Alaska has used a five-year adjusted cohort rate in its previous
accountability system. Under that calculation, a school would have required a 93 percent five-year
graduation rate to earn the same number of points as a four-year graduation rate of 90 percent. The
93 percent long-term goal is ambitious because the statewide five-year adjusted cohort graduation
rate for all students was 80.8 percent in 2016. The five-year graduation rate in 2016 was 65.8 percent
for students with disabilities and was 64.6 percent for English learners.
3. Provide the measurements of interim progress toward the long-term
goals for the four-year adjusted cohort graduation rate and any
extended-year adjusted cohort graduation rate in Appendix A.

See Appendix A

The statewide measures of interim progress for all students and all subgroups are outlined in
Appendix A. In addition to the state level, Alaska will set measures of interim progress toward the
long-term goals for each school and district for all students and for each subgroup of students based
on the baseline data for the school and district. This practice recognizes stakeholder input that it is
important to recognize the difference between schools and to give schools credit and incentives for
increasing the graduation rate of all students.

4. Describe how the long-term goals and measurements of interim progress
for the four-year adjusted cohort graduation rate and any extended-year
adjusted cohort graduation rate take into account the improvement
necessary to make significant progress in closing statewide graduation
rate gaps.

Alaska proposes to set annual uniform measures of interim progress toward the long-term goals for
the four-year adjusted cohort and the five-year adjusted cohort graduation rates at the state level for
all students and for each subgroup of students. In addition to the state level, Alaska will set measures
of interim progress toward the long-term goals for each school and district for all students and for
each subgroup of students based on the baseline data for the school and district. This practice
recognizes stakeholder input that it is important to recognize the difference between schools and to
give schools credit and incentives for increasing the achievement of all students. Because the lower-
performing subgroups are further from the long-term goal, the annual increases in the measures of
interim progress will be greater. These groups will have to make significant progress annually to close
the statewide proficiency gaps. The following charts show that the lowest-performing subgroups in
the state (Alaska Native/American Indian, Economically Disadvantaged, Students with Disabilities, and
English Learners) all have to make more progress annually than the all students group in order to

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 14
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 22



all students in the four-year cohort graduation rate is 1.4 percent, the annual increases needed for
subgroups will be as high as 3.6 percent.

4-YR Cohort Graduation Rate Goal of 90% by 2027

100.0

90.0 90.0
80.0
70.0

60.0

50.0
40.0
30.0
20.0
10.0

0.0

2016- 2017-20182018-20192019-20202020-20212021-20222022-20232023-20242024-20252025-20262026-2027
2017

=—@—All students —@=—AK Nat/Al —@=—SWDs ELLs -=—@=—Ec Dis

make significant progress in closing statewide proficiency gaps. While the annual increase needed for

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 23

15




5-YR Cohort Graduation Rate Goal of 93% by 2027

100.0

93.0
90.0

80.0

70.0

67.5

60.0 64.6
50.0
40.0
30.0
20.0
10.0
0.0

2016-  2017-2018 2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025 2025-2026 2026-2027
2017

== A|l students AK Nat/Al SWDs Els === EcC Dis

c. English Language Proficiency. (ESEA section 1111(c)(4)(A)(ii))

1. Describe the long-term goals for English learners for increases in the
percentage of such students making progress in achieving English
language proficiency, as measured by the statewide English language
proficiency assessment including: (i) baseline data; (ii) the State-
determined timeline for such students to achieve English language
proficiency; and (iii) how the long-term goals are ambitious.

Alaska proposes a long-term goal of 80 percent for English learners making progress in achieving
English language proficiency as measured by the statewide English language proficiency assessment.
This will continue the pattern of improvement in the percentage of ELs making progress that was set
by the State in 2012 for the districts that received Title Ill funding. Those targets were set with an
annual increase of 3.3 percent and if the pattern continues through the 2026-27 school year, the goal
would be about 80 percent. This is an ambitious goal as the percentage of ELs making progress in
2015 was 47.6 percent. The baseline data will be determined from the 2016-17 ACCESS for ELLs 2.0
State ELP assessment.

2. Provide the measurements of interim progress toward the long-term goal
for increases in the percentage of English learners making progress in
achieving English language proficiency in Appendix A.

See Appendix A

iv. Indicators (ESEA section 1111(c)(4)(B))
a. Academic Achievement Indicator. Describe the Academic Achievement indicator,
including a description of how the indicator (i) is based on the long-term goals; (ii)

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 16
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 24



is measured by proficiency on the annual Statewide reading/language arts and
mathematics assessments; (iii) annually measures academic achievement for all
students and separately for each subgroup of students; and (iv) at the State’s
discretion, for each public high school in the State, includes a measure of student
growth, as measured by the annual Statewide reading/language arts and
mathematics assessments.

Alaska proposes to measure the percentage of students scoring at the proficient or advanced
achievement levels on the statewide assessment in ELA and mathematics for the all students group
and for all subgroups present in a school. Alaska will calculate the percentage of students scoring at
the proficient or advanced level by comparing the number of students scoring at proficient or
advanced to the greater of the number of students tested, or 95 percent of the full academic year
students were eligible to test. Schools will earn points for the all students groups based on identified
performance levels with ELA and mathematics being weighted equally. While the long-term goal for
all students by 2026-2027 is expected to be about 66 percent, the performance levels include an
incentive for schools to reach beyond the ten-year goal in academic achievement. Schools will also
earn additional points if subgroups are meeting their measures of interim progress.

This indicator will be used for all grade spans. The following tables reflect the points earned for each
performance level on ELA and mathematics.

Grades K-8 Grades 9-12
Level Academic Points in Points in Points in Points in
Achievement ELA Math ELA Math

Level 5 80% or higher 14 14 16 16
Level 4 60—-79.9% 12 12 14 14
Level 3 40-59.9% 9 9 11 11
Level 2 20 -39.9% 6 6 7

Level 1 5-19.9% 3 3 3

Level O Less than 5% 0 0 0 0

Additional points for subgroup Point in ELA Points in Math

meet/exceed measures of interim
progress or long-term goal

All students group 1 1

Subgroups (choose one): Upto3 Upto3
o All subgroups -3
e All major subgroups — 2
e Atleast1subgroup—1
e No subgroups—0

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 17
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 25



e Max 4 points — up to 3 for subgroups and 1 for all students group
o if no subgroups, 4 points for all students group
o ifonly one subgroup is present, school earns 3 points if that subgroup meets or
exceeds measures of interim progress or long-term goal
e To be included, subgroup must meet minimum n size
e  Major subgroups are Alaska Native/American Indian, Economically Disadvantaged,
Students with Disabilities, and English Learners; others are other racial/ethnic subgroups
b. Indicator for Public Elementary and Secondary Schools that are Not High Schools
(Other Academic Indicator). Describe the Other Academic indicator, including
how it annually measures the performance for all students and separately for
each subgroup of students. If the Other Academic indicator is not a measure of
student growth, the description must include a demonstration that the indicator
is a valid and reliable statewide academic indicator that allows for meaningful
differentiation in school performance.

Alaska will use academic growth on the statewide assessment for ELA and mathematics (PEAKS)
for students in grades 4-8 as the Other Academic indicator. An academic growth score will be
calculated for the all students group and for each subgroup in the school that reflects the
aggregated growth made by individual students. Growth will be measured for individual students
in the school according to a value table. The table assigns values to the achievement level change
in a student’s assessment score from the previous year to the current year. While the assessment
scores are reported on four achievement levels of Far Below Proficient, Below Proficient,
Proficient, or Advanced, the growth value table measures changes in student performance within
each achievement level. In the growth value table, the “below proficient” and “far below
proficient” achievement levels on the PEAKS assessment are subdivided into “below proficient
plus (BP+),” “below proficient minus (BP-),” “far below proficient plus (FBP+),” and “far below
proficient minus (FBP—)” in order to measure student growth within the non-proficient
achievement levels. The “proficient” and “advanced” achievement levels are subdivided into
“proficient (P)” and “proficient plus (P+)” and “advanced (A)” and “advanced plus (A+)” in order to
recognize and incentivize continued growth in students that are scoring above the minimum
proficient level.

The growth value table has been used in Alaska for a number of years. It was used to determine
schools with growth in student performance in order for school staff to receive a financial reward
under the Alaska State Performance Incentive Program. Most recently, the growth value table has
been used for the growth and proficiency index and was included in the Alaska School Performance
Index (ASPI) as the school progress indicator.

The growth value table displays the points in each cell in a matrix that reflects whether the student is
maintaining at the same achievement level, is progressing, or is declining from the previous year’s
assessment. A student scoring at the proficient level for two years in a row receives 100 points as that
student made the expected growth. Students who move from a below proficient level to proficient or
increase from proficient to proficient plus or advanced to advanced plus will earn more than 100
points depending on the amount of progress from their previous proficiency level. For example, a
student who scored at the proficient level in the previous year and scored at the proficient plus level
in the current year would receive 125 points, and a student who moved from the far below proficient
plus level to the proficient level would receive 160 points. Students who decline in proficiency from
one year to the next receive less than 100 points and may possibly receive zero points, as indicated by

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 18
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 26



a drop from advanced proficient to below proficient minus. A student who drops in proficiency level
from one year to the next may still have increased in his or her learning, but did not make the
expected growth of one year of progress, thus the points earned are less than 100 but not necessarily
zero. A student who declined from below proficient plus to far below proficient plus would receive
only 30 points. The following table shows the values represented for each category of student
achievement on the assessments from the previous year to the current year. The values shaded in
green (above the solid border) represent growth in the achievement level from the previous year. The
values shaded in yellow (in the center diagonal between the solid border and the dashed border)
represent students who maintained the same achievement level from the previous year. The values
shaded in red (below the dashed border) represent students who declined in achievement level from
the previous year.

Growth & Proficiency Index Value Number Table

Previous Current Year Level
Year
Level FBP- | FBP+ BP- BP+ P P+ A A+
FBP- I 60 90 120 150 180 | 205 230 | 255
1
FBP+ | 40 170 100 130 160 | 185 210 | 235
1
BP- 20 | 50 180 110 140 | 165 190 | 215
1
BP+ 0 30 _B(_)“: 90 120 | 145 170 | 195
1
P 0 10 40 “7_0“: 100 | 125 150 | 175
1
P+ 0 0 20 50 _;36“: 105 130 | 155
1
A 0 0 0 30 60 _égn: 110 | 135
1
A+ 0 0 0 10 40 65 | 90 1 115

To determine the school or subgroup growth score, all of the individual student point values are
totaled and then divided by the total number of students for whom growth can be calculated (those
who received valid scores during both the previous year and the current year test administrations and
who were enrolled for the full academic year). The previous-year assessment scores are included for
all students who took the test, regardless of the school in which the student was enrolled for testing.
(Please note that students retained in the same grade are excluded from the growth measure
because the system is designed to measure growth from one year’s test to the next year’s test.
Retained students’ assessment scores are included in the achievement measure, so schools have an
incentive to serve these students.)

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 19
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 27



The following table identifies the performance levels for the growth indicator and points associated
with each level.

Level Academic Growth Points for | Points for
ELA Math

Level 5 > H# 20 20
Level 4 Hit - Ht 17 17
Level 3 Hit - Ht 13 13
Level 2 HH - HH 10 10
Level 1 HH - HH 5

Level O < H# 0 0

Values to be determined

c. Graduation Rate. Describe the Graduation Rate indicator, including a description

of

(i) how the indicator is based on the long-term goals;

(ii) how the indicator annually measures graduation rate for all students and
separately for each subgroup of students;

(iii) how the indicator is based on the four-year adjusted cohort graduation
rate;

(iv) if the State, at its discretion, also includes one or more extended-year
adjusted cohort graduation rates, how the four-year adjusted cohort
graduation rate is combined with that rate or rates within the indicator;
and

(v) if applicable, how the State includes in its four-year adjusted cohort

graduation rate and any extended-year adjusted cohort graduation rates
students with the most significant cognitive disabilities assessed using an
alternate assessment aligned to alternate academic achievement
standards under ESEA section 1111(b)(2)(D) and awarded a State-defined
alternate diploma under ESEA section 8101(23) and (25).

Alaska proposes to measure both the four-year adjusted cohort graduation rate and the five-year
adjusted cohort graduation rate for the all students group and for all subgroups present in a school.
Schools will earn points based on the indicated performance levels of the four-year graduation rate,
with the greatest number of points being earned for a four-year graduation rate that meets or
exceeds the long-term goal of 90 percent. Additional points will be earned based on performance
levels for a five-year rate, with the greatest points earned for a rate that meets or exceeds the long-
term goal of 93 percent. At this time, Alaska does not propose creating or awarding a State-defined
alternate diploma to students with the most significant cognitive disabilities.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 20
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 28



Level Graduation Rate Points | Graduation Rate | Points
4-year cohort 5-year cohort
Level 5 90% or higher 15 93% or higher 10
Level 4 75-89.9% 12 78 -9.9% 8
Level 3 60 —-74.9% 9 63-77.9% 6
Level 2 45 —-59.9% 6 48 —62.99% 4
Level 1 25-44.9% 3 28 -47.9% 2
Level O < 25% 0 < 28% 0

Additional points for subgroup 4-year graduation|5-year graduation rate

meet/exceed measures of interim rate
progress or long-term goal
All students group 2 2

Subgroups (choose one):
e All subgroups -3
e All major subgroups — 2
e Atleast 1subgroup—1
e No subgroups -0

Upto3 Upto3

e Max 5 points — up to 4 for subgroups and 1 for all students group
o if no subgroups, 5 points for all students group
o ifonly one subgroup is present, school earns 4 points if that subgroup meets or
exceeds measures of interim progress or long-term goal
e To be included, subgroup must meet minimum n size
e Major subgroups are Alaska Native/American Indian, Economically Disadvantaged,
Students with Disabilities, and English Learners; others are other racial/ethnic subgroups

d. Progress in Achieving English Language Proficiency (ELP) Indicator. Describe the
Progress in Achieving ELP indicator, including the State’s definition of ELP, as
measured by the State ELP assessment.

Alaska proposes to measure the percentage of English learners in each school that meets the
definition of making progress in achieving proficiency in English, as measured by the state ELP
assessment, ACCESS for ELLs 2.0. Schools that include an English learner subgroup will earn points
based on five levels of attainment of English learner progress, with the greatest number of points
earned for meeting or exceeding the long-term goal of 80 percent of ELs making progress. The
following chart shows how the points for the Progress in English Language Proficiency Indicator will
be calculated.

Level English Learner (EL) Progress in learning English Grades K-8 |Grades 9-12
Points Points
Level 5 | Meets/exceeds the long term goal for EL progress 14 15
Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 21

7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 29



Level 4 | Meets/exceeds the measure of interim progress. 12 12

Level 3 | Does not meet measure of interim, but showed 8 8
improvement of at least two percent from prior year.

Level 2 | Does not meet measure of interim progress but has 4 4
maintained within two percent from previous year.

Level 1 | Does not meet measure of interim progress and has 1 1
declined more than two percent but less than four
percent from previous year.

Level 0 | Does not meet measure of interim progress and has 0 0
declined more than four percent from previous year

Alaska defines an English learner (EL) as one who meets the criteria to be considered as an English
learner under ESEA as amended by ESSA section 8101(20) and Alaska regulation 4 AAC 34.090(2) and
who has been determined through a screener assessment to not be proficient in English. Alaska
administers the WIDA ACCESS for ELLs 2.0 assessment as a measure of English language proficiency
(ELP) for students identified as English Learners (EL). The ACCESS for ELLs 2.0 measures proficiency in
four domains: listening, reading, speaking, and writing. There are six levels, which include

(1) Entering, (2) Emerging, (3) Developing, (4) Expanding, (5) Bridging, and (6) Reaching.

Students have been considered proficient in the English language when they achieve a composite
(overall) score of 5.0 (Bridging) or higher on the summative ELP assessment and at least a 4.0 in each
of the four domains, but the exit procedures and criteria will be reconsidered after analysis of the
2017 ACCESS for ELLs 2.0 data has been received. Students remain identified as English learners until
the end of the school year in which they reach the proficiency level on the ACCESS for ELLs 2.0
assessment and may be exited from EL status.

Alaska proposes to use seven years as the state-determined timeline for all English learners to attain
proficiency (see Hakuta, Goto Butler, & Witt, 2000; Robinson- Cimpian, Thompson, & Umansky, 2016;
Umansky & Reardon, 2014). Alaska’s current definition of attaining English language proficiency and
exiting EL status is based on scoring a 5.0 Composite Proficiency Level (CPL) on the WIDA ACCESS for
ELLs assessment, along with a minimum of 4.0 on each domain (listening, speaking, reading, and
writing). Alaska will be revisiting the exit criteria after reviewing the results from the 2016-2017
ACCESS for ELLs 2.0 assessment.

ACCESS for ELLs 2.0 Composite Proficiency Level (CPL) scores are reported as decimals to the tenth
place, from 1.0 to 6.0. Alaska’s current definition of making progress in learning English is a gain of at
least 0.4 on the CPL from the previous year. Based on the current exit criteria of 5.0 CPL, a student
who was initially identified as an English learner and scored at the lowest level on the ELP assessment,
a 1.0, would not reach proficiency in seven years if making only 0.4 gain in the CPL annually. Alaska
will likely propose one of two options for a definition of making progress in learning English, after
reviewing the data from the most recent ELP assessment:
e Option 1: After determining the proposed exit criteria, determine the change in annual
change in CPL needed to reach proficiency if an EL scored a 1.0 at initial identification as an
EL, and use that amount to apply to all ELs. An EL would be considered to have made progress
Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 22
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 30



in attaining English if the student earned at least a 0.4 increase in the CPL from the previous
year and/or met the criteria for attaining proficiency.

e Option 2: After determining the proposed exit criteria, determine the change in CPL needed
for each individual student based on the score at the initial level of identification and the
expected number of years needed to reach proficiency. A student who scored at a higher
level of English proficiency on initial identification would be expected to attain proficiency in
less than seven years. The chart below indicates in broad terms how a student would be
expected to move from the initial level of identification to a level of proficiency over a
reasonable number of years. Scores at each level range from 1.0to 1.9, 2.0 to 2.9, etc.
Research shows that students identified at lower levels of proficiency will make gains more
quickly than those identified at higher levels of proficiency. An EL student will be considered
to have made progress if the student earned at least the expected increase in the CPL from
the previous year and/or met the criteria for attaining proficiency.

Initial ELP Years ldentified as an English Learner

Level Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Year 7
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 3 Level 4 Level 4 Proficient
Level 2 Level 3 Level 3 Level 4 Level 4 Proficient

Level 3 Level 3 Level 4 Level 4 Proficient

Level 4 Level 4 Level 4 Proficient

Level 5 or 6

e. School Quality or Student Success Indicator(s). Describe each School Quality or
Student Success Indicator, including, for each such indicator:

(i) how it allows for meaningful differentiation in school performance;

(ii) that it is valid, reliable, comparable, and statewide (for the grade span(s)
to which it applies); and

(iii) of how each such indicator annually measures performance for all

students and separately for each subgroup of students. For any School
Quality or Student Success indicator that does not apply to all grade
spans, the description must include the grade spans to which it does
apply.

Alaska is proposing three School Quality or Student Success (SQSS) indicators for students enrolled in
grades K-8 and three for students enrolled in grades 9-12. The total possible points for all three SQSS
will be ten. If stakeholder feedback suggests fewer SQSS indicators, the points for the remaining
indicators will be adjusted to equal a maximum of ten. The SQSS indicators will be measured for all
students and all subgroups. The points will be applied to the all students group.

The indicators proposed are all designed to encourage schools to improve both the quality of
instruction and the quality of the school climate and student engagement. Some will require a new
data collection. Alaska will continue to work with stakeholders to determine additional possibilities
for SQSS indicators that can measure qualities of a successful school such as student access to a well-
rounded curriculum and college and career pathways. For any future possible SQSS indicators, DEED
will pilot the indicators by collecting data for at least two years and then incorporating the indicator
into the accountability system. The proposed SQSS indicators are listed below.

e Grades K-8

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 23
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 31



o Chronic absenteeism

Data is required to be reported beginning in 2016-2017

Research indicates that schools with lower rates of chronic absenteeism
correlate generally with higher academic achievement

Measure based on percentage of students absent for ten percent or more of
the enrolled school days (minimum of ten days)

Level Chronic Absenteeism Points

Level 4 <10%

Level 3 10% - 14.9%

Level 2 15% - 19.9%

Level 1 20% - 29.9%
Level 0 30% or higher

O R N W| &

o District-selected interim assessments administered to all students in grades 1-8

Requires a new data field for collection in Summer OASIS for 2017-18
Select from DEED approved list of interim assessments

Administer at least twice per year (fall and winter) to all enrolled students
Measure percentage of students who participated compared to students
enrolled on October 1, not results

Level Interim Assessments | Points
participation

Level 4 85% or higher 4

Level 3 70% - 84.9% 3

Level 2 50% - 69.9% 2

Level 1 30% - 49.9% 1

Level O Less than 30% 0

o Grade 3 Literacy

Data available from state assessment in ELA

Research shows that students who can read on grade level by 3™ grade are
much more likely to be successful and less likely to drop out of school
Measure percentage of students attaining proficient or advanced in grade 3
ELA

Level Grade 3 Literacy Points

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development

7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 32




Grades 9-12

O

o Chronic absenteeism

Freshman on-track credit accumulation

o APS scholarship eligibility

Level 2 80% or higher 2
Level 1 60% - 79.9% 1
Level 0 Less than 60% 0

Level Chronic Absenteeism Points
Level 4 <10% 4

Level 3 10% - 14.9% 3
Level 2 15% - 19.9% 2
Level 1 20% - 24.9% 1
Level 0 30% or higher 0

Requires a new data element for collection in Summer OASIS in 2017-18
Research shows that students who are on-track by the end of their freshman
year are much less likely to drop out of high school

Percentage of first-time 9™ graders who earn at least % of their required
credits by the end of their first year in high school (or at least six credits based
on state minimum of 21 and many districts with at least 24 credits required
for graduation)

Level % of Freshman on track for | Points
graduation

Level 4 85% or greater 4

Level 3 65 —84.9% 3

Level 2 40 -64.9% 2

Level 1 20-39.9% 1

Level O Less than 20% 0

Data already reported to DEED in Summer OASIS

Encourages schools to offer access to college and career course options to
earn a scholarship

Measure percentage of graduating seniors that qualify for any level of the
Alaska Performance Scholarship

Level % of Graduates Eligible for APS | Points
Level 2 80% or higher 2
Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 25

7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 33



Level 1 60% - 79.9% 1
Level O Less than 60% 0

V. Annual Meaningful Differentiation (ESEA section 1111(c)(4)(C))
a. Describe the State’s system of annual meaningful differentiation of all public
schools in the State, consistent with the requirements of section 1111(c)(4)(C) of
the ESEA, including a description of

(i) how the system is based on all indicators in the State’s accountability
system,
(ii) for all students and for each subgroup of students. Note that each state

must comply with the requirements in 1111(c)(5) of the ESEA with
respect to accountability for charter schools.

Alaska proposes to use an index system based on 100 points for annual meaningful differentiation of
all public schools. A similar type of system was used in Alaska’s previous accountability system.

All accountability indicators will be included in the index. Students will be included in the applicable
accountability indicators (except graduation rate) if they have been enrolled continuously in a school
for a full academic year of October 1 through the first day of testing. Performance levels will be
identified for each indicator. Schools will earn points based on their performance level on each
indicator for the all students group. Schools will earn additional points on the academic achievement
and graduation rate indicators for subgroups that meet or exceed the measures of interim progress or
long-term goals.

Each school will receive an overall score from 0 to 100. Performance on all indicators will be reported
on a dashboard type of display, along with the school’s overall score.

Each school will receive a designation:
e Superior performance
o Overall score of 85 or higher,
o At least Level 4 on every academic indicator and all subgroups must meet measures
of interim progress, and
o At least 95 percent participation rate on assessments for all students and all
subgroups
e Satisfactory performance
o Overall score of 70 or higher,
o At least Level 3 on every academic indicator, and
o At least 95 percent participation rate on assessments for all students
e Needs improvement
o Overall score of less than 70, and
o Not identified as Targeted Support or Comprehensive Support,
= Or
o Anyoverall score, and
o Lessthan 95 percent participation rate for all students
e Targeted Support (as defined in Section vi)

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 26
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 34



e Comprehensive Support (as defined in Section vi)

Schools will receive the designations for 2018-2019 based on the 2017-2018 accountability system
data. In future years, schools will receive an additional designation as improving, maintaining, or
declining, based on the trend in the change of the accountability index score for the two previous
school years.

b. Describe the weighting of each indicator in the State’s system of annual
meaningful differentiation, including how the Academic Achievement, Other
Academic, Graduation Rate, and Progress in ELP indicators each receive
substantial weight individually and, in the aggregate, much greater weight than
the School Quality or Student Success indicator(s), in the aggregate.

Alaska proposes the following weights for the indicators in the accountability system for schools with
students in grades K-8 and schools with students in grades 9-12. For any school in which the subgroup
size is not met, the indicator will be included for that school. The remaining indicators will be prorated
so that the indicators carry the same relative weights as other schools.

Accountability Indicator Weights

Indicator Grades K-8 Grades 9-12
Achievement in ELA & Math 36 40
Growth in ELA & Math 40 -
English learner progress on ELP 14 15
Graduation rate - 35
SQSS indicator(s) 10 10

Total Points Possible 100 100

Schools with variant grade spans:

If a school includes grade levels only from K to 8, then the school receives an index score based only
on the points in grades K-8. If a school includes grade levels only from grades 9-12, then the school
receives an index score based only on the points from grades 9-12. Schools that have students in a
mixture of grades between K-8 and 9-12 will receive points and weightings on indicators based on the
percentage of students enrolled in the school as reported on the first day of testing for PEAKS in April
in each grade span. This would include schools with all K-12 grades as well as those with grade spans
that cross the grade spans, such as grades 6-12. The following chart shows an example of such a
school.

Example Calculation:

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 27
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 35



Grade Span Index points % of students in Calculation of
earned in grade span Total Points
grade span

K-8 68 70% 47.6

9-12 52 30% 15.6

Total for school 63.2

c. If the State uses a different methodology or methodologies for annual meaningful
differentiation than the one described in 4.v.a. above for schools for which an
accountability determination cannot be made (e.g., P-2 schools), describe the
different methodology or methodologies, indicating the type(s) of schools to
which it applies.

Alaska proposes the following methodologies for annual meaningful differentiation of schools for
which the determinations above are not applicable.

Schools with no tested grades (K-2): These schools will be measured on the academic achievement
indicator and the EL progress indicator by measuring the performance of the students in the third
grade of the school in which the K-2 school sends their graduates. There will not be a growth measure
for these schools.

Newly opened schools: In the first year of operation, a newly opened school will have data reported
on the applicable indicators of the accountability system, but will not receive an overall score or
designation. After the 2" year of operation, the school will receive an accountability index score.

Schools with less than the minimum n of ten in the all students group: For these schools, data will be
aggregated from up to the two immediately previous school years and the current school year in
order to measure the school’s performance on the indicators.

Alternative schools, including juvenile justice facilities: After the first year of implementation of the
new accountability system, Alaska will consider adjustments to reflect these schools. These schools
will not be considered for comprehensive support for 2018-2019.

Schools with special populations such as schools for deaf and blind students or those focused solely
on students with disabilities or English learners: After the first year of implementation of the new
accountability system, Alaska will consider adjustments to reflect these schools. These schools will not
be considered for comprehensive support for 2018-2019.

vi. Identification of Schools (ESEA section 1111(c)(4)(D))

a. Comprehensive Support and Improvement Schools. Describe the State’s
methodology for identifying not less than the lowest-performing five percent of
all schools receiving Title I, Part A funds in the State for comprehensive support
and improvement, including the year in which the State will first identify such
schools.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 28
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 36



Alaska will rank all Title | schools in order based on the overall index score. The State will first consider
those schools in the bottom five percent of the overall scores. If a school in the bottom five percent
has met the measures of interim progress for all subgroups in the school in the academic, graduation
rate, and English learner progress indicators, the school would not be selected for Comprehensive
Support and Improvement (CSl) and the State would consider the next lowest-ranked school. The State
will also include consideration of each school’s academic achievement, growth, English learner
progress, and graduation rates over the previous three school years, as well as the size and special
characteristics of a school. Schools will be designated for comprehensive support that will be the most
likely to benefit from a comprehensive program of support and improvement. The State will use data
from the 2017-2018 accountability system to identify schools for CSI for the 2018-2019 school year.

b. Comprehensive Support and Improvement Schools. Describe the State’s
methodology for identifying all public high schools in the State failing to graduate
one third or more of their students for comprehensive support and improvement,
including the year in which the State will first identify such schools.

Alaska will identify all public high schools in the state failing to graduate one-third or more of their
students for CSI. This designation will only be applied to schools with students in any of grades 9-11
and in grade 12. The State will consider all schools with a four-year adjusted cohort graduation rate to
identify schools for CSI. The State will use the option for very small schools under Sections 8101(23)
and (25) by proposing that a minimum number of ten students must be included in the cohort for the
graduation rate, below which the school would be exempt from differentiation and identification as a
comprehensive support and improvement school for graduation rate. The State will use data from
2017-18 to identify schools for CSI for the 2018-19 school year.

c. Comprehensive Support and Improvement Schools. Describe the methodology by
which the State identifies public schools in the State receiving Title I, Part A funds
that have received additional targeted support under ESEA section 1111(d)(2)(C)
(based on identification as a school in which any subgroup of students, on its
own, would lead to identification under ESEA section 1111(c)(4)(D)(i)(1) using the
State’s methodology under ESEA section 1111(c)(4)(D)) and that have not
satisfied the statewide exit criteria for such schools within a State-determined
number of years, including the year in which the State will first identify such
schools.

Title | schools previously identified for Additional Targeted Support and Improvement for a subgroup
that have not shown improvement and met the exit criteria will be identified as comprehensive
support schools. These schools would be reviewed in 2020-21 to see if the exit criteria had been met. If
not, they would be identified as CSI schools for the 2021-22 school year.

d. Frequency of Identification. Provide, for each type of school identified for
comprehensive support and improvement, the frequency with which the State
will, thereafter, identify such schools. Note that these schools must be identified
at least once every three years.

Alaska will identify schools for comprehensive support at least once every three years. DEED will
annually review school level data to determine if increasing the frequency of identification to every
two years would be appropriate for Alaska. The first year of identification will be 2018-19 based on
data from 2017-18. In future years, identification as a comprehensive support school will include all
factors in the methodology for the first identification as a comprehensive support school, and will also

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 29
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 37



consider whether the school has been improving for the previous three years in the accountability
score. A school that has improved at least one level in the academic achievement, graduation rate,
and English learner progress indicators, and at least five points per year in the overall score will not be
identified as a comprehensive support school at that time.

e. Targeted Support and Improvement. Describe the State’s methodology for
annually identifying any school with one or more “consistently underperforming”
subgroups of students, based on all indicators in the statewide system of annual
meaningful differentiation, including the definition used by the State to
determine consistent underperformance. (ESEA section 1111(c)(4)(C)(iii))

Alaska will identify a consistently underperforming subgroup as one which is consistently
underperforming on all indicators (at Level 1 or below) for two consecutive years and has not met any
of the measures of interim progress on academic achievement, graduation rate, or progress in learning
English nor has shown any improvement on any indicator in the accountability system for the previous
two consecutive years. Schools that have one or more subgroups that meet this criteria will be
identified annually for targeted support and improvement. The first year of identification for targeted
support and improvement will be 2019-20 based on the data from 2018-2019.

f. Additional Targeted Support. Describe the State’s methodology, for identifying
schools in which any subgroup of students, on its own, would lead to
identification under ESEA section 1111(c)(4)(D)(i)(l) using the State’s methodology
under ESEA section 1111(c)(4)(D), including the year in which the State will first
identify such schools and the frequency with which the State will, thereafter,
identify such schools. (ESEA section 1111(d)(2)(C)-(D))

Alaska will first identify all Title | schools that qualify for comprehensive support and improvement.
Alaska will determine the level of performance on each indicator of the highest-performing CSI school
(the school with the highest accountability index score). Alaska will then compare the performance of
subgroups in other schools to the level of performance on each indicator for the highest-performing
CSl school. Any schools with subgroups that have lower performance in all indicators than the
highest-performing CSI school will be identified for additional targeted support. The first year of
identification for additional targeted support will be 2018-19 based on 2017-18 data. Alaska will then
identify schools for additional targeted support at least every three years, on the same cycle as the
schools identified for comprehensive support. DEED will annually review school level data to
determine if increasing the frequency of identification to every two years would be appropriate for
Alaska.

g. Additional Statewide Categories of Schools. If the State chooses, at its discretion,
to include additional statewide categories of schools, describe those categories.

Each school will receive a designation based on the overall score on the accountability index and
additional criteria:
e Superior performance
o Overall score of 85 or higher,
o At least Level 4 on every academic indicator and all subgroups must meet measures
of interim progress, and
o At least 95 percent participation rate on assessments for all students and all
subgroups
e Satisfactory performance

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 30
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 38



o Overall score of 70 or higher,

o Atleast Level 3 on every academic indicator, and

o Atleast 95 percent participation rate on assessments for all students
e Needs improvement

o Overall score of less than 70, and

o Not identified as Targeted Support or Comprehensive Support,

= Or

o Any overall score, and

o Less than 95 percent participation rate for all students
e Targeted Support (as defined in Section vi)

e Comprehensive Support (as defined in Section vi)

vii. Annual Measurement of Achievement (ESEA section 1111(c)(4)(E)(iii)): Describe how the
State factors the requirement for 95 percent student participation in statewide
mathematics and reading/language arts assessments into the statewide accountability
system.

Alaska law specifies that parents have the right to exclude their students from participation in specific
instructional activities and statewide assessments. Schools may not coerce parents or their students
into participating in the assessments. Alaska recognizes the importance of statewide testing to inform
the public about the performance of schools, to provide information so that schools can improve, and
to ensure that all students are receiving an excellent education. In order for these purposes to be
met, it is important to test most or all of the students enrolled in a school. Alaska expects districts and
schools to communicate with teachers and parents about the importance of testing and to provide
every encouragement to students to participate and do their best on the assessments.

Alaska will calculate the percentage of students scoring at the proficient or advanced level by
comparing the number of students scoring at proficient or advanced to the greater of the number of
students tested, or 95 percent of the full academic year students that were eligible to test. This
calculation will be made for the all students group and all subgroups. Schools that do not meet the
participation rate will not be eligible to be designated as superior performance or satisfactory
performance. Schools that do not meet the participation rate for the all students group or any
subgroup must submit an improvement plan to the State. The plan must include documentation of
the communication and other efforts the school made to inform parents of the importance of
participating in the State assessments, while recognizing parents’ rights under State law regarding
their child’s participation in assessments. The plan must also document training that teachers have
received in the importance of the tests and how to communicate with parents and students regarding
the assessments. The plan must document efforts made to encourage participation by all students in
all subgroups, and that no students have been systematically excluded from testing. The plan must
include steps the school will take to increase the participation rate in future years. The plan must
include the strategies and samples of the materials that will be used by the district to educate parents
about the importance of assessments and their role in student learning.

viii. Continued Support for School and LEA Improvement (ESEA section 1111(d)(3)(A))

a. Exit Criteria for Comprehensive Support and Improvement Schools. Describe the
statewide exit criteria, established by the State, for schools identified for
comprehensive support and improvement, including the number of years not to
exceed four) over which schools are expected to meet such criteria.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 31
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 39



Alaska will review the performance of the schools identified for comprehensive support three years
after the initial identification. The following exit criteria is proposed for consideration:

e For schools identified for comprehensive support and improvement based on the lowest five
percent of Title | schools, the school must have performed at least one level higher in each
indicator than it performed upon initial identification. The school would meet the exit criteria
even if the school is in the lowest five percent of the Title | schools based on the data at the
end of three years.

e For high schools identified for comprehensive support and improvement based on a four-year
adjusted cohort graduation rate of less than 67 percent, the school must have improved the
graduation rate to greater than 67 percent.

b. Exit Criteria for Schools Receiving Additional Targeted Support. Describe the
statewide exit criteria, established by the State, for schools receiving additional
targeted support under ESEA section 1111(d)(2)(C), including the number of years
over which schools are expected to meet such criteria.

Alaska will review the performance of the schools identified for additional targeted support three
years after the initial identification. The following exit criteria is proposed for consideration: The
performance of the subgroup for which the school was identified must have improved at least one
level from the level of performance at which the school was initially identified for each indicator in
the accountability system. DEED will continue to monitor schools who have met the exit criteria to
ensure that schools continue to meet interim targets for student subgroups.

c. More Rigorous Interventions. Describe the more rigorous interventions required for
schools identified for comprehensive support and improvement that fail to meet the
State’s exit criteria within a State-determined number of years consistent with
section 1111(d)(3)(A)(i)(I) of the ESEA.

In addition to the existing system of differentiated support and oversight of struggling schools, DEED
will facilitate collaboration and engagement among school staff, districts, community stakeholders,
DEED staff, and the Commissioner of Education. Schools are held accountable to a rigorous
improvement process, supported by district and State resources and support, with reporting of
results to stakeholders.

Mid-course interventions and supports will be implemented for those schools at risk of not exiting
comprehensive support and intervention status. The State and district will assess progress and
support school level engagement in continuous improvement throughout the school year.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 32
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 40



regulation:

Evaluate Impact

Continuous Improvement Planning Cycle

ASSESS NEEDS

-Analysis of student
performance data

-Needs assessment by school
team

-Indicators of effective
practice

-Formative assessments and
progress monitoring

-Analysis of intervention

effectiveness and impact PLAN & ACT

-District and state jointly -Identify and implement SMART
ensure plan implementation

goals

-Routine progress checks of
improvement goals

-District and state level
engagement and support

Upon failure to exit comprehensive support and intervention status after four years, DEED will initiate
differentiated interventions based on need leading to increased levels of State oversight. These
interventions may involve any of the following actions in alignment with existing State statute and

e Convening a strategic planning and support team that could include the Commissioner of
Education or designee, DEED program staff, district staff, school staff, parents, tribal
representatives, and other stakeholders (community members, parents, and regional school
boards). This team will be given authority to recommend and direct the following types of
interventions based upon need and readiness of struggling schools, as appropriate and as
resources allow:

External and/or internal independent review of student achievement data, curriculum
effectiveness, instructional practices, school improvement priorities, behavioral
supports, and community engagement efforts. Virtual audit of resource allocation at
the district and/or school level.

On-site review of school improvement practices and/or mandatory off-site school
improvement work sessions/interviews.

Periodic distance or onsite stakeholder and DEED “check-ins” to assess and support
school improvement efforts.

New comprehensive strategic plans written with DEED input/oversight.

Assignment of School Improvement Coach to district or school.

More focused training and/or technical assistance.

District and State level direction of 1003(a) school improvement funds toward required
cohesive professional development and leadership development.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development

7/13/17 Draft 2

33

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 41




e Replacement of teachers and principals.
e State governance of schools and/or district.
Current State statutes and regulations that support these actions are AS 14.07.020.16, AS
14.07.030.14-15, and 4 AAC 06.864(b).
d. Resource Allocation Review. Describe how the State will periodically review
resource allocation to support school improvement in each LEA in the State serving a
significant number or percentage of schools identified for comprehensive or targeted
support and improvement.

DEED will allocate 1003(a) funds based on a formula or competitive process for Comprehensive
Support and Intervention and Targeted Support and Intervention Support schools.

District and school planning teams collaborate to create school improvement plans based on a
comprehensive needs assessment. This collaborative plan includes:
e Interim and long-term goals
e Tasks and interventions designed to meet these goals
o Evidence-based
e A process to assess, monitor, and evaluate progress (DEED provides a continuous school
improvement online tool that satisfies these criteria)

Schools and districts submit a budget that aligns with the goals of the school improvement plan for
review by the district and the State. Budgets must include:

e Cohesive professional development opportunities, and

e Interventions

DEED reviews the school improvement plans annually. School improvement plans and documents will
also be reviewed in scheduled monitoring visits.

End-of-year evaluations of programs reviewed by district for effectiveness and shared with DEED.

For schools failing to make progress, an inter-departmental review will be conducted as needed on an
annual basis to ensure alignment of diverse resources.
e. Technical Assistance. Describe the technical assistance the State will provide to
each LEA in the State serving a significant number or percentage of schools
identified for comprehensive or targeted support and improvement.

DEED commits to help districts lead for success by providing:
e Technical assistance for districts, schools, and teachers
e Support with the alignment of resources
e Investing in change that is sustainable
e C(Clearly communicating that change is not only necessary but attainable

Desired attributes of districts:
e districts must prioritize low performing schools
e provide differentiated support aligned with the unique needs of the students
e identify resource inequities
e create an instructional infrastructure that utilizes data to drive decisions

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 34
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 42



e have the capacity to adapt instruction to match the identified needs

The main strategic goal of DEED is to provide support to districts to amplify student achievement
based on these district attributes. All training and professional development provided to districts,
schools, and teachers supports the commitment DEED has made to Alaska’s students.

If Alaska Then Districts } Then Schools Student
Outcomes
eAmplifies *Will be eWill have the
student empowered to capacity to
learning serve all provide an *All students
elnspires students by excellent can:
community eensuring education for e succeed in
ownership of effective every student their
educational leadership every day education
excellence erecruiting and work
*Modernizes and retaining eshape
the education effective worthwhile
system teachers and satisfying
eEnsures straining and lives for
excellent supporting themselves
educators teachers in eexemplify the
Promotes effective best values of
safety and instructional society
well-being practices ebe effective
in improving

the character
and quality of
the world
about them

Technical Assistance Strategies include:
e Support regarding the school improvement planning process. Distance delivery or on-site

o Comprehensive needs assessment

Gap analysis and root cause training

Strategic planning based on identified needs and root causes
Measureable goals and tasks to support designated needs
Evaluation, feedback, and reflection

Leadership support and development

O O O O O

e Technical Assistance on evidence-based interventions
o Awareness training regarding evidence-based practices
o Determining the best intervention to match need as identified in comprehensive
needs assessments
o Strategies to create measureable goals using the strategies to meet the needs
addressed in a comprehensive needs assessment

training from DEED staff and experts with prioritized responses based on available resources.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 43

35



e Funding and support to allow district teams to attend statewide conferences that focus on
evidence-based practices and effective strategies to build leadership and pedagogy within a
school, such as the annual statewide Response To Intervention (RTI) Conference and the
Alaska School Leadership Institute (ASLI) designed for rural schools. Alaska remains
committed to deliver training via distance technology such as ongoing online, individualized
professional learning opportunities.

e Training and support on Alaska’s continuous school improvement planning tool (or other
comparable planning tool implemented by the district) and webinar support throughout the
year.

e Coaching support through the State System of Support (SSOS) coaching program prioritized to
schools with the highest need.

e Continued technical assistance during scheduled Title program monitoring visits to districts
and schools.

Parent and community involvement strategies

Schoolwide planning

Guidance for leveraging federal funding streams to promote student achievement
Tools and templates

Programmatic planning guidance

Interstate collaboration opportunities

O O O O O O

e Intentional collaboration of diverse resources

o The State will coordinate and better utilize experts from within DEED, external
partners, SSOS coaches, and teachers/leaders in the field.
=  Early Childhood Education
= Career and Technical Education
= English Language Arts, Mathematics, and Science Standards
= Health and Safety/School Climate initiatives
= Special Education
= English Learners and Language Acquisition
= |nstructional Best Practices

o DEED website resources that include fact sheets, Power Point presentations (static
and recorded), professional learning modules, tool kits, lists of resources (What
Works Clearinghouse, Regional Educational Laboratories), etc.

f. Additional Optional Action. If applicable, describe the action the State will take to
initiate additional improvement in any LEA with a significant number or

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 36
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 44



percentage of schools that are consistently identified by the State for
comprehensive support and improvement and are not meeting exit criteria
established by the State or in any LEA with a significant number or percentage of
schools implementing targeted support and improvement plans.

N/A

5. Disproportionate Rates of Access to Educators (ESEA section 1111(g)(1)(B)):
Describe how low-income and minority children enrolled in schools assisted under Title |, Part A are
not served at disproportionate rates by ineffective, out-of-field, or inexperienced teachers, and the
measures the SEA will use to evaluate and publicly report the progress of the SEA with respect to
such description.

(Consistent with ESEA section 1111(g)(1)(B), this description should not be construed as requiring a State to
develop or implement a teacher, principal or other school leader evaluation system.)

Alaska Definitions

DEED will use the following definitions to determine Disproportionate Rates of Access to Educators
for low-income and minority children enrolled in schools assisted under Title |, Part A in Alaska:

e Low-income student (Economically Disadvantaged Student) — A student who is eligible for
free or reduced-price school meals under the federal Alaska Income Eligibility Guidelines for
Free and Reduced Meals Program, as defined in 4 AAC 06.899.(5).

e Minority Student (Students of Color) — A student identified as a member of a minority race or
ethnicity (i.e., African American, Alaskan Native, American Indian, Asian or Pacific Islander,
Hispanic, or two or more races, as defined in 4 AAC 06.899).

¢ Inexperienced Teacher (First Year Teacher) — A teacher in their first year of practice, having
no previous experience leading classroom instruction other than student teaching or similar
preparation experiences. Also, inexperienced principals and other school leaders would be in
their first year of leading.

e Out-of-field teacher - A teacher teaching in a subject area in which they do not hold an Alaska
endorsement. This updates the definition from “not highly qualified.” An endorsement can
be added with a passing score on a content exam and two years of experience.

¢ Ineffective Teacher -

o A non-tenured teacher who was on a plan of improvement under 4 AAC 19.010(g), or
was notified that their continued employment in the district was contingent on the
implementation of a plan of improvement and resigned, or

o Atenured teacher who was receiving district support on a plan of professional growth
under 4 AAC 19.010(h); or either of the Levels of Support indicated for a non-tenured
teacher.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 37
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 45



A professional growth plan (district support) is required when a district’s educator evaluation and
support system determine that a teacher is basic on two or more of the Alaska Teacher Standards. An
improvement plan is required when a district’s educator evaluation and support system determine
that a teacher is unsatisfactory on one or more of the Alaska Teacher Standards.

This section refers exclusively to required Levels of Support that are the result of the district’s
educator evaluation and support system as outlined in 14.20.149 Employee evaluation and 4 AAC
19.010 - Purpose and scope of evaluation. For example: A voluntary plan of professional growth (e.g.
changing of grade levels) would not be used to determine the reported level of support.

Purposes of Alaska’s Educator Evaluation and Support Systems

Help Alaska educators grow professionally

Improve the effectiveness of instruction

Future employment of the educator

All districts are encouraged to use plans of professional growth to help all educators grow
professionally and improve the effectiveness of instruction at schools.

Alaska Measures

DEED will use the following measures to evaluate progress on Disproportionate Rates of Access to
Educators for low-income and minority children enrolled in schools assisted under Title I, Part A:

e The percentage of teachers categorized as inexperienced in Title |, Part A schools

e The percentage of teachers categorized as inexperienced in non-Title I, Part A schools
e The percentage of teachers categorized as out-of-field in Title I, Part A schools

e The percentage of teachers categorized as out-of-field in non-Title I, Part A schools.
e The percentage of teachers categorized as ineffective in Title I, Part A schools

e The percentage of teachers categorized as effective in non-Title |, Part A schools

e The percentage of teachers categorized as inexperienced in high minority schools*
e The percentage of teachers categorized as inexperienced in low-minority schools**
e The percentage of teachers categorized as out-of-field in high minority schools

e The percentage of teachers categorized as out-of-field in low-minority schools

e The percentage of teachers categorized as ineffective in high minority schools

e The percentage of teachers categorized as effective in low-minority schools.

*high minority schools would be schools in the top quartile of minority students
**|low minority schools would be schools in the bottom quartile of minority students

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 38
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 46



Public Reporting of Progress

On the State Report Card, DEED will report the professional qualifications of teachers including the
number and percentage of:

e inexperienced teachers, principals, and other school leaders

e out-of-field teachers
The information will be presented in the aggregate and disaggregated by Title I, Part A status, and by
high-minority compared to low-minority schools. Likewise, the district report cards will report similar
information on professional qualifications of teachers, principals, and other school leaders.

Current Context

In 2015, DEED developed the Equitable Access to Excellent Educators Plan for Alaska (Alaska Equity
Plan). The following data from that plan paint a picture of Alaska’s Disproportionate Rates of Access
to Educators for low-income and minority children:

e Economically Disadvantaged (Low-Income) Students are
1.8 times more likely to be placed with first-year teachers

e Students of Color (Minority) are
Two times more likely to be placed with first- year teachers

e Economically Disadvantaged (Low-Income) Students are
Almost twice as likely to be taught a core content course by a teacher who is not highly
qualified

e Students of Color (Minority) are
Two times more likely to be taught a core content course by a teacher who is not highly
qualified

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 47

39



The Disproportionate Rates of Access to Educators are displayed in the graphs that follow.

Economically Disadvantaged (Low Income) Students Disproportionate Rate of
Access to Inexperienced Teachers

School Characteristics by Low-Income Quartiles

9.2%
Average yearly percent of teachers in their first year
(2005-2014)

B Schools in the Top Quartile of Low-Income Students
m Schools in the Bottom Quartile of Low-Income Students

m All Schools

Students of Color (Minority) Disproportionate Rate of
Access to Inexperienced Teachers

School Characteristics by Minority Quartiles

12.4%

Average yearly percent of teachers in their first year
(2005-2014)

B Schools in the Top Quartile of Minority Students
B Schools in the Bottom Quartile of Minority Students

m All Schools

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 48

40



The Disproportionate Rates of Access to Out-of-Field Teachers shown below are based on the
previous definition in the Alaska State Equity Plan (2015) and not the current proposed definition.

Economically Disadvantaged (Low Income) Students Disproportionate Rate of
Access to Out-Of-Field Teachers

School Characteristics by Low-Income Quartiles

Percent of classes taught by teachers who are not 210%
highly qualified (SY 2014-15) ’

B Schools in the Top Quartile of Low-Income Students

M Schools in the Bottom Quartile of Low-Income Students

m All Schools

Students of Color (Minority) Disproportionate Rate of
Access to Out-Of-Field Teachers

School Characteristics by Minority Quartiles

Percent of classes taught by teachers who are not 0.1%
highly qualified (Y 2014-15) -

9.4%

15.9%

00% 50% 100% 15.0% 200% 250% 30.0%

B Schools in the Top Quartile of Minority Students
B Schools in the Bottom Quartile of Minority Students

B All Schools

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 49

41



Disproportionate Rate of Access to Ineffective Teachers Plan of Action

DEED is not able to report the Disproportionate Rates of Access to Ineffective Teachers as the data is
not available. The reporting on Ineffective Teachers will require regulatory changes. Alaska currently
collects only district-level data on the Level of Supports for tenured and non-tenured teachers, special
service providers, and administrators. Upon acceptance of Alaska’s ESSA plan, DEED will propose to
the State Board of Education a change in Alaska regulation 4 AAC 19.055 Reporting of evaluation
results. This regulation change would request data at the school level for tenured and non-tenured
educators and would at the earliest go into effect in 2018. The first reporting of evaluation results to
DEED could be for the 2017-18 school year depending on a smooth regulatory process. At that time,
DEED will determine how best to publically report this information whether on report cards or
otherwise.

Approach to Address Disproportionality

Clearly, there are disproportionality rates of access to inexperienced and out-of-field teachers. After
the data is available, Alaska will address any disproportionality rates of access to ineffective teachers.
In Title I, Part A, there are actions planned to improve equitable access to Effective Teachers in Title
1, Part A Schools, as described below.

Phase 1: Awareness

Phase 2: Support

Share the Alaska Equity

Plan with stakeholders Support the twelve Phase 3: Review
to allow further

t and identified districts with
engagemen tan challenges in equitable
Improvement. access to effective

teachers.

Analyze the
implementation of the
Alaska Equity Plan and
make improvements
as needed.

As outlined in Alaska’s Equity Plan (2015), DEED will be using the multi-phase approach to address any
of Alaska’s Disproportionate Rates of Access to Educators for low-income and minority children
enrolled in schools assisted under Title I, Part A.

e Phase 1: Awareness - Share Alaska’s Disproportionate Rates of Access to Educators for
low-income and minority children enrolled in schools assisted under Title I, Part A.

e Phase 2: Support — Identify districts with challenges in Disproportionate Rates of Access
to Educators for low-income and minority children and provide support.

e Phase 3: Review - Review the Alaska Equity Plan and make necessary adjustments, and
engage stakeholders to review the initial root causes and strategies for improving Alaska’s
Disproportionate Rate of Access to Educators for low-income and minority children

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 42
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 50



enrolled in schools assisted under Title |, Part A. This review process will likely be
informed by the work of the Ensure Excellent Educators committee of the Alaska’s
Education Challenge as outlined below and in the Title Il, Part A section.

Background: Initial Root Cause Analysis

Stakeholder work in 2015 to develop the Alaska Equity Plan identified an initial picture of the
challenges in Alaska. Through the analysis of data, information gathered from meetings,
conversations with stakeholders, and various research studies, DEED identified root causes in three
areas.

.

Inzufficient
Supply of

i

Difficulty
Retaining

y

Rural
Challenges

v

DEED will continue to work with districts and stakeholders to reassess root causes for
disproportionate access to educators. and will focus on strategies to address the causes identified in
the blue areas that can be affected more directly by districts and schools.

Strategies to Address Root Causes and Eliminate Equity Gaps

Alaska recognizes that ensuring students’ equitable access to excellent teachers is a long-term issue,
and achieving our teacher equity goals will require implementation of strategies in collaboration with
our school districts. Alaska’s Plan to Ensure Equitable Access to Excellent Educators, therefore, is built
on the following theory of action.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 43
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 51



\
J
_|
I
m
=2

\ J
— Districts TH E N

( )

x J Schools

Comprehensive
L | approach to
continuous ( ) Students
improvement Recruit, retain, and
L ) develop excellent
teachers .
Equitable access to
~ J excellent teaching Higher levels of
college- and career

readiness for all
students

Our theory of action is based on the following principals and key beliefs:

e Research shows that teachers have a greater impact on student achievement than any
other in-school factor. Students in many of our high-needs schools and districts do not
have the same access to excellent teaching as other students.

e There are a number of factors that impact a district’s supply of excellent teachers and
students access to those teachers. To address these issues, DEED needs to continue
working with districts to improve and tailor talent management, including identifying and
addressing critical shortage areas. These are likely to include:

o Ways to recruit and retain teachers of the Science, Technology, Engineering, and
Math fields as well as teachers of students receiving special education services.
DEED will leverage best practices from the research (e.g., recruiting math,
science, and special education teachers) and practice in Alaska to support districts
in those areas as needed.

o Continuing technical assistance to improve talent management for all districts.
Using resources such as Increasing Equitable Access to Excellent Educators
Opportunities: A Talent Management Guide for School Districts produced by the
Equitable Access Support Network.

e Providing improved access to meaningful data will likely lead to improved district-level
decisions-making in the area of talent management. DEED will continue to provide data
on rates of access to inexperienced, out-of-field, and eventually ineffective teachers.

e Stakeholder engagement is a critical component of reviewing Alaska’s Equity Plan.

Key Strategies: Awareness, Preparation, Recruitment and Support
DEED has identified four strategic areas: awareness of access to excellent teachers, preparation of

teachers, recruitment of teachers, and support of teachers and leaders (retention). DEED will
continue to seek out and share strategies that have been demonstrated to improve teacher retention

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 44
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 52


http://www.gtlcenter.org/sites/default/files/docs/NCCTQRecruitQuality.pdf
http://www.gtlcenter.org/sites/default/files/docs/NCCTQRecruitQuality.pdf
https://www.ets.org/s/education_topics/teaching_quality/pdf/teacher_leader_model_standards.pdf
https://www.ets.org/s/education_topics/teaching_quality/pdf/teacher_leader_model_standards.pdf

rates working collaboratively with our districts and other stakeholder groups. The following are key
strategies and two sample activities that will be used to increase equity across Alaska:

Awareness

Public Reporting of Disproportionate Access

Ongoing Data Collection and Analysis

Recruitment
Preparation

Identification and

Support of Alaska's mitigation of
FEA, PITAS, and ANSEP certification barriers
Collaboration with Examination of
Alaska Universities recruitment and hiring
and Colleges existing efforts for
efficacy
Support

Continued coordination with
ASMP and SSOS

Oversight of districts' EES systems

Notably, this year, DEED launched the Alaska’s Education Challenge to address our student
achievement gaps and increase our graduation rates by making sure that every student across our
state has an equal opportunity to learn and succeed. Through a process of gathering public input, the
State Board of Education has already identified five priorities for Alaska’s public education system:
Improve Student Learning, Ensure Excellent Educators, Modernize the Education System, Inspire
Tribal and Community Ownership, and Promote Safety and Well-Being.

Ensuring excellent educators is critical both as an impact on student learning, but more importantly
on success in meeting Alaska’s vision for public education.

Vision: All students can succeed in their education and work; shape worthwhile and satisfying lives
for themselves; exemplify the best values of society; and, be effective in improving the character
and quality of the world about them.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 53

45


https://gov.alaska.gov/administration-focus/alaskas-education-challenge/

6. School Conditions (ESEA section 1111(g)(1)(C)):
Describe how the SEA agency will support LEAs receiving assistance under Title I, Part A to improve
school conditions for student learning, including through reducing: (i) incidences of bullying and
harassment; (ii) the overuse of discipline practices that remove students from the classroom; and
(iii) the use of aversive behavioral interventions that compromise student health and safety.

(i) Incidences of bullying and harassment:

DEED assists districts in their efforts to reduce bullying, harassment, and intimidation by providing
districts with technical assistance on Alaska’s collection of laws that promote positive school climate
and address school discipline; through data collection and analysis; training; and support of the
implementation of a constellation of evidence-based programs and strategies that reduce bullying.

Statutes:

Alaska has a collection of complementary laws that explicitly prohibit the harassment, intimidation,
and bullying of any student on school premises or on school transportation systems.

e AS14.33.200 requires Alaska districts to have written policies on how they will promote
positive character traits and address bullying when it occurs.

e AS14.33.210 requires school personnel, volunteers, and students to report all suspected
bullying to school officials.

e AS14.33.230 protects reporters of school-based bullying, harassment, and intimidation from
reprisals.

e AS 14.33.230 protects reporters of school-based bullying, harassment, and intimidation from
suit.

Data Collection and Analysis

e Youth Risk Behavior Survey — DEED partners with the Alaska Department of Health and Social
Services to administer and report out on this Center for Disease Control (CDC) survey that
includes bullying and school climate measures.

e DEED collects and reports out on suspensions and expulsions for bullying, harassment, and
intimidation annually.

Training/Technical Assistance

e DEED delivers distance-delivered training it has created to thousands of district personnel
annually on bullying, harassment, and intimidation in partnership with the Western
Educational Equity Assistance Center within the Metropolitan State University of Denver.

e Examples of evidence-based programs, activities, and trainings DEED supports are:

v" Schoolwide Positive Behavioral Supports

Fourth R

Mentoring Programs like Big Brothers/Big Sisters

Restorative Justice

Sources of Strength

AN NI NN

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 46
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 54



Suicide Prevention Program

Project AWARE, Alternative School Initiative

Youth Mental Health First Aid Mental Health Assessment and Referral
Crisis Response, de-escalation training for staff

Suicide Prevention Gatekeeper training

Alaska Safe Children’s Act training.

AN NI N NN

(ii) The overuse of discipline practices that remove students from the classroom:

DEED continues to expand its efforts to support districts in reducing their utilization of discipline
actions that remove students from the classroom through technical assistance on germane State
laws, data collection and analysis, and through technical assistance and training on a host of relevant
topics.

Statutes:

e AS14.33.120 requires all districts to have (and regularly update) written school disciplinary
and safety programs that were created through collaboration of both school and community
stakeholders to ensure the programs reflect community values and norms. These disciplinary
and safety policies must include standards for:

v" honesty and respect within schools

behavioral expectations

consequences for misbehavior

policies for student conflict resolution strategies

established discipline and safety programs addressing bullying, discipline practices, and

behavioral interventions with students

ANRNENRN

Data Collection and Analysis:

e DEED recently constructed a new statewide discipline data collection system (State Report
Manager) that captures data on all school suspensions and expulsions. The benefits are:
v' Improved data fidelity
v' Greater ease for the State and districts to organize and analyze disciplinary data
v" Improved district ability to unpack the data and better hypothecate underlying
student needs that drive student behaviors resulting in suspension or expulsion
v" Data can be examined to determine if disproportionality in discipline is occurring in
any student subpopulations.

Training/Technical Assistance:
e DEED cosponsors an annual statewide School Health and Wellness Institute that delivers

information/training on positive school climate, school safety, classroom management, and
prosocial evidence-based school programs.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 55

47



e DEED delivers training to thousands of educators annually on Gender and Race Equity.

e DEED’s Mandated Reporting of Child Abuse and Neglect course includes information on
Adverse Childhood Experiences and Trauma Aware Schools.

e DEED is finalizing content for a more in-depth Trauma Sensitive Schools training. The Trauma
Sensitive Schools model, with its focus on building educator understanding that students’
challenging behaviors are often the expression of trauma and grief, is fostering a reduction in
the removal of students from classrooms for disciplinary issues in schools that utilize trauma
informed policies, practices, and strategies.

e Examples of evidence-based programs, activities, and trainings DEED supports listed above to
address bullying also support decreased student removal from the classroom for discipline.

(iii) The use of aversive behavioral interventions that compromise student health and
safety:

Alaska’s public schools are not allowed to use behavioral interventions that are aversive or
compromise students’ health and safety. In 2014, Alaska enacted legislation dramatically limiting the
use of student restraint and seclusion in our schools. This legislation requires essential safety
protocols be in place when these interventions are unavoidable, prohibits the use of chemical and/or
mechanical restraints, requires all incidents of restraint or seclusion that do occur to be reported to
DEED, and requires a sufficient number of staff from each school to receive periodic training in de-
escalation and restraint techniques.

School staff trained in de-escalation, restraint, and seclusion are also required to be trained in First
Aid and CPR. DEED maintains a list of evidence-based trainings for districts to select from that utilize
techniques proven to keep students and staff safe, and delivers ongoing technical assistance to
districts regarding training and reporting requirements.

7. School Transitions (ESEA section 1111(g)(1)(D)):
Describe how the State will support LEAs receiving assistance under Title I, Part A in meeting the
needs of students at all levels of schooling (particularly students in the middle grades and high
school), including how the State will work with such LEAs to provide effective transitions of
students to middle grades and high school to decrease the risk of students dropping out.

DEED’s goal is to have a comprehensive, robust educational system that provides all students the
opportunity for a well-rounded and equitable education. The system has many embedded elements
that promote successful transitions for students throughout their education, and directs additional
supports where appropriate to ensure the needs of all students are met. DEED is driven by our State
Board of Education’s Vision and Mission for public education: to ensure all of Alaska’s students have
the opportunity to receive an excellent education every day; that all students can succeed in their
education and work, shape worthwhile and satisfying lives for themselves, exemplify the best values
of society, and be effective in improving the character and quality of the world about them.

DEED’s educational system is composed of a broad constellation of interwoven, complementary
structures, systems, programs, and strategies that operate in concert at all levels of schooling, and
encompass districts receiving assistance under Title I, Part A. Supports designed to ensure the

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 48
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 56



educational needs of all students are met, and that their transitions across educational milestones are
successful are embedded in the following components of DEED’s educational system: Assessment,
Accountability, Student Content and Performance Standards, Finance/Accounting, Teacher
Certification, Special Education, Early Learning, Child Nutrition, Health/Mental Health, School Safety,
Career and Technical Education, Afterschool Programming, and Professional Development for District
Personnel.

Beyond these foundational supports, additional levels of assistance for students in middle and high
school, where the risk of dropping out is greatest are also provided. Examples of these supports are:

e Alternative Schools: DEED concurrently administers two alternative high school initiatives,
which provide innovative mental health supports, cohesive professional development,
additional staffing, and funding for evidence-based curriculum, programs, and activities to the
majority of Alaska’s alternative schools. These specialized secondary schools serve thousands
of Alaska’s most at-risk students and are an excellent complement to traditional schools.
Alaska’s alternative schools constitute a safety net for students at-risk of dropping out and for
students who have dropped out — reconnecting them to their education and the goal of
graduation.

e Neglected and Delinquent: DEED couples state Youth In Detention funding with its federal
Title | Part D Neglected and Delinquent funding to strengthen transitional supports to
detained youth. Transition planning must include the following: personal, career, technical,
and academic counseling; placement services designed to place the youth in a university,
college, or junior college program; information concerning, and assistance in obtaining,
available student financial aid; counseling services; and job placement services. Detained
students are provided the opportunity to meet the same challenging State Standards as all
other district student populations.

Alaska Performance Scholarship: The Alaska Performance Scholarship provides an opportunity for
Alaska high school students to earn a scholarship to help cover the cost of an Alaska postsecondary
education. This program delivers financial support that makes postsecondary education a reality for
some students that could not otherwise afford to attend. Alaska high school students who take a
more rigorous curriculum, get good grades, and score well on college placement or work ready exams
can earn an Alaska Performance Scholarship to qualified Alaska colleges, universities, or
vocational/technical programs.

http://acpe.alaska.gov/FINANCIAL AID/Grants Scholarships/Alaska Performance Scholarship

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 49
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 57


http://acpe.alaska.gov/FINANCIAL_AID/Grants_Scholarships/Alaska_Performance_Scholarship

B. Title |, Part C: Education of Migratory Children

1. Supporting Needs of Migratory Children (ESEA section 1304(b)(1)): Describe how, in planning,
implementing, and evaluating programs and projects assisted under Title I, Part C, the State and
its local operating agencies will ensure that the unique educational needs of migratory children,
including preschool migratory children and migratory children who have dropped out of school,
are identified and addressed through:

i. The full range of services that are available for migratory children from appropriate local,
State, and Federal educational programs;

ii. Joint planning among local, State, and Federal educational programs serving migratory
children, including language instruction educational programs under Title IIl, Part A;

iii. The integration of services available under Title I, Part C with services provided by those
other programs; and

iv. Measurable program objectives and outcomes.

Since Title I, Part C, Education of Migratory Children funds are supplementary and cannot supplant, it
is necessary to ensure migratory children and youth are receiving access to all State and federal funds
they are entitled to before being provided support with Title I, Part C funds. At DEED, the Migrant
Education Program (MEP) is part of the Student Learning Division. The division works collaboratively
to ensure there is an understanding of the services provided by each program. Additionally, the
Migrant Education Program is a part of two sub-teams within the division: the ESEA Federal Programs
Team and the Early Learning Team.

The ESEA Federal Programs Team meets regularly to discuss services and activities provided by their
programs, and works collaboratively to review and approve ESEA Consolidated Applications and to
monitor ESEA programs together.

e Districts that receive Title I-C funds complete their application process through the ESEA
Consolidated Application annually. The ESEA Consolidated Application includes Title I-A, Title
I-C, Title I-D, Title II-A, and Title 1ll-A grant planning. The application requires districts to
describe how they coordinate their various ESEA funding sources. The Consolidated
Application allows for DEED to check for efficiencies and to ensure funds are not supplanting
one another. The ESEA Consolidated Application requires district program personnel to
coordinate with one another when planning services, and for DEED ESEA Program Leads to
meet regularly to review ESEA Consolidated Applications together. Additionally, if they meet
all eligibility criteria, schools can apply to consolidate their Title I-C funds into the Title I-A
Schoolwide Program using the Consolidated Application.

e Districts receiving ESEA funds are monitored. Title I-A, Title I-C, Title I-D, Title 1I-A, Title Ill-A,
and McKinney-Vento programs monitor districts for compliance together. Districts are
required to gather evidence that MEP students are receiving all the district, State, and federal
services available to the district.

The Early Learning Team works together to ensure preschool migratory children are receiving local,
State, and federal-funded preschool opportunities available to them. The Migrant Education Program
is supervised by the Early Learning Administrator.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 50
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 58



The Migrant Education Program provides districts with a Migrant Summative Data Report in the
spring annually. This report is a tool for districts to use to evaluate the effectiveness of their program
and to help guide their needs assessment for the following year.

DEED develops a statewide comprehensive needs assessment (CNA) that includes the identification
and an assessment of:
e The unique educational needs of migrant children that result from the children’s migrant
lifestyle.
e Other needs of migrant students that must be met in order for them to participate effectively
in school.

For the CNA process, DEED contracts with consultants to assist with the CNA update. DEED Migrant
Education Program staff, with the assistance of the consultants, use various platforms to gather data
on migrant student achievement and outcomes, disseminate and collect surveys documenting the
perception of migrant staff and parents related to migrant students’ needs, and identify relevant
demographic and evaluation data. The data collected is used by the CNA committee, a group of
migrant education stakeholders, to formulate a comprehensive understanding of the characteristics
of the migrant student population in Alaska. A profile of Alaska migrant students is developed based
on the most recently available information. The CNA committee uses the profile and other collected
data to develop concern statements, needs indicators, needs statements, and solutions strategies.
The CNA guides the design of the Alaska Migrant Education Program.

Based on the most recent CNA, DEED, with the assistance of consultants and stakeholders, created a
Service Delivery Plan (SDP). The SDP committee was composed of representatives who are parents
and community members; MEP educators and administrators, recruiters, and DEED representatives.
These individuals have expertise and/or experience in reading, mathematics, migrant student
graduation strategies, cohesive professional development, identification and recruitment (ID&R), data
management, inter-agency coordination, parent involvement, and/or early childhood education.
Members of the SDP committee also served on the Alaska MEP CNA committee to provide continuity
to the overall comprehensive process that was carried out in Alaska. This helped to ensure systems
are aligned to meet the unique educational needs of Alaska migrant students. Through the State SDP
process, DEED creates Measurable Program Objectives and Outcomes and evaluates the progress.

2. Promote Coordination of Services (ESEA section 1304(b)(3)): Describe how the State will use Title
I, Part C funds received under this part to promote interstate and intrastate coordination of
services for migratory children, including how the State will provide for educational continuity
through the timely transfer of pertinent school records, including information on health, when
children move from one school to another, whether or not such move occurs during the regular
school year.

DEED participates in several multistate consortia that seek to improve the identification and
recruitment, policies, pertinent record transfer, and educational services for migrant students:

e The Interstate Migrant Education Council (IMEC) — An independent organization established
to advocate policies that ensure the highest quality education and other needed services for
migrant children, and facilitate opportunities for members to examine policy issues at all
levels of government related to coordination between public and private agencies to benefit
migrant students and programs.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 51
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 59



¢ National Association of State Directors of Migrant Education (NASDME) — This association
provides the largest national conference for the migrant program. State directors meet to
discuss issues affecting migrant students and families, and over 170 sessions are held to
highlight best practices in migrant programs.

e Title I-C Migrant Education Program Directors’ Meeting — Annual meeting for Title |-C
Directors that: 1) facilitates opportunities for Directors to network and share best practices
and resources, 2) provides Directors with information pertinent to the State administration
and operation of the Migrant Education Program (MEP), 3) promotes the understanding of,
and coordination with, other ED initiatives and programs, and 4) provides Directors and Office
of Migrant Education (OME) personnel with opportunities to coordinate on issues important
to the successful design and implementation of programs and services that benefit migrant
students.

e MIS2000 — Alaska’s Migrant Education Student Database created by Management Services for
Education Data (MS/EdD). MIS2000 houses Alaska’s migrant student information and
connects to MSIX, the national student exchange system.

e National Migrant Student Exchange System (MSIX) — This database allows States to share
educational and health information on migrant children who travel from state to state and
who as a result, have student records in multiple States' information systems. MSIX works in
concert with the Alaska Migrant Student Database, MIS2000, to fulfill its mission to ensure
the appropriate enrollment, placement, and accrual of credits for migrant children
nationwide.

During district level monitoring, DEED verifies that the district promotes interstate and intrastate
coordination of services for migrant students including:

e providing for the educational continuity of migrant students through the timely transfer of
pertinent student records, including health records (whether or not the move occurs during
the regular school year); and

e establishing a procedure to coordinate services and records transfers with surrounding
districts or districts that migrant students move to/from, and meeting all deadlines for the
submission of student records and data in MIS2000.

3. Use of Funds (ESEA section 1304(b)(4)): Describe the State’s priorities for the use of Title |, Part C
funds, and how such priorities relate to the State’s assessment of needs for services in the State.

Grants under Title |, Part C, Education of Migratory Children are issued to districts through an
allocation, not through a competitive process. The allocation formula is largely based on the number
of migrant eligible students, services provided to migratory children and youth, number of students
identified as “priority for services”, and academic needs according to a weighted formula.

District Title I-C grant planning is included in the ESEA Consolidated Application that districts submit
to DEED annually. Districts submit their applications in the summer of each year, and after approval,
they receive a grant award for operation of the program as outlined in their application.

DEED works with stakeholders to create a State CNA of the migratory children in Alaska. The CNA
guides the design for the Alaska Migrant Education Program. Based on the State CNA, DEED, with the
assistance of consultants and stakeholders, creates a Service Delivery Plan (SDP) to meet the
identified needs from the CNA. Districts are required to create local needs assessments and service
delivery plans that align to the State guiding documents.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 52
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 60



Each district’s sub-grant must be aligned with the State CNA and SDP. Districts provide services
specified in the plan in communities where migrant families are living. Supplemental education and
support services are provided to respond to the unique needs of migrant children and youth. These
needs are not addressed through existing State, local, and federal educational programs. These
supplemental services are designed to provide continuity of instruction for students who move from
one school district or state to another.

The Title I, Part C grant application requires locally funded districts to describe how they give priority
for service to children and youth identified as “priority for services”, and how they provide services
that address the unique needs of migratory children in accordance with the Alaska SDP.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 61

53



C. Title I, Part D: Prevention and Intervention Programs for Children and
Youth who are Neglected, Delinquent, or At-Risk

1. Transitions Between Correctional Facilities and Local Programs (ESEA section 1414(a)(1)(B)):
Provide a plan for assisting in the transition of children and youth between correctional facilities
and locally operated programs.

DEED actively supports the provisions of a high-quality education to neglected, delinquent, or at-risk
students in juvenile justice and correctional facilities. DEED understands that students who move
between correctional facilities and locally operated programs face many challenges, including delayed
academic record transfer and limited access to specific programs and services necessary to meet
students’ unique educational needs.

DEED will require all districts to:

e Designate a single point of contact responsible for issues relating to the transition of children
and youth between the State-operated correctional facility and schools, alternative
educational opportunities, and other locally operated programs. This person will be
responsible for communicating with local detention and other treatment facilities regarding
student placement, assisting in transitioning student records (including IEPs), transferring of
credits, and serving as a liaison between the districts and the local juvenile court.

e Describe in their application the supports the district has in place for youth that transition
between the juvenile justice system and their home district. The description must include the
following: personal, career, technical, and academic counseling; placement services designed
to place the youth in a university, college, or junior college program; information concerning,
and assistance in obtaining, available student financial aid; counseling services; and job
placement services.

2. Program Objectives and Outcomes (ESEA section 1414(a)(2)(A)): Describe the program objectives
and outcomes established by the State that will be used to assess the effectiveness of the Title |,
Part D program in improving the academic, career, and technical skills of children in the program.

Program Objectives

The purpose of Title |, Part D is to support the operation of State facilities, correctional facilities,
delinquent programs, neglected programs, or local educational agency programs that involve
collaboration with locally operated correctional facilities:

e To carry out high-quality education programs to prepare youth for regular high school
diploma, career and technical training, employment, or further education;

e To provide activities to facilitate the transition of such youth between districts and
correctional programs to further education, provide career and technical education skills, or
facilitate employment;

e To provide comparable services to neglected children or institutional delinquent children and
neglected and delinquent children in community day-school and long-term programs;

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 54
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 62



e To prevent at-risk youth from dropping out of school and to provide dropouts and children
and youth returning from correctional facilities or institutions for neglected or delinquent
youth, with a support system to ensure their continued education; and
To provide transitional services between local schools and correctional facilities for at risk
youth returning from correctional facilities and programs.

Program Outcomes
DEED administers the Title I, Part D program and utilizes a variety of elements to assess program
effectiveness, including:

e Annual review of district application that contains assurances, narrative descriptive questions,
and budget information. Upon receipt at DEED, applications are reviewed.

e Annual review of district end-of-year report that summarizes both budget and program
information (to include transition activities, academic, career and technical skills) from the
year.

e Periodic monitoring of districts on the required components to assure they are implementing
correct programing to include transition activities, academic, and career and technical skills
with the funds.

e Program effectiveness will be based on student outcomes. State assessment scores from
neglected and delinquent students will be gathered and analyzed. Students in these facilities
will be held to the same high standards of quality that all students within Alaska are held.

Accountability
e Districts are required to show progress in the number of children and youth attaining a
regular high school diploma or its recognized equivalent.

e After receiving assistance under this subpart for three years, districts need to show that there
has been an increase in the number of youth returning to school, attaining a regular high
school diploma or its recognized equivalent, or attaining employment after such children and
youth are released.

e District will be required to conduct a needs assessment for future program planning,
disaggregating data on participation by gender, race, ethnicity, and age, while protecting
individual student privacy, to determine the program’s impact.

e DEED will evaluate Title I-D programs:

o To maintain and improve educational achievement and to graduate from high school
in the number of years established by the State under either the four-year adjusted
cohort graduation rate or the extended-year adjusted cohort graduation rate, if
applicable;

o To accrue course credits that meet State requirements for grade promotion and high
school graduation;

o To make the transition to a regular program or other education program operated by
a local educational agency or school operated or funded by the Bureau of Indian
Education;

o To complete high school (or high school equivalency requirements) and obtain
employment after leaving the correctional facility or institution for neglected or
delinquent children and youth; and

o To participate, as appropriate, in postsecondary education and job training programs.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 55
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 63



D. Title Il, Part A: Supporting Effective Instruction

1. Use of Funds (ESEA section 2101(d)(2)(A) and (D)): Describe how the State educational agency will
use Title Il, Part A funds received under Title I, Part A for State-level activities described in section
2101(c), including how the activities are expected to improve student achievement.

Educator Growth and Development Systems has been the area of focus for DEED’s use of Title Il, Part
A funds. Current activities focus primarily on the development of effective educators, recognition of
excellent teachers, and the provision of technical assistance to districts in this area. DEED is
considering activities in induction and advancement for teachers, principals, and other schools
leaders.

Continuing Activities

DEED will use Title Il, Part A funds this next year to support State-level activities that are in progress.
These activities include an online cohesive professional development network; programs to recognize
excellent teachers; guidance in using Educator Evaluation and Support System results and meeting
educator qualifications; and technical assistance on Title Il, Part A district applications and monitoring.

DEED is currently using Title I, Part A funds to support a project to develop an online professional
development network that allows teacher teams to support personalized professional learning.
Learning paths for both English Language Arts and Mathematics have been developed using open-
source videos with interactive and discussion activities. Using this online environment, the project
partner has enhanced online courses and extended the learning from statewide conferences. Creating
additional learning paths on effectively integrating technology, digital literacy, and identifying and
meeting students’ specific learning needs will be explored during the next year of this project.

DEED will continue to assist with the dissemination of the lessons learned from a state-funded
initiative that focused on the delivery of high-quality, interactive blended learning models. This
project focused on removing barriers, providing specific technology enhancements, and
strengthening current technology-based instructional programs. DEED looks to learn from these
projects and the work of other Alaska districts’ initiatives on how educators are embracing
personalized learning and how it benefits their students.

As defined by the U.S. Department of Education, personalized learning refers to instruction in which
the pace of learning and the instructional approaches and instructional content (and its sequencing)
all may vary based on learner needs. In addition, learning activities are meaningful and relevant to
learners, driven by interests, and often self-initiated.

DEED has been collaborating with partners on considering micro credentials for recertification and
university credit based on an inquiry from the University of Alaska. They have been gathering
information from Digital Promise, BloomBoard, the Tennessee Department of Education, and Kettle
Moraine School District in Wisconsin. Increasing knowledge and usage of the Professional
Development definition and the Professional Learning Standards from Learning Forward will be
emphasized again this year. Learning Forward Alaska has been instrumental in working with DEED to
present this information in the last few years. DEED will explore building awareness of the recently
revised national Library and Technology standards.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 56
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 64



Activities Under Consideration

DEED will be considering an Induction Initiative to help with high rates of teacher turnover in Alaska.
The cost of teacher turnover in Alaska, a study by the Center for Alaska Education Policy Research at
the Institute of Social and Economic Research (http://www.iser.uaa.alaska.edu/Publications/2017-
CostTeacher.pdf), estimates a cost of $20 million per year to school districts. DEED will begin with a
review of other State guidelines (e.g., Hawaii, which has similar geographical challenges). The review
will identify promising practices that can be adapted to Alaska. Additionally, DEED will examine Alaska
districts’ existing induction programs for practices that can be replicated throughout Alaska.

DEED will be exploring establishing a Teacher Leader program to allow opportunities for teachers to
exercise leadership roles without leaving the classroom entirely. Sharing the Teacher Leader Model
Standards with districts will be one of the first steps. DEED will also leverage promising practices in
Alaska and recommendations from the research in this area, especially as DEED leadership provided
input into this research (i.e., teacher career advancement initiatives).

DEED will be looking at initiatives to support Principals and Other Schools Leaders through
partnerships. It will reserve the optional three percent funds of the allowable Title Il, Part A funds in
anticipation. DEED may consider reserving two percent of the Title IIA State level activities to explore
the creation of teacher/leader academies in conjunction with funds mentioned above. By having
academies specific to Alaska, the Guidelines for Preparing Culturally Responsive Teachers for Alaska's
Schools, published by the Alaska Native Knowledge Network, revised as of February 2, 1999, can be
embedded in the design.

DEED will be using Title I, Part A funds to address Disproportionate Rates of Access to Educators as
outlined earlier under Title | and below in D.2. DEED uses teacher certification receipts to support the
Certification and Licensure Systems and Educator Preparation Program Strategies as outlined below.

Activities informed by Alaska’s Education Challenge

DEED has also started the Alaska’s Education Challenge to address our student achievement gaps and
increase our graduation rates by making sure that every student across our state has equal
opportunities to learn and succeed. Through a process of gathering public input, the State Board of
Education has already identified five priorities for Alaska’s public education system: Improve Student
Learning, Ensure Excellent Educators, Modernize the Education System, Inspire Tribal and Community
Ownership, and Promote Safety and Well-Being. Future Title Il, Part A activities will be informed by
the transformational ideas that are proposed by the Ensure Excellent Educators committee.

The responsibility of DEED is to identify appropriate federal funds to launch high-quality, cohesive
professional development initiatives available to districts to support the implementation of college-
and career-ready standards, school climate and culture, special populations, and school planning and
support. These activities may consist of foundational professional development opportunities that
would be available to all educators and address key areas of policy and practice, and specialized,
professional development opportunities anchored in communities of practice which focus on
particular areas of practice. They may target classroom teachers, teacher leaders, school and/or

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 57
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 65


http://www.iser.uaa.alaska.edu/Publications/2017-CostTeacher.pdf
http://www.iser.uaa.alaska.edu/Publications/2017-CostTeacher.pdf
https://www.ets.org/s/education_topics/teaching_quality/pdf/teacher_leader_model_standards.pdf
https://www.ets.org/s/education_topics/teaching_quality/pdf/teacher_leader_model_standards.pdf
https://www.nnstoy.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/03/RINVN829_Teacher-Career-Adv-Initiatives_Rpt_WEB_f.pdf

district leaders, and community partners as appropriate. Training and programming would be
informed by stakeholder input, student achievement data, and priority implementation areas.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 66

58



2. Use of Funds to Improve Equitable Access to Teachers in Title I, Part A Schools (ESEA section
2101(d)(2)(E)): If an SEA plans to use Title Il, Part A funds to improve equitable access to effective
teachers, consistent with ESEA section 1111(g)(1)(B), describe how such funds will be used for this
purpose.

DEED will be using Title Il, Part A funds to improve equitable access to effective teachers for low-
income and minority students enrolled in schools assisted under Title |, Part A. The following activities
will need to be conducted:

e DEED will work with the State Board of Education to make a regulatory change in 4 AAC
19.055 Reporting of evaluation results upon acceptance of Alaska’s ESSA State Plan. This
regulation change would require districts to report evaluation data at the school level for
tenured and non-tenured educators.

e Once the regulation becomes effective, DEED will provide technical assistance to districts in
understanding the Ineffective Teacher definition and focus on supporting districts in their
submission of school level evaluation results.

e DEED will continue its multi-phase approach that was outlined in Alaska’s Equity Plan (see
section A.5). This approach will include increasing awareness of educator equity gaps,
particularly focusing on the Ineffective Teachers definition. DEED will support the districts
below, which have the most disproportionate rates of access to excellent educators from our
2015 equity plan. Once data using the new definitions has been collected, Alaska will
recalculate the disproportionate rates.

Northmest Arctic Ykon Flts

S Anchorsgel

e DEED will provide technical assistance to all districts using the results of their Educators
Evaluation and Support systems. This technical assistance will be using Title Il, Part A funds to
meet the following purposes of the Title lIIA program:

1) Improve the quality and effectiveness of teachers, principals, and other school leaders;

2) Increase the number of teachers, principals, and other school leaders who are effective in
improving student academic achievement in schools; and

3) Provide low-income and minority students greater access to effective teachers, principals,
and other school leaders.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 59
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 67



3. System of Certification and Licensing (ESEA section 2101(d)(2)(B)): Describe the State’s system of
certification and licensing of teachers, principals, or other school leaders.

DEED has the statutory authority to certify teachers, principals, superintendents, special service
providers, and other school leaders. Alaska certification statutes and regulations ensure that
students are served by quality educators who must meet high standards. A teaching certificate
can be earned with a bachelor’s degree, fingerprint clearance, appropriate coursework or
completion of an approved educator preparation program, and passage of subject and content
knowledge exams. Alaska also provides a pathway for career changers to complete a teacher
preparation program leading to full state certification while teaching full time. Additionally, Alaska
statutes allow teachers who are fully certified out of state and in good standing in their state to
qualify for an Initial Teaching Certificate valid for up to three years. These reciprocity rules help
districts recruit qualified educators from other states.

Within two years of initial certification, all teachers, administrators, and special service providers
must complete six semester hours of coursework (Alaska Studies and Multicultural) to increase
their understanding of Alaska’s unique cultures and history.

DEED is continuing to reduce barriers in certification as one of our equity strategies. This past
year, it has migrated more services online, including acceptance of electronic transcripts and
online payments. DEED is investigating the transition to a complete online application system.
With at least 75 percent of teachers being prepared outside of Alaska, special attention has been
given to simplifying information for out-of-state applicants.

Due to our shortage of teachers, a proof of program enrollment option is available in certain
circumstances. Alaska may revisit establishing an alternate route to certification using the lessons
learned from the Alaska Transition to Teaching (AKT2) program.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 60
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 68



4. Improving Skills of Educators (ESEA section 2101(d)(2)(J)): Describe how the SEA will improve the
skills of teachers, principals, or other school leaders in order to enable them to identify students
with specific learning needs, particularly children with disabilities, English learners, students who
are gifted and talented, and students with low literacy levels, and provide instruction based on
the needs of such students.

DEED will work to improve the skills of educators to meet the needs of students with specific learning
needs by providing technical assistance, services, and support as aligned to local school and district
system needs. As part of the Title Il, part A of the ESEA Consolidated Application, districts are
specifically asked how they are helping their educators to improve their skills. Districts’ practices that
use culturally relevant instructional practices and resources, especially in meeting the needs of
minority students who are also English learners, will be shared. For example: As a successful retention
activity, many districts provide culturally enhanced professional development at the beginning of the
school year to better prepare new educators to Alaska.

DEED is able to provide technical assistance, services, and supports through a combination of face-to-
face (conferences, workshops, meetings) and virtual opportunities (webinars, online courses, phone
conferences). Support at any level may also be provided in conjunction with other Alaska educational
organizations and partners (e.g. the 2017 Alaska RTI/MTSS Conference - Elevating Effective
Instruction).

Here are some available offerings that help teachers serve diverse groups of students:

e DEED has multiple courses in its distance-delivered eLearning Program to boost educators’
skills in working with students with specific learning needs. Example courses include
Identifying Learning Theory, Strategies for Accommodating Individual Needs, and Supporting
Student Learning Styles.

e DEED also has two reading foundational webinars to help teachers improve their skills in
working with students with low literacy levels.

e The WIDA CLIMBS and WIDA CLIMBS Training of Trainers professional development
opportunities are available to teachers and districts to provide training on instructional
strategies that specifically address the needs of English learners and intentionally support the
WIDA English Language Development Standards.

e DEED assists districts in meeting the needs of their gifted and talented students, which are
identified in districts’ plans of service for gifted students.

DEED will create a collaborative team consisting of Special Education, Migrant Education, English
Learner Education, State Systems of Support, and McKinney-Vento staff to design guidance on the use
of district funds to support the improvement of the skills teachers, principals, and other school
leaders need to meet specific student learning needs. This collaboration will also create guidance on
how to leverage federal and State funds to fully support all students’ learning needs through the
braiding and blending of funds.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 61
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 69



5. Data and Consultation (ESEA section 2101(d)(2)(K)): Describe how the State will use data and
ongoing consultation as described in ESEA section 2101(d)(3) to continually update and improve
the activities supported under Title Il, Part A.

DEED will continue to use existing advisory committees to meaningfully consult on the activities
supported under Title Il, Part A. The advisory committees described below are the Commissioner’s
Teacher Advisory Committee and Educational Leadership Council, Educator Quality Advisory
Committee, and Educator Evaluation and Support Advisory Committee. In addition, DEED collaborates
with other organizations and partners with relevant and demonstrated expertise in cohesive
professional development and learning (such as the Alaska Staff Development Network, Southeast
Regional Resource Center, and Professional and Continuing Education at UAA).

Commissioner’s Teacher Advisory Committee

The Commissioner’s Teacher Advisory Committee is a stakeholder group that provides a teacher
perspective on DEED’s initiatives and programs. The committee consists of the past and present
Alaska Teachers of the Year; Alaskan Milken Educators; the National Education Association Alaska
(NEA-AK) President, and teacher representatives from all regions of the state.

Commissioner’s Education Leadership Council

The Commissioner’s Education Leadership Council is a stakeholder group that provides an outside
perspective on DEED’s initiatives and policies. The committee consists of the current president and
executive director of the Alaska Association of School Boards (AASB), Alaska Council of School
Administrators (ACSA), Alaska Superintendent’s Association (ASA), Alaska Association of Elementary
Principals (AAEP), Alaska Association of Secondary Principals (AASP), the Alaska Association of School
Business Officials (ALASBO), and Alaska’s Parent and Teacher Association (PTA).

Educator Quality Advisory Committee

The Educator Quality Advisory Committee is a stakeholder group that focuses on improving educator
quality in Alaska. It primarily advises DEED on changes to teacher certification and preparation, and
also considers teacher development, evaluation, and other teacher quality related issues. This
committee consists of the deans and professors from all four of the state’s institutes of higher
education, the director of K-12 Outreach for the University of Alaska, National Education Association
Alaska (NEA-AK) representatives, other teacher representatives, State Board of Education members,
and representatives from districts, including human resources and instruction personnel.

Educator Evaluation and Support Advisory Committee

The Educator Evaluation Advisory Committee has been a key stakeholder group formed to assist DEED
in providing guidance and resources for districts in the redesign and implementation of their Educator
Evaluation and Support systems. Representatives include human resources, curriculum and
instruction, and educational association leaders from across the state.

DEED shares data relevant to the purpose of the advisory committee or other organizations and
partners. Examples of data would include educator evaluation and support data, educator
qualification data, passing rates and scores on basic and content area exams for educators, and
student academic achievement data. The various advisory committees meet on a monthly, quarterly,
or yearly basis depending on the need.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 62
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 70



6. Teacher Preparation (ESEA section 2101(d)(2)(M)): Describe the actions the State may take to
improve preparation programs and strengthen support for teachers, principals, or other school
leaders based on the needs of the State, as identified by the SEA.

Collaboration with Alaska universities and colleges is another strategy to improve programs,
strengthen support, and promote equity. The three University of Alaska teacher preparation
programs are merging into one program, which is adding another dimension to the CAEP
accreditation process (see below). As an example of DEED-university collaboration, DEED is serving in
an advisory capacity in the merger of the programs.

DEED’s program review and approval process requires educator preparation programs to adhere to
both the Council for the Accreditation of Education Preparation (CAEP) standards (4 AAC 12.308.
Approval of in-state educator preparation programs) and the Alaska’s Beginning Teacher Standards (4
AAC 04.200 Professional content and performance standards). These include the requirement that
new educators are adequately prepared to meet the needs of low income and minority students.
Alaska has Guidelines for Preparing Culturally Responsive Teachers for Alaska’s Schools, published by
the Alaska Native Knowledge Network, to help prepare new educators to meet the specific needs of
Alaska Natives. Both initial program approval and the CAEP accreditation process require educator
preparation programs to show evidence that pre-service educators have ample opportunities for
structured practice in a range of settings with diverse learners.

Alaska will continue to examine the internship component in Alaska’s teacher preparation programs.
Recently, our regulations were updated to require a minimum of 600 hours over a 15 week period.
Alaska’s universities have both traditional and post-baccalaureate routes. Many of these programs
exceed the requirement with a year-long internship fully based in the school. Alaska is specifically
interested in the expansion of internships in remote, rural schools which our rural districts indicate
help them and candidates make more informed decisions when offering or accepting a job, which
increases retention.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 63
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 71



E. Title lll, Part A, Subpart 1, English Language Acquisition and Language
Enhancement

1. Entrance and Exit Procedures (ESEA section 3113(b)(2)): Describe how the SEA will establish and
implement, with timely and meaningful consultation with LEAs representing the geographic
diversity of the State, standardized, statewide entrance and exit procedures, including an
assurance that all students who may be English learners are assessed for such status within 30
days of enrollment in a school in the State.

Entrance Procedures
= Determine which students might be identified as an English learner (EL) as defined in Alaska
Regulation 4 AAC 34.090 (2) and ESEA as amended by ESSA section 8101(20).
= Before a student is screened for English language proficiency (ELP), the district must
determine if the student is included in one of the categories of students eligible to be
identified as an English learner as defined:

o Student who is not born in the United States or whose native language is a language
other than English — DEED recommends a pre-screen with, at a minimum, the Parent
Language Questionnaire (PLQ).

o American Indian, Alaska Native, or resident of the outlying areas where a language
other than English has had a significant impact on the individual’s level of English
language proficiency.

= Parents of students complete a Home Language Survey to determine if a language other than
English has a significant impact on the student’s level of English language proficiency.

= Teacher observations should be taken into consideration in the identification process. The
Language Observation Checklist may be used if the parent language survey indicates that
English is spoken at home.

= Before a student is screened for English language proficiency, the district must determine if
the student is included in one of the categories of students eligible to be identified as Limited
English Proficient (LEP) as defined:

o Should a student fall into one of the above categories, the district must administer
one of the State-approved ELP screening assessments (either the W-APT, WIDA
Screener or the WIDA MODEL) to determine if the second part of the definition of an
English learner student is met.

=  Students who fall below the minimum score — identified as an English learner,
are eligible for EL services, and must take the annual ELP assessment (ACCESS
for ELLs 2.0) during the current school year.

e Students entering school March 1 or later that have not been
identified may be screened, but are not required to take the ACCESS
for ELLs 2.0 until the following spring.

=  Students who score at or above the minimum score for English language
proficiency--not identified as EL and are not required to be assessed further.
= |ncoming kindergartners and older students new to the district from another state or country
who are potentially English learners must be screened and identified as soon as possible after
enrolling in school, and within 30 days after the beginning of the school year if enrolled at the
beginning of the school year.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 64
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 72



= Annual test for English Language Proficiency — in addition to an initial assessment for

identification and program placement, all identified EL students must be assessed annually for

English language proficiency in four domains: listening, speaking, reading, and writing.

= Each district with a school that is attended by at least eight English learners is required to file
a plan of Service. The Plan of Service requirements are based on Alaska Regulation 4 AAC
34.055.

Exit Procedures
=  Astudent may be exited from EL status as a result of testing on ACCESS for ELLs 2.0 if a
student has:
o Minimum composite and individual domain scores (reading, writing, speaking and

listening) determined by data collected by the spring administration of the ACCESS for

ELLs 2.0, taking into consideration the score changes brought on by the standard-
setting process.
=  Possible exit criteria (will be reviewed based on 2017 ACCESS 2.0 scores)
=  Composite score of 4.5
= Domain Scores
Reading 4.0
Writing 3.8
Speaking 4.0
e Listening 4.0
=  After meeting exit criteria, a former EL student will be in monitoring status for four years
using the State content-based assessments in English language arts and math (for students
grades 3-10).
= Re-identifying a former EL student — the district will administer the MODEL or W-APT after
one semester of exit from LEP status should the student struggle academically.

2. SEA Support for English Learner Progress (ESEA section 3113(b)(6)): Describe how the SEA will
assist eligible entities in meeting:

i The State-designed long-term goals established under ESEA section 1111(c)(4)(A)(ii),
including measurements of interim progress towards meeting such goals, based on
the State’s English language proficiency assessments under ESEA section
1111(b)(2)(G); and

ii. The challenging State academic standards.

To help districts and schools meet State-designed long-term goals, DEED belongs to the WIDA
Consortium. As part of the consortia, districts have access to WIDA English Language Development
Standards and materials to provide a research-based framework for English language instruction.
These standards are aligned to key principles that Alaska feels meet the instructional needs of ELs.
This framework also aligns to Alaska’s challenging academic standards by integrating language
development with the appropriate academic content matter.

WIDA CLIMBS and WIDA CLIMBS Training of Trainers professional development opportunities are
available to teachers and districts to provide training on instructional strategies that specifically
address the needs of ELs and intentionally support the WIDA English Language Development
Standards.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 73

65



DEED will examine the reliability of the Alaska Developmental Profile (Alaska’s Kindergarten
Readiness tool) results for English Learners and identify additional actions that should be taken to
increase the reliability of the assessment for EL students.

DEED will develop strategies to provide guidance to LEAs on how to target and provide inclusive
family involvement to meet the needs of DLL and EL students. Strategies could include building family
engagement in screening and assessment tools, and development of activities that are geared
towards meeting the needs of families.

3. Monitoring and Technical Assistance (ESEA section 3113(b)(8)): Describe:
i How the SEA will monitor the progress of each eligible entity receiving a Title Ill, Part
A subgrant in helping English learners achieve English proficiency; and
ii. The steps the SEA will take to further assist eligible entities if the strategies funded
under Title IIl, Part A are not effective, such as providing technical assistance and
modifying such strategies.

The DEED Title IlI-A program is responsible for the oversight of the language instruction of English
learners and immigrant students. This program engages in the following strategies to ensure
successful language instruction:
o Administers grant programs that help students develop proficiency in English and achieve
high content standards.
e Monitors federal-funded programs and provides technical assistance that address outcomes
and accountability.

o DEED formally monitors districts on a five-year cycle. Desk audits are performed as
needed and are determined by a risk assessment process.

e Recommends policies that promote best practices for meeting the needs of English learners.

o Districts with more than eight English learners are required to submit a Plan of
Service outlining the identification and exit procedures for ELs as well as details
regarding how the district determines the needs of their EL population and services
provided. This is a five-year plan that is updated when the needs of the students or
services change. A current copy of the Plan of Service is also included in the district
Consolidated Application.

o A DEED team that includes the ACCESS for ELLs 2.0 program manager, Title Ill-A
program manager, and data management staff meet on a regular basis to discuss EL
related topics that include assessment scores and district programs. This team strives
to gain insight into the overall progress of English learners.

e The Title IlI-A program manager provides support to Title IlI-A schools, as well as districts with
more than eight English learners. Support includes:

o Updates and information regarding English learners in a weekly newsletter

Support and technical assistance in creating Plans of Service

Connecting districts with similar programs and/or challenges

Focused technical assistance during monitoring visits or desk audits
Updates on any policy or procedural requirements

Creating guidance to support districts and schools

Scheduled informational webinars

Providing information regarding WIDA materials and trainings

Acting as a liaison between other Title programs and the assessment team

O O O O O O O O

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 74

66



Technical Assistance for Supporting Early Learners
e Alaska will coordinate technical assistance and other related activities with the Head Start
Collaboration Office.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 75

67



F. Title IV, Part A: Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grants

1. Use of Funds (ESEA section 4103(c)(2)(A)): Describe how the SEA will use funds received under
Title IV, Part A, Subpart 1 for State-level activities.

Initially, DEED will utilize its Title IV Part A State funding for state-level activities to support school
health and safety. Alaska is disproportionately affected by behavioral health and social challenges
that negatively impact student health, behavior in the classroom, and learning. Examples of these
Alaska challenges include: the highest known incidence of Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorders in the
nation, one of the highest rates of child abuse and neglect, the highest rates of domestic violence and
sexual assault, high rates of substance abuse, and the highest rate of suicide in the nation. The impact
these issues/adverse childhood experiences have on Alaska’s students is significant, and DEED will
initially use the State’s portion of Title IV Part A funding (approximately $80,000) to expand the
training and cohesive professional development it provides to districts on critical health and safety
topics. DEED will deliver both face-to-face training and state-of-the-art asynchronous distance
delivered elLearning training to district personnel.

(A) Utilizing existing partnerships, DEED will expand its delivery of face-to-face health and safety
training to school and community members statewide. Mental health issues, which are often
either created or exacerbated by adverse childhood experiences, present a formidable barrier
to student learning/safety, and addressing the classroom behaviors that arise from
unaddressed mental health concerns is daunting for teachers. DEED will offer statewide
evidence-based training that increases knowledge of mental illnesses, increases first aid
delivered to youth, and reduces stigmas associated with mental illness with Title IV Part A
State funds. The training will provide the tools community members and school personnel
need to intervene when youth may be experiencing suicidal thoughts/behaviors, self-injury,
panic attacks, reactions to trauma, psychosis, substance abuse, and aggressive behaviors.
Additionally, the training will assist schools in becoming trauma sensitive and build statewide
capacity to address a broad spectrum of emergent health and safety priorities affecting
school-aged youth—such as, the state’s current opioid epidemic.

(B) DEED will expand its distance-delivered eLearning Program. This program currently offers 50
online courses to more than 16,000 users and employs state-of-the-art technology to deliver
timely and cost effective asynchronous educational training to teachers, other district
personnel, school service providers, and parents. This system offers educators and other
education stakeholders training on many health, safety, and educational topics that play a
vital role in improving academic achievement. District feedback on this system has been
positive—indicating it provides high quality training, limits the loss of teacher instructional
time often incurred by training, and saves them significant funding they would otherwise
spend on acquiring/delivering the training.

The eLearning Program delivers many courses on student health related topics like suicide
prevention, alcohol and drug related disabilities, child abuse and neglect prevention,
domestic violence and sexual assault prevention, and dating violence prevention that all
contribute to achieving trauma sensitive schools. DEED will expand its offerings to include
new courses on critical topics like adverse childhood experiences, trauma informed schools,
and opioid prevention/intervention. DEED will also update existing courses to keep them

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 68
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 76



current on best practices and emerging educational research. For example, DEED will partner
with its regional equity support center, the Western Educational Equity Assistance Center
within the Metropolitan State University of Denver, to update its eLearning training materials
on bullying, harassment, and intimidation prevention.

In addition to growing its health and safety course offerings, DEED envisions expanding its
utilization of the eLearning system to support districts both in understanding and
implementing ESSA.

(C) Finally, DEED will pass through 95 percent of Title IV Part A funding to districts. DEED will
utilize a portion of its Title IV Part A State-level activities funding to provide monitoring of,
and training, technical assistance, and capacity building, to the districts that receive the
preponderance of the Title IV Part A funds.

2. Awarding Subgrants (ESEA section 4103(c)(2)(B)): Describe how the SEA will ensure that awards
made to LEAs under Title IV, Part A, Subpart 1 are in amounts that are consistent with ESEA
section 4105(a)(2).

DEED’s Division of Finance and Support Services, Administrative Finance Unit will be responsible for
calculating district Title IV Part A allocations. These calculations will be determined in accordance with
this ESEA section’s minimum local education agency allocation requirement that no district receive
less than $10,000.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 69
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 77



G. Title IV, Part B: 215t Century Community Learning Centers

1. Use of Funds (ESEA section 4203(a)(2)): Describe how the SEA will use funds received under the
21st Century Community Learning Centers program, including funds reserved for State-level
activities.

In any given year, DEED will utilize up to the full seven percent of funds allowable for State usage to
complete some or all of the following activities:

e Write a Request for Application (RFA) that solicits grant proposals that will create or expand
community learning centers that support students’ academic and non-academic needs and satisfy
all 21 CCLC statutory requirements.

e Conduct the competitive application process that adheres to all 21°* CCLC statutory requirements.

e Provide a list of potential external organizations sub-grantees might partner with.

e Collect and submit all federally required 21°* CCLC data and reporting.

e Provide technical assistance and capacity building through online and in-person directors
meetings, a 21°* CCLC dedicated website, email messages, and individual calls and web-
conferencing.

e Collaborate to provide cohesive professional development on best practices through a state
conference on afterschool programs.

e Collaborate with and support a network of afterschool providers.

e Provide a state mentor as well as peer-level site visits.

e Monitor for compliance with state and federal statutes and regulations in accordance with the
Uniform Grant Guidance requirement to distinguish between low-risk and high-risk grantees.

e Work with an external evaluator to conduct evaluation processes and reports that lead to
continuous improvement cycles.

The focus of professional development and technical assistance will be guided by current needs of the
grantees, but has recently included STEM, inclusive programming, working with partners, structured
physical activity, hands-on math, project based learning, culturally-relevant programming, positive
youth development, and behavior management. In the future, DEED will be providing cohesive
professional development for grantees in the areas of trauma-informed instruction and the use of
technology to support individualized student learning.

2. Awarding Subgrants (ESEA section 4203(a)(4)): Describe the procedures and criteria the SEA will
use for reviewing applications and awarding 21st Century Community Learning Centers funds to
eligible entities on a competitive basis, which shall include procedures and criteria that take into
consideration the likelihood that a proposed community learning center will help participating
students meet the challenging State academic standards and any local academic standards.

DEED issues competitive grant awards as outlined in the Request for Applications (RFA). Each cycle,
the 21t CCLC State Director meets with their Division Director’s office and aligns any relevant state
and national priorities for serving the target populations within the grant application. The RFA
includes priorities mandated in federal 215 CCLC statute. Additionally, determinations are made
regarding whether to offer additional priority points to boost applications to serve areas or
populations that are underserved among the existing 215 CCLC grantees (e.g. high school programs,
rural programs) or to encourage applications that will support relevant State initiatives.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 70
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 78



Overall, the RFA is designed to promote the academic achievement of the students served through
the intentionality of the services outlined. In order to be funded, programs have to primarily target
academic improvement and be based upon a current needs assessment. Measures, such as
improvement of grades or standardized test scores and improved classroom academic and/or social-
emotional behaviors, are typically required performance measures for funded proposals.

Although the process may be adjusted or revised for a given year as DEED determines necessary, in
general, the RFA review cycle proceeds in the following manner to ensure the quality of funded
projects:

e The release of the RFA is announced through several different methods (e.g. email, website,
newspaper). Applicants typically have six to ten weeks to submit applications. During that time
the 21°* CCLC Program Manager offers technical assistance, primarily via webinar.

e With approval of DEED’s Commissioner of Education, the Program Manager assembles a balanced
review team that will ideally have strong knowledge of best practices in education and
afterschool, positive youth development, and grant management, as well as awareness of the
unique challenges faced in rural Alaska. All reviewers must be free from conflict of interest.

e Reviewers are gathered initially to go through the RFA and receive training on topics such as the
scoring rubric and eligible point values, applicants and potential conflicts of interest, all written
comments becoming public property, and guidance about DEED priority points for that RFA.

e The 21° CCLC Program Manager verifies the applications meet the eligibility criteria expressed in
the competitive RFA, such as the page limitations, deadline date for submission, and priority
points. Reviewers are given all eligible grant applications and are generally given two to four
weeks to review and initially score/rank all proposals. (While we prefer all reviewers to review
and score all applications, if we receive an overwhelming number of applications, we will revise
the process to use a two-tier scoring process.) Prior to the date of the final review, all reviewers
provide their initial scores on each application to the Program Manager. These scores are loaded
into a spreadsheet so that the sum totals can be viewed during the review.

e Reviewers gather and the Program Manager facilitates the conversation around each application,
providing an opportunity to have reviewers provide feedback for improvement or questions
regarding each section. These comments may be provided to the applicants along with their
scores. Where there are significant scoring differences, the program manager facilitates a
conversation around the scores, and reviewers are given an opportunity to change their scores
based on the discovery of information or lack thereof. Once the scores are adjusted based on the
conversation, the spreadsheet is revised for the new values, displaying the applicants based on
the total number of scoring points high to low. The reviewers then look at the eligible applicants
and their request for funding, deducting each fiscal request until there are no more funds
available. Reviewers may eliminate budgetary items they feel are excessive in order to reach
down to fund another applicant if desired.

e Once they have made a determination, the Program Manager re-checks all point values and sets
up a meeting with their Division’s Director’s office. During this meeting, the Program Manager

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 71
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 79



must explain the process used to select the grantees, show the Director the spreadsheet of
scores, and review any potential concerns with the selection process. The Director looks for any
oddities in scoring or potential challenges that cannot be defended. Once it is clear there are

none, the recommendations are forwarded through the Director’s Office to the Commissioner of

Education for final approval of release.

e All applicants are notified of the funding decisions and scores are provided. Successful applicants

are sent a Notice of Intent to award. If applicable, the Program Manager may request a revised

budget that addresses items such as unallowable or excessive costs that may have been identified

during the review process. Within the RFA, all applicants are made aware of Alaska’s funding

appeals process that is set by Alaska Administrative Code. No final awards are issued until after 30

days have passed without any applicant filing an official appeal.

Through the process described above, Alaska is able to select entities that are best able to operate
community learning centers that help participating students meet the challenging State academic
standards, as well as local academic standards.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 80

72



H. Title V, Part B, Subpart 2: Rural and Low-Income School Program

1. Outcomes and Objectives (ESSA Section 5223(b)(1)): Provide information on program objectives
and outcomes for activities under Title V, Part B, Subpart 2, including how the SEA will use funds to
help all students meet the challenging State standards.

Alaska is not applying to receive and administer Rural and Low-Income School Program (RLIS) funds to
eligible districts, and therefore, will not set State-level program objectives and outcomes for RLIS-
funded activities. Instead, as provided in ESSA section 5221, (a)(3)(A) and (C), Alaska will allow US ED
to distribute these funds directly to Alaska’s eligible districts beginning in the 2017-18 school year.
This will enable each eligible district the opportunity to set relevant and individual district-specific
objectives and outcomes when describing how the RLIS funds will help their students meet the
challenging State standards. DEED believes this will also help districts to better use this small amount
of funding by making it easier to blend and coordinate it with other district-specific funding and
initiatives.

There are several factors that support this as the best course of action for Alaska’s districts:

e Due to changes brought about by ESSA, approximately 25 of 54 Alaska districts will have the
option and necessity to choose between receiving the US ED-administered Small, Rural School
Achievement (SRSA) grant or the RLIS grant. Because of eligibility for RLIS being dependent
upon whether a district applied to US ED for SRSA funding, it seems more logical for Alaska
districts to simply apply to US ED for RLIS funds, too, instead of to DEED.

e Under ESSA, DEED anticipates the maximum amount of RLIS funding reserved for Alaska
would be $300,000 total. If these funds were distributed to eligible districts based on student
population, half the districts would receive awards of less than $5,000 per year, with some
awards being less than $1,000. At this time, DEED does not have the staffing capacity to
provide technical assistance on implementing RLIS activities and to report to US ED on
whether a sub-grantee receiving $1,000 has met State-determined program objectives and
outcomes.

e |na typical year, DEED strives to approve district ESEA funding in June and July. However, US
ED has indicated it will not be able to inform us which districts are eligible to apply for RLIS
funds prior to late July. How much RLIS funding Alaska is eligible for may be communicated
even later in the summer, and the actual award to DEED is not scheduled to happen until
September. This places the RLIS application on a different timeline than our other DEED
district application processes and thus reduces potential efficiency.

2. Technical Assistance (ESEA section 5223(b)(3)): Describe how the SEA will provide technical
assistance to eligible LEAs to help such agencies implement the activities described in ESEA section
5222.

Alaska is not applying to receive and administer RLIS funds to eligible districts and instead will allow
US ED to distribute the funds directly to Alaska’s eligible districts beginning in the 2017-18 school
year. DEED will provide information to Alaska districts to help them understand their eligibility.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 73
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 81



|. Education for Homeless Children and Youth program, McKinney-
Vento Homeless Assistance Act, Title VII, Subtitle B

1. Student Identification (722(g)(1)(B) of the McKinney-Vento Act): Describe the procedures the SEA
will use to identify homeless children and youth in the State and to assess their needs.

DEED will provide technical assistance and guidance to districts and schools on the identification of
homeless students.

Identification
In Alaska, the identification of homeless children and youth is the responsibility of the district. A
district-appointed Homeless Liaison, who will serve as the key contact for the school district will be
responsible for:
e Identification of homeless children and youth
o Providing the definition of homelessness to all school employees
o Implementing the appropriate processes and procedures for keeping track of and
reporting information regarding homeless students in the district to district and
school staff.
e Ensuring that the homeless student is able to enroll immediately and participate fully in
school.
e Informing parents and guardians of the rights of the student.
e Ensuring the public posting of educational rights throughout the school district and
community.
The liaison is responsible for training all school and district personnel on how to identify homeless
students using McKinney-Vento Eligibility Guidelines and ensuring that they have adequate
transportation to attend the school of origin and that all barriers to registration are eliminated. Other
duties of the liaison include:
e Determining the situation of the family and youth regarding the youth’s living arrangements.
e Using the definition of homelessness in the McKinney-Vento Act, to determine what services
the student is eligible for.
e Gathering additional information about the student from other agencies to assist with the
identification of homeless students and the determination of services to provide.

Needs Assessment

The primary responsibility for assessing the needs of homeless students and youth lies with the
district and school. The district’s needs assessment tool will identify the needs of the students and
organize the services that the students will receive.

2. Dispute Resolution (722(g)(1)(C) of the McKinney-Vento Act): Describe procedures for the prompt
resolution of disputes regarding the educational placement of homeless children and youth.

DEED has established a dispute resolution procedure process outlined in regulation. The regulation
requires the individual to first file a complaint with the district. If the complaint is not resolved by the
district, the individual may file a complaint with DEED according to the procedures outlined in the
regulation.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 74
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 82



3. Support for School Personnel (722(g)(1)(D) of the McKinney-Vento Act): Describe programs for
school personnel (including the LEA liaisons for homeless children and youth, principals and other
school leaders, attendance officers, teachers, enrollment personnel, and specialized instructional
support personnel) to heighten the awareness of such school personnel of the specific needs of
homeless children and youth, including runaway and homeless children and youth.

DEED will provide ongoing technical assistance and guidance as needed to all school personnel on the
requirements of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Education Program. District Homeless Liaisons will be
provided with training guidelines and training updates as they become available. Training
opportunities include face-to-face training at the Annual Technical Assistance Workshop (Federal
Programs), weekly newsletter updates, updated information as it becomes available via email, and
webinars.

DEED will also conduct monitoring visits to all districts during scheduled ESEA monitoring visits.
During these visits, DEED program managers will provide individualized technical assistance to
Homeless Liaisons to ensure all processes and procedures meet the requirements outlined in the
McKinney-Vento Education Act.

Additional support includes:
e  Weekly newsletter
e Webinar trainings
e Resources for district homeless training sessions

4. Access to Services (722(g)(1)(F) of the McKinney-Vento Act): Describe procedures that ensure
that:

i. Homeless children have access to public preschool programs, administered by the SEA or
LEA, as provided to other children in the State;

ii. Homeless youth and youth separated from public schools are identified and accorded
equal access to appropriate secondary education and support services, including by
identifying and removing barriers that prevent youth described in this clause from
receiving appropriate credit for full or partial coursework satisfactorily completed while
attending a prior school, in accordance with State, local, and school policies; and

iii. Homeless children and youth who meet the relevant eligibility criteria do not face barriers
to accessing academic and extracurricular activities, including magnet school, summer
school, career and technical education, advanced placement, online learning, and charter
school programes, if such programs are available at the State and local levels.

DEED ensures preschool-aged children experiencing homelessness have the same access to early
childhood and preschool programs as all other students. Solutions to the barriers described below
apply to early childhood and preschool students to ensure they are able to attend school
immediately.

Information gathered from a Student Residency Questionnaire will help district liaisons connect
homeless, unaccompanied youth with service providers who will advocate on behalf of the children
and youth to ensure they have the opportunity to return to school and participate in these programs.
The State homeless coordinator works with district liaisons and school counselors at the secondary

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 75
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 83



level to make sure homeless youth are receiving appropriate credit for full or partial coursework in
accordance with State, local, and school policies.

Every effort will be made by the districts and schools to remove barriers to homeless children and
youth participating in all academic and extracurricular activities. DEED will work with state athletic
associations to ensure access and opportunity is available for all students.

5. Strategies to Address Other Problems (722(g)(1)H) of the McKinney-Vento Act): Provide
strategies to address other problems with respect to the education of homeless children and
youth, including problems resulting from enrollment delays that are caused by:

i Requirements of immunization and other required health records;
ii. Residency requirements;
iii. Lack of birth certificates, school records, or other documents;
iv. Guardianship issues; or
V. Uniform or dress code requirements

Processes and procedures in Alaska allow any homeless student or youth to enroll immediately.
Verification of these policies will occur during scheduled ESEA monitoring visits.

Immunization and other required health records:

Homeless students may provisionally enroll in a public school for a period of up to 30 days while proof
of immunization records are obtained. Upon enrollment, the Homeless Liaison is contacted to help
facilitate obtaining immunization records or immunizations for the students as necessary. The Alaska
Division of Public Health works with the district to ensure the proper services are provided so the
student can attend school immediately.

Residency requirements:

The district will have a Student Residency Questionnaire (nighttime living status of every student).
This form will ask questions about the family, where the family is staying, and siblings. The district
liaison can coordinate with various agencies and service providers who work with homeless youth.

Lack of birth certificates, school records, or other documents:
DEED verifies that district policies provide for time-line waivers for producing medical, school, and
other records so that homeless students can immediately be enrolled in school.

Guardianship issues:

DEED verifies that districts have developed a caregiver form establishing responsibilities of caregivers
that requests their contact information replace traditional proof of guardianship. This form should not
create further barriers or delay school enroliment.

Uniform or dress code requirements:
DEED verifies that district policies provide waivers for uniform fees so that homeless students may
fully participate in all aspects of school immediately.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 76
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 84



6. Policies to Remove Barriers (722(g)(1)(l) of McKinney-Vento Act) Demonstrate that the SEA and
LEAs in the State have developed, and shall review and revise, policies to remove barriers to the
identification of homeless children and youth in schools in the State, including barriers to
enrollment and retention due to outstanding fees or fines, or absences.

DEED verifies that district liaisons and district policies and practices do not act as barriers to enrolling
homeless students, including public notices of rights, enrollment assistance, waivers for producing
medical records, school records, or other potential obstacles to enroliment.

7. Assistance for Counselors (722(g)(2)(K)): A description of how youths described in section 725(2)
will receive assistance from counselors to advise such youths, and prepare and improve the
readiness of such youths for college.

A multi-program approach is used to support counselors assisting homeless students.

To support homeless students and youth prepare for college and career readiness, DEED will provide
support and resources to counselors to assist these students, as well as provide information regarding

resources for:

DEED’s School Health and Safety Team provides school counselors with information and
support on:

o Trauma-informed schools

o Suicide prevention

o Partnerships with State agencies that provide health and safety related services

The Federal Programs team provides support and guidance about funding available through
Title I-A to support homeless students.

Credit Recovery

Tutoring

ACT/SAT fee assistance

FAFSA application assistance for special circumstances
Alaska Performance Scholarship requirements

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 77
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 85



Appendix A: Measures of interim progress

Instructions: Each SEA must include the measurements of interim progress toward meeting the long-term
goals for academic achievement, graduation rates, and English language proficiency, set forth in the

State’s response to Title I, Part A question 4.iii, for all students and separately for each subgroup of

students, including those listed in response to question 4.i.a. of this document. For academic achievement
and graduation rates, the State’s measurements of interim progress must take into account the
improvement necessary on such measures to make significant progress in closing statewide proficiency
and graduation rate gaps.

A. Academic Achievement

Goal of Reduce by 1/2 percentage not proficient or above by 2027; equal

Long
Term
estimated Measures of Interim Progress Goal
baseline* [ Year1 |Year2| Year3 | Year4 | Year5 | Year6 |Year7 | Year 8 | Year 9 | Year 10
annual
2016- 2017- |2018- | 2019- | 2020- | 2021- | 2022- | 2023- | 2024- | 2025- | 2026- |increment
ELA 2017 2018 2019 | 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 | 2025 | 2026 2027 needed
All students 34.8 38.1 41.3 44.6 47.8 51.1 54.4 57.6 60.9 64.1 67.4 3.3
SWDs 7.9 12.5 17.1 21.7 26.3 30.9 35.5 40.1 44.7 49.3 54.0 4.6
ELs 4.4 9.2 14.0 18.7 23.5 28.3 33.1 37.9 42.6 47.4 52.2 4.8
Ec Disadvantaged 20.3 24.3 28.3 32.3 36.2 40.2 44.2 48.2 52.2 56.2 60.2 4.0
AK Native/Al 13.6 17.9 22.2 26.6 30.9 35.2 39.5 43.8 48.2 52.5 56.8 4.3
Caucasian 47.5 50.1 52.8 55.4 58.0 60.6 63.3 65.9 68.5 71.1 73.8 2.6
Asian/Pac s 27.7 31.3 34.9 38.5 42.2 45.8 49.4 53.0 56.6 60.2 63.9 3.6
African Am 23.6 27.4 31.2 35.1 38.9 427 46.5 50.3 54.2 58.0 61.8 3.8
Hispanic 315 34.9 38.4 41.8 45.2 48.6 52.1 55.5 58.9 62.3 65.8 3.4
Two/More Races 37.0 40.2 433 46.5 49.6 52.8 55.9 59.1 62.2 65.4 68.5 3.2
*modeled on 2015 data, will be updated with 2017 assessment data
Goal of Reduce by 1/2 percentage not proficient or above by 2027; equal
Long
Term
estimated Measures of Interim Progress Goal
baseline* | Year1 |Year2| Year3 | Year4 | Year5 | Year6 |Year7 | Year 8 | Year 9 | Year 10
annual
2016- 2017- |2018-| 2019- | 2020- | 2021- | 2022- | 2023- | 2024- | 2025- | 2026- |increment
Math 2017 2018 2019 | 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 | 2025 | 2026 2027 needed
All students 31.2 34.6 38.1 415 45.0 48.4 51.8 55.3 58.7 62.2 65.6 3.4
SWDs 7.9 12.5 17.1 21.7 26.3 30.9 35.5 40.1 44.7 49.3 54.0 4.6
ELs 7.9 12.5 17.1 21.7 26.3 30.9 35.5 40.1 44.7 49.3 54.0 4.6
Ec Disadvantaged 18.8 22.9 26.9 31.0 35.0 39.1 43.2 47.2 51.3 55.3 59.4 4.1
AK Native/Al 13.9 18.2 22.5 26.8 31.1 35.4 39.7 44.0 48.3 52.6 57.0 4.3
Caucasian 41 44.0 46.9 49.9 52.8 55.8 58.7 61.7 64.6 67.6 70.5 3.0
Asian/Pacls 30.1 33.6 37.1 40.6 44.1 47.6 51.1 54.6 58.1 61.6 65.1 3.5
African Am 19.6 23.6 27.6 31.7 35.7 39.7 43.7 47.7 51.8 55.8 59.8 4.0
Hispanic 25.9 29.6 33.3 37.0 40.7 44.4 48.1 51.8 55.5 59.2 63.0 3.7
Two/More Races 33.2 36.5 39.9 43.2 46.6 49.9 53.2 56.6 59.9 63.3 66.6 33
*modeled on 2015 data, will be updated with 2017 assessment data
78

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development

7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 86



Appendix A: Measures of interim progress

B. Graduation Rates

4-Year Adjust Cohort Graduation Rate Goal of 90% by 2026-2027

Long Term
estimated Measures of Interim Progress Goal
baseline* | Year 1 | Year 2 | Year 3 | Year 4 | Year5 | Year 6 | Year 7 | Year 8 | Year 9 | Year 10
annual
2016- 2017- | 2018- | 2019- | 2020- | 2021- | 2022- | 2023- | 2024- | 2025- | 2026- |[increment
2017 2018 | 2019 | 2020 | 2021 | 2022 | 2023 | 2024 | 2025 | 2026 2027 needed
All students 76.1 77.5 78.9 80.3 81.7 83.1 84.4 85.8 87.2 88.6 90.0 14
SWDs 53.9 57.5 61.1 64.7 68.3 72.0 75.6 79.2 82.8 86.4 90.0 3.6
ELLs 54.7 58.2 61.8 65.3 68.8 724 75.9 79.4 82.9 86.5 90.0 35
Ec Dis 68.4 70.6 72.7 74.9 77.0 79.2 814 83.5 85.7 87.8 90.0 2.2
AK Nat/Al 64.1 66.7 69.3 71.9 74.5 77.1 79.6 82.2 84.8 87.4 90.0 2.6
Caucasian 80.8 81.7 82.6 83.6 84.5 85.4 86.3 87.2 88.2 89.1 90.0 0.9
Asian/PI 81.3 82.2 83.0 83.9 84.8 85.7 86.5 87.4 88.3 89.1 90.0 0.9
Af Am 74.4 76.0 77.5 79.1 80.6 82.2 83.8 85.3 86.9 88.4 90.0 1.6
Hispanic 76.0 77.4 78.8 80.2 81.6 83.0 84.4 85.8 87.2 88.6 90.0 14
Two/More 75.4 76.9 78.3 79.8 81.2 82.7 84.2 85.6 87.1 88.5 90.0 15
*estimate based on 2015-2016 data, will be updated to reflect new baseline with 2016-2017 data
5-Year Adjust Cohort Graduation Rate Goal of 93% by 2026-2027
Long
Term
estimated Measures of Interim Progress Goal
baseline* | Year 1 | Year 2 | Year 3 |Year4 | Year5 | Year 6 | Year 7 | Year 8 | Year 9 | Year 10
annual
2016- 2017- | 2018- | 2019- | 2020- | 2021- | 2022- | 2023- | 2024- | 2025- | 2026- |[increment
2017 2018 | 2019 | 2020 | 2021 | 2022 | 2023 | 2024 | 2025 | 2026 2027 needed
All students 80.8 82.0 83.2 84.5 85.7 86.9 88.1 89.3 90.6 91.8 93.0 1.2
SWDs 65.8 68.5 71.3 74.0 76.7 79.4 82.1 84.8 87.6 90.3 93.0 2.7
ELs 64.6 67.5 70.3 73.1 76.0 78.8 81.6 84.5 87.3 90.2 93.0 2.8
Ec Dis 75.3 77.1 78.9 80.6 824 84.2 85.9 87.7 89.5 91.2 93.0 1.8
AK Nat/Al 70.9 73.1 75.3 77.5 79.8 82.0 84.2 86.4 88.6 90.8 93.0 2.2
Caucasian 83.9 84.8 85.7 86.6 87.5 88.5 89.4 90.3 91.2 921 93.0 0.9
Asian/PI 87.7 88.2 88.7 89.3 89.8 90.3 90.9 914 91.9 925 93.0 0.5
Af Am 75.9 77.6 79.3 81.0 82.7 84.5 86.2 87.9 89.6 91.3 93.0 1.7
Hispanic 78.1 79.6 81.1 82.6 84.1 85.6 87.0 88.5 90.0 91.5 93.0 15
Two/More 82.1 83.2 84.3 85.4 86.5 87.6 88.6 89.7 90.8 91.9 93.0 1.1
*estimate based on 2015-2016 data, will be updated to reflect new baseline with 2016-2017 data
Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 79

7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 87



Appendix A: Measures of interim progress

C. Progress in Achieving English Language Proficiency

Progress toward Attaining English Proficiency Goal of 80% by 2026-2027

Long
Term
estimated Measures of Interim Progress Goal
baseline*| Year1 | Year 2| Year3 | Year4 | Year 5 | Year 6 | Year 7 | Year 8| Year 9 |Year 10
annual
2016- 2017- [ 2018- | 2019- | 2020- | 2021- | 2022-| 2023- | 2024- | 2025- | 2026~ |incremen
2017 2018 | 2019 | 2020 | 2021 | 2022 | 2023 | 2024 | 2025 | 2026 | 2027 | tneeded
All English
learners 47.5 50.8 54.0 57.3 60.5 63.8 670 | 703 | 735 | 76.8 80.0 3.3
*estimate based on 2014-2015 data, will be updated to reflect new baseline with 2016-2017 data
Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 80

7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 88




Appendix B

OMB Control No. 1894-0005 (Exp. 03/31/2017)

NOTICE TO ALL APPLICANTS

The purpose of this enclosure is to inform you about a new provision in the Department of Education's General
Education Provisions Act (GEPA) that applies to applicants for new grant awards under Department programs. This
provision is Section 427 of GEPA, enacted as part of the Improving America's Schools Act of 1994 (Public Law (P.L.)
103-382).

To Whom Does This Provision Apply?

Section 427 of GEPA affects applicants for new grant awards under this program. ALL APPLICANTS FOR NEW
AWARDS MUST INCLUDE INFORMATION IN THEIR APPLICATIONS TO ADDRESS THIS NEW PROVISION IN ORDER
TO RECEIVE FUNDING UNDER THIS PROGRAM.

(If this program is a State-formula grant program, a State needs to provide this description only for projects or
activities that it carries out with funds reserved for State-level uses. In addition, local school districts or other eligible
applicants that apply to the State for funding need to provide this description in their applications to the State for
funding. The State would be responsible for ensuring that the school district or other local entity has submitted a
sufficient section 427 statement as described below.)

What Does This Provision Require?

Section 427 requires each applicant for funds (other than an individual person) to include in its application a
description of the steps the applicant proposes to take to ensure equitable access to, and participation in, its
Federally-assisted program for students, teachers, and other program beneficiaries with special needs. This
provision allows applicants discretion in developing the required description. The statute highlights six types of
barriers that can impede equitable access or participation: gender, race, national origin, color, disability, or age.
Based on local circumstances, you should determine whether these or other barriers may prevent your students,
teachers, etc. from such access or participation in, the Federally-funded project or activity. The description in your
application of steps to be taken to overcome these barriers need not be lengthy; you may provide a clear and succinct
description of how you plan to address those barriers that are applicable to your circumstances. In addition, the
information may be provided in a single narrative, or, if appropriate, may be discussed in connection with related
topics in the application.

Section 427 is not intended to duplicate the requirements of civil rights statutes, but rather to ensure that, in
designing their projects, applicants for Federal funds address equity concerns that may affect the ability of certain
potential beneficiaries to fully participate in the project and to achieve to high standards. Consistent with program
requirements and its approved application, an applicant may use the Federal funds awarded to it to eliminate
barriers it identifies.

What are Examples of How an Applicant Might Satisfy the Requirement of This Provision?
The following examples may help illustrate how an applicant may comply with Section 427.

(1) An applicant that proposes to carry out an adult literacy project serving, among others, adults with limited
English proficiency, might describe in its application how it intends to distribute a brochure about the proposed
project to such potential participants in their native language.

(2) An applicant that proposes to develop instructional materials for classroom use might describe how it will
make the materials available on audio tape or in braille for students who are blind.

(3) An applicant that proposes to carry out a model science program for secondary students and is concerned
that girls may be less likely than boys to enroll in the course, might indicate how it intends to conduct "outreach"
efforts to girls, to encourage their enroliment.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 81
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 89



Appendix B

(4) An applicant that proposes a project to increase school safety might describe the special efforts it will take
to address concern of lesbian, gay, bisexual, and transgender students, and efforts to reach out to and involve
the families of LGBT students

We recognize that many applicants may already be implementing effective steps to ensure equity of access and
participation in their grant programs, and we appreciate your cooperation in responding to the requirements of this
provision.

Alaska Department of Education and Early Development 82
7/13/17 Draft 2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 90



To:  Members of the State Board of July 14, 2017
Education & Early Development

From: Michael Johnson, Commissioner Agenda Item: 2

¢ ISSUE

The board is being asked to adopt regulations related to assessments and assessment achievement
level scores on the Performance Evaluation for Alaska’s Schools assessments in English
language arts and math and for the Alternate Assessments in science.

¢+ BACKGROUND
e Currently, Alaska regulation 4 AAC 06.737 requires districts to administer standards-
based assessments in English language arts and mathematics annually to every student in
grades three through ten. The proposed change in the regulation would allow the
department the flexibility to test in only one grade in high school.

e The new Performance Evaluation for Alaska’s Schools (PEAKS) assessments for English
language arts (ELA) and mathematics were administered in spring 2017.

e New assessments require the development of new score ranges to determine student
performance in each achievement level. These score ranges are adopted in regulations.

e Onthe PEAKS ELA and math assessments, students score on a scale placing them into
one of four achievement levels. Based on stakeholder feedback, the four achievement
levels proposed are: advanced, proficient, below proficient, and far below proficient.
Students who score at the proficient or advanced level are meeting the standards.

e The “cut points” that are proposed to set the ranges of scores for each PEAKS
achievement level were determined through a process of review called “standard setting.”
Alaskan educators participated in this process May 30-June 3 to determine recommended
cut points for the score ranges. The work is based on achievement level descriptors that
had been drafted by Alaskan educators in April 2017.

e The proposed methodology used for setting the score ranges was reviewed and approved
by the Alaska Technical Advisory Committee in May.

e The Alaska Alternate assessment (AA) is taken by students with severe cognitive
disabilities. Alaska students participated in the Dynamic Learning Maps (DLM) science
assessment for the first time in 2017. The items on the science AA are linked to the
science standards.

e On the Alaska Alternate assessment in science, students’ scores place them into one of

four achievement categories: emerging, approaching target, at target, or advanced (from
low to high).

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 91



e Panelists from partner states that use the assessment participated in the standard setting
event in Kansas City, MO from June 15-17, 2016. The majority of panelists were
educators with experience in science and/or in teaching students with significant
cognitive disabilities. The DLM Technical Advisory Committee reviewed methodology
and cut scores and state partners accepted the recommended scores.

e Behind this cover memo are: 1) the proposed regulations, 2) public comment, 3) the
process for the proposed assessment scores, and 4) the data from the proposed assessment
scores.

e Margaret MacKinnon, Federal Programs Coordinator will be present to brief the board.

¢ OPTIONS
This is a work session item. Action will take place under Agenda Item 3A.

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 92



Register , 2017 EDUCATION AND EARLY DEV.

Amended version for consideration of State Board of Education and Early Development at
meeting of July 14, 2017

4 AAC 06.737 is amended to read:

4 AAC 06.737. Standards-based test. The commissioner will select a standards-based
test to estimate the degree to which students have mastered the state's standards for English
language arts, mathematics, and science. For school years 2012 - 2014, the standards-based test
must test for mastery of the reading, writing, mathematics, and science standards described in the
department'’s publication Alaska Standards: Content and Performance Standards for Alaska
Students, as revised as of March 2006, and adopted by reference for purposes of administering a
standards-based test through school year 2013 - 2014. For school years after school year 2013 -
2014, the standards-based test must test for mastery of the English language arts, mathematics,
and science standards adopted by reference in 4 AAC 04.140(a). Except for students eligible for
an alternate assessment under 4 AAC 06.775(b), each district shall administer the standards-
based test in English language arts and mathematics annually to every student in grades three

through eight and in one or more years, as determined by the commissioner, in grades nine

through 12 [TEN], and each district shall administer the standards-based test in science annually
to every student in grades four, eight, and ten. (Eff. 3/3/2000, Register 153; am 9/11/2004,
Register 171; am 11/10/2005, Register 176; am 5/18/2006, Register 178; am 10/16/2012,
Register 204; am 12/26/2014, Register 212;am ___ /|, Register __ )

Authority:  AS 14.07.020 AS 14.07.060

4 AAC 06.739(b) is repealed and readopted to read:
(b) Achievement levels for English language arts and mathematics are advanced,

proficient, below proficient, or far below proficient. Students obtaining achievement levels of

1

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 93



Register

2017 EDUCATION AND EARLY DEV.

proficient or advanced meet standards. To obtain an achievement level of advanced, proficient,

below proficient, or far below proficient in English language arts and mathematics, a student

must obtain a score as set out in the following table:

Achievement
Level

Grade 3

Grade 4

Grade 5

Grade 6

Grade 7

Grade 8

Grade 9

Grade 10

English

language arts:

Advanced

542 - 600

538 - 600

548 - 600

551 - 600

546 - 600

541 - 600

535 - 600

535 - 600

English

language arts:

Proficient

500 - 541

500 - 537

500 - 547

500 - 550

500 - 545

500 - 540

500 - 534

500 - 534

English

language arts:

Below
Proficient

464 - 499

468 - 499

464 - 499

473 - 499

471 - 499

469 - 499

471 - 499

470 - 499

English

language arts:

Far Below
Proficient

400 - 463

400 - 467

400 - 463

400 - 472

400 - 470

400 - 468

400 - 470

400 - 469

Mathematics:
Advanced

554 - 600

559 - 600

568 - 600

554 - 600

559 - 600

562 - 600

570 - 600

568 - 600

Mathematics:
Proficient

500 - 553

500 - 558

500 - 567

500 - 553

500 - 558

500 - 561

500 - 569

500 - 567

Mathematics:
Below
Proficient

458 - 499

460 - 499

462 - 499

454 - 499

451 - 499

448 - 499

450 - 499

445 - 499

Mathematics:

Far Below
Proficient

400 - 457

400 - 459

400 - 461

400 - 453

400 - 450

400 - 447

400 - 449

400 - 444

2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 94




Register , 2017 EDUCATION AND EARLY DEV.

(Eff. 3/16/2001, Register 157; am 11/23/2003, Register 168; am 9/4/2005, Register 175; am
5/18/2006, Register 178; am 9/3/2006, Register 179; am 9/27/2008, Register 187; am
|| Register )

Authority:  AS 14.03.015 AS 14.07.030 AS 14.07.060

AS 14.07.020

The introductory language of 4 AAC 06.775(b) is amended to read:

(b) The commissioner shall select an alternate assessment for use in this state, to be
known as the Alaska Alternate Assessment, for assessment of students with significant cognitive
disabilities who are not able to complete either regular curricular offerings or substitute courses
under 4 AAC 06.078 that would lead to a diploma. A student's eligibility for the Alaska
Alternate Assessment shall be established in the student's IEP in accordance with the criteria in
the Participation Guidelines for Alaska Students in State Assessments, adopted by reference in
(a) of this section. Each district shall administer the Alaska Alternate Assessment to eligible
students whenever it administers the state assessments described in 4 AAC 06.710. Achievement

levels for the English language arts, [AND] mathematics,and science Alaska Alternate

Assessment are advanced, at target, approaching target, or emerging. Students obtaining an
achievement level of advanced or at target meet standards. [ACHIEVEMENT LEVELS FOR
THE SCIENCE ALASKA ALTERNATE ASSESSMENT ARE ADVANCED, PROFICIENT,
BELOW PROFICIENT, OR FAR BELOW PROFICIENT. STUDENTS OBTAINING AN
ACHIEVEMENT LEVEL OF ADVANCED OR PROFICIENT MEET STANDARDS.] To

obtain an achievement level in

3

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 95



Register , 2017 EDUCATION AND EARLY DEV.

4 AAC 06.775(b)(2) is repealed and readopted to read:
(2) science on the Alaska Alternate Assessment, a student must obtain a score as

set out in the following table:

Achievement Grade 4 |Grade 8 |Grade 10

Level
Science: 21 or 23 or 23 or
Advanced above above above

Science: At 15-20 16-22 16-22

Target

Science: 9-14 10-15 8-15
Approaching

Target

Science: 8 or 9or 7 or
Emerging below |below |below

(Eff. 12/19/2002, Register 164; am 9/17/2004, Register 171; am 11/10/2005, Register 176; am
10/18/2007, Register 184; am 11/10/2007, Register 184; am 9/27/2008, Register 187; am
6/11/2010, Register 194; am 10/3/2011, Register 200; am 4/20/2012, Register 202; am
12/26/2014, Register 212; am 3/4/2015, Register 213; am 5/15/2015, Register 214; am

| | Register )

Authority:  AS 14.03.075 AS 14.07.060 AS 14.07.165

AS 14.07.020

4

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 96



This page intentionally left blank.

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 97



Anchorage School District

Education Center
5630 E. Northern Lights Blvd. « Anchorage, AK 99504 « 907-742-4000 « www.asdk12.0rg

July 12, 2017

Alaska Department of Education & Early Development
ATTN: Regulations Review

801 West Tenth Street, Suite 200

Juneau, Alaska 99811-0500.

Dear Commissioner Johnson,

The Anchorage School District is respectfully submitting public comment in response
to the following proposed regulation change:

4 AAC 06.737 is proposed to be amended to require school districts to annually
administer statewide assessments in English language arts and mathematics in grades
three through eight and at least once in grades nine through twelve. This would
replace the requirement that the assessments be administered in grades three through
ten.

The Anchorage School District is in favor of this change to test one grade at high school
versus the current requirement to test both ninth and tenth grades. This adjustment
would positively impact high schools by conserving valuable technology resources for
teaching, maximizing classroom instructional time, and reducing the amount of testing
required while still ensuring quality data be available for accountability and decision-
making.

Please consider the following recommendations under this regulation change:

* Test ninth grade, including science, which would allow vertical continuity of
state testing results and still only require one grade level be tested.

o This revision could potentially support fewer parent refusals since AS)'s
data shows a significant increase of opt outs occurring at grade 10.

e If students miss the opportunity to test at grade nine, there is no requirement
they are tested at a different high school grade. This is a difficult tracking
process and places an undue burden on district resources. Please reference the
WorkKeys requirement in previous state regulation.

We appreciate the opportunity to offer input on the proposed legislation and your
consideration of our suggested revisions.

Respectfully,

ok

Dr. Deena M. Bishop
Superintendent

Educaring All Students for Success in Life

Anchorage School Board  Tam Agosti-Gisler, President
Starr Marsett, Vice President Elisa Snelling, Treasurer Dave Donley
Kathleen Plunkett, Clerk Bettye Davis Andy Holleman

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 98

Superintendent  Dr. Deena Bishap



Sypeck, Shawn (EED)

From: April D. Scott <April.Scott@kl12northstar.org>

Sent: Wednesday, July 12, 2017 12:44 PM

To: Sypeck, Shawn (EED)

Cc: Melanie L. Hadaway

Subject: Adoption Changes to Title 4 of Alaska Admin Code dealing with Assessments

Good afternoon,

| am emailing to submit my written comments regarding the Adoption Changes to Title 4 of Alaska Administrative Code
dealing with assessments.

1. The assessments are based on state standards at specific grade-levels. Traditionally and somewhat typically students
learn at the same rate and grade-level in their academic studies. This becomes less true as students near high school.
Some middle school students are taking Algebra 1 or even Geometry prior to high school. In the high school,
freshmen are taking a variety of math courses. Freshmen may be taking: Pre-Algebra/Fundamentals, Algebra 1,
Geometry, Geometry Honors, or even Algebra 2. The 9th grade level standards contains Algebra and Geometry. Thus,
students who aren’t taking Geometry are at a disadvantage on those questions. Students in Pre-Algebra face a higher
disadvantage; whereas Algebra 2 students may have Geometry background, but they may not have the formulas
memorized that would assist them in successfully completing problems they may have learned a year prior.
Therefore, | would recommend moving from grade-level standards in math and move toward content-level standards
instead. This would provide a more accurate view or reflection of a student’s ability level based on material they have
been exposed to versus WILL be or exposed to or WERE exposed to but would have to keep a formula memorized.

2. I would recommend considering having a formula reference sheet available. This will help move from having the
distractor of assessing a student’s ability to memorize a formula. If we are concerned about having a “plug — n — play”
situation if we provide the formula for the problem...the reference sheet will remove this issue because it would
contain formulas, but students would need to know which formula would be appropriate to use in any given
situation.

Finally, | appreciate the opportunity to participate and provide my feedback, especially after my participation in the state
alignment work sessions earlier this spring in Anchorage.

Sincerely,

April Scott

Secondary Curriculum Coordinator/

Outside Credit/APS/Challenge Exams
Fairbanks North Star Borough School District
907-452-2000 ext 11477

“The problem is not the problem. The problem is your attitude about the problem. Do you understand?” — Jack Sparrow

This message, including any attachments, is intended solely for the use of the named recipient(s) and may
contain confidential and/or privileged information. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure or distribution of
this communication(s) is expressly prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender by
reply email and destroy any and all copies of the original message.

1
July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 99



Sypeck, Shawn (EED)

From: AMY SPARGO <Amy.Spargo@matsukl2.us>

Sent: Tuesday, July 11, 2017 8:56 AM

To: Sypeck, Shawn (EED)

Cc: MELISSA SADLOWSKI; MONICA GOYETTE

Subject: Written Comments for changes to Title 4 AK Admin Code-Assessment

Dear Mr. Sypeck,

The written comments below relate to draft changes to Alaska Administrative Code for assessment.

4AAC 06.737 MSBSD fully supports and appreciates this proposed change so that students are tested every year grades
3-8, and only once in high school. It would be our hope that the high school assessment has strong predictive value to
college and career readiness. We would support using PSAT, SAT, or ACT for high school, as this would be one less
assessment parents would need to pay for, and already has community support.

4AAC 06.739(b) MSBSD appreciates the process of setting a range of scores for each of the four achievement levels in
the statewide English language arts and mathematics assessments. That being said, our hope is that the calibration of
these scores continues through the use of linking studies between NWEA MAP and PEAKS. Similar to most Alaskan
districts, we use NWEA MAP to monitor student growth and to make data-driven instructional decisions. Student
performance on MAP must have a clear correlation to achievement on PEAKS for teachers and parents to utilize this
assessment in a formative manner.

4AAC 06.775(b) MSBSD supports the changes and thinks it is in the best interest of parent understanding to have the
levels of proficiency in science reflect the other proficiency levels of the alternative assessment.

4AAC 06.775(b)(2) No additional comments on this change.

Thank you again for this opportunity to provide comment.
Sincerely,

Amy Spargo - Assistant Superintendent of Instruction
Matanuska-Susitna Borough School District

501 N. Gulkana Street, Palmer, Alaska, 99645

Ph: 907-746-9212

www.matsuk12.us

Disclaimer Notice: This email and any attachments to it may be confidential and are intended solely for the use of the individual to whom it is
addressed. Any views or opinions expressed are solely those of the author and do not necessarily represent those of the Matanuska-Susitna Borough
School District. If you are not an intended recipient for this email, you are hereby notified that this is not a waiver of confidentiality and that you must not
take any action based upon its contents, and any dissemination, distribution, or copying of this information is strictly prohibited.

If you believe you have received this information in error, please notify the sender immediately by reply email and immediately delete this message from
your system.

July 14, 2017 Boa}d Packet, Page 100



Sypeck, Shawn (EED)

From: Rufner_Daniel <Rufner_Daniel@asdkl12.org>
Sent: Sunday, July 09, 2017 6:43 PM

To: Sypeck, Shawn (EED)

Cc: Azzam_Imtiaz

Subject: Re: Comment on proposed changes to assessment

| submitted this last month. | would like to now add that given we have no PEAKS assessment results it makes that
assessment even more useless than detailed below as we can’t use any of the data in planning for student placement for
the 2017-18 school year, which is now happening with registration three weeks away.

Dan Rufner

Counselor, Robert Service High School

Boys Soccer Coach

http://www.asdk12.org/staff/rufner_daniel/

http://www.servicesoccer.com<http://www.servicesoccer.com/>

907-742-8114

OnlJun 21, 2017, at 8:29 AM, Dan Rufner <Rufner_Daniel@asdk12.org<mailto:Rufner_Daniel@asdk12.org>> wrote:

First, I will acknowledge that | am not a principal or administrator so it sometimes seems our voices are not valued as
much in those positions.

However, i would argue that | more direct experience and knowledge of testing administration and data use than the
the majority of those in those positions:

I have been a counselor in the Anchorage School District for sixteen years.

I was a middle school counselor for ten years. For nine of those years | was both the department chair at my school as
well as the lead Middle School Counselor for ASD.

I have been a counselor at Service High for six years.

I have been the test coordinator (SBA, HSGQE, AMP, PEAKS, NAEP, PSAT....) for fourteen years, so | have more practical
knowledge of administration and data than most.

So | do feel | have exceptional experience in testing administration as well as using the data effectively to help students.

| will start by saying | am not completely opposed to testing. At the middle school level we did use assessment data
regularly to assist in placing students in support classes, make recommendations for high school placement in both
support and honors classes, used assessment data to both determine IEP and 504 qualifications as well as goals for
students on said plans, and to provide information to teachers to help them understand gaps in student learning.

So at some level | do think standardized assessment does serve a purpose beyond just meeting federal regulations.

However, in six years at the high school level | have not seen any example of how this data is used for student support.
High school is all about credits, not placement. If a student succeeds in math they go to the next level; if the don’t
succeed they try again or go to a remediation level. No data from assessments influences this. True, the initial
placement is based on partially on assessment data and teacher recommendation, but that stems from 8th grade.

in English there is no choice - they simply pass the class. The data on students arrives so late and is so non-specfiic that
there is nothing for teachers to build on to help struggling students.

The science portion is not used at all. The science department chair at our building for 15 years says neither our school
nor the district has ever had any discussions on the data as to what it means or how to use it. If the largest district in the
state completely ignores the science data what use could it possibly be?

Simply stated, there is no possible effective use for assessment data in high school (we have tried) as it is all based on
credits and what students need to graduate.

1
July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 101



On top of that, assessment at large comprehensive high schools is different than in elementary or middle school. At
those levels you can run assessments by classes or teams so students don’t miss classes nor are other classes impacted
by students testing. That, again, is impossible at a high school. Students change classes every 45 minutes so no way to
test by a class.

This means 9th graders miss two days of classes and 10th graders miss three. Given we can only assess 250 kids at a
time on computers that means we have four days of 9th grade and six days of 10th testing. Given most teachers will
have 10%-30% of their classes out for ten days they can’t provide instruction during that time as students testing can’t
be held accountable for missing instruction/work/labs/tests. So for most classes testing means taking away two weeks
of instruction and killing time in the classroom waiting for all students to return to a normal classroom setting. How is
that reasonable?

My understanding is the federal government only requires assessment grades 3-8 as part of the Every Student Succeeds
Act. If thatis true do we continue to take away two weeks of instruction at high school to get data that is absolutely
useless, never discussed, and never used. PEAKS provides high schools with absolutely zero data of use.

If the ESSA does require high school students to take one assessment | strongly encourage Alaska to consider an
assessment that the least impactful and provides some useful data. This could be reverting to the SAT or even using the
PSAT 9 or PSAT. Half our students already take that by choice, it is one-day assessment that a full grade could take one
time, and thought it doesn’t give school direct data it does give students data to move forward in their post-secondary
planning.

I would be happy to discuss this with anyone in person to answer any further questions. My cell phone is 907-764-2567.

Dan Rufner

Counselor, Robert Service High School

Boys Soccer Coach

http://www.asdk12.org/staff/rufner_daniel/
http://www.servicesoccer.com<http://www.servicesoccer.com/>
907-742-8114

2
July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 102



Sypeck, Shawn (EED)

From: Fry, Eric V (EED)

Sent: Saturday, June 24, 2017 10:49 AM
To: Sypeck, Shawn (EED)

Subject: FW: Comments on Regs

Please distribute and make a copy for the file.

From: eric.fry@alaska.gov [eric.fry@alaska.gov]
Sent: Saturday, June 24, 2017 10:27 AM

To: Fry, Eric V (EED)

Subject: Comments on Regs

Name: Marnie Hartill

E-Mail: marniehartill@gmail.com

Telephone: 907-744-6641

Commenting on: 4 AAC 06.737

My Comments: | strongly support the change from 2 assessments at the High School level to just one. As a former high
school test coordinator, | found it extremely difficult to plan assessments of both grades 9 and 10 without causing
massive disruptions to the classroom lessons for over three weeks. The 10 grade requiring additional time for science
and the complications with multi-grade level courses create chaos for teachers and students who are unsure that their
regular lessons will go on without them or will halt altogether. Students at the high school level also take ELL
(ACCESS2.0) tests, STAMP (foreign language) tests, and AP tests. The students also have ACT or SAT tests for college
preparation. If we can reduce the number of tests in the spring, we could increase learning and decrease disruptions in
the school schedule.

1
July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 103



Sypeck, Shawn (EED)

From: Rufner_Daniel <Rufner_Daniel@asdk12.org>
Sent: Wednesday, June 21, 2017 8:29 AM

To: Sypeck, Shawn (EED)

Subject: Comment on proposed changes to assessment

First, | will acknowledge that | am not a principal or administrator so it sometimes seems our voices are not valued as
much in those positions.

However, i would argue that | more direct experience and knowledge of testing administration and data use than the
the majority of those in those positions:

| have been a counselor in the Anchorage School District for sixteen years.

| was a middle school counselor for ten years. For nine of those years | was both the department chair at my school as
well as the lead Middle School Counselor for ASD.

I have been a counselor at Service High for six years.

I have been the test coordinator (SBA, HSGQE, AMP, PEAKS, NAEP, PSAT....) for fourteen years, so | have more practical
knowledge of administration and data than most.

So | do feel | have exceptional experience in testing administration as well as using the data effectively to help students.

I will start by saying | am not completely opposed to testing. At the middle school level we did use assessment data
regularly to assist in placing students in support classes, make recommendations for high school placement in both
support and honors classes, used assessment data to both determine IEP and 504 qualifications as well as goals for
students on said plans, and to provide information to teachers to help them understand gaps in student learning.

So at some level | do think standardized assessment does serve a purpose beyond just meeting federal regulations.

However, in six years at the high school level | have not seen any example of how this data is used for student support.
High school is all about credits, not placement. If a student succeeds in math they go to the next level; if the don’t
succeed they try again or go to a remediation level. No data from assessments influences this. True, the initial
placement is based on partially on assessment data and teacher recommendation, but that stems from 8th grade.

in English there is no choice - they simply pass the class. The data on students arrives so late and is so non-specfiic that
there is nothing for teachers to build on to help struggling students.

The science portion is not used at all. The science department chair at our building for 15 years says neither our school
nor the district has ever had any discussions on the data as to what it means or how to use it. If the largest district in the
state completely ignores the science data what use could it possibly be?

Simply stated, there is no possible effective use for assessment data in high school (we have tried) as it is all based on
credits and what students need to graduate.

On top of that, assessment at large comprehensive high schools is different than in elementary or middle school. At
those levels you can run assessments by classes or teams so students don’t miss classes nor are other classes impacted
by students testing. That, again, is impossible at a high school. Students change classes every 45 minutes so no way to
test by a class.

This means 9th graders miss two days of classes and 10th graders miss three. Given we can only assess 250 kids at a
time on computers that means we have four days of 9th grade and six days of 10th testing. Given most teachers will
have 10%-30% of their classes out for ten days they can’t provide instruction during that time as students testing can’t
be held accountable for missing instruction/work/labs/tests. So for most classes testing means taking away two weeks
of instruction and killing time in the classroom waiting for all students to return to a normal classroom setting. How is
that reasonable?

1
July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 104



My understanding is the federal government only requires assessment grades 3-8 as part of the Every Student Succeeds
Act. If that is true do we continue to take away two weeks of instruction at high school to get data that is absolutely
useless, never discussed, and never used. PEAKS provides high schools with absolutely zero data of use.

If the ESSA does require high school students to take one assessment | strongly encourage Alaska to consider an
assessment that the least impactful and provides some useful data. This could be reverting to the SAT or even using the
PSAT 9 or PSAT. Half our students already take that by choice, it is one-day assessment that a full grade could take one
time, and thought it doesn’t give school direct data it does give students data to move forward in their post-secondary
planning.

I would be happy to discuss this with anyone in person to answer any further questions. My cell phone is 907-764-2567.

Dan Rufner

Counselor, Robert Service High School

Boys Soccer Coach

http://www.asdk12.org/staff/rufner_daniel/
http://www.servicesoccer.com<http://www.servicesoccer.com/>
907-742-8114

2
July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 105



SJpeck, Shawn (EED)

From: L@ <sealaska86@gmail.com>
Sent: Sunday, June 18, 2017 11:43 PM
To: Sypeck, Shawn (EED)

Subject: Standardized testing

I am in favor of only testing once in the high school level.
Thank you for the time to comment.

| live in Sitka, AK and have a daughter going into 9th grade.
Sent from my iPhone

1
July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 106



This page intentionally left blank.

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 107



Process to Propose Score Ranges for Assessment Achievement Levels
PEAKS

e Alaska Standards define what students should know and be able to do in content areas;
achievement level descriptors articulate how much they should know and be able to do at
each achievement level. A group of 35 Alaskan educators met in April to draft Achievement
Level Descriptors (ALDs) specific to each grade for English Language Arts (ELA) and
Mathematics.

e Sixty-eight Alaska educators gathered May 30-June 3 to determine the proposed range of
scores in each achievement level using the Achievement Level Descriptors set in April.
Educators used a process called “standard setting.” These accepted research-based
procedures have been used since the 1990’s and have been used previously in Alaska for the
statewide assessments. The process was led by facilitators from DRC. Staff members from
DEED were present to observe and to serve as resources.

e Panelists for Standard Setting were chosen from the pool of applicants based on their
experience with the new ELA and math standards, and based on their supervisor’s reference.
Panelists represented 22 school districts in the state. Educators represented a diversity of
schools by location and size.

e The panelists selected to participate were evenly divided with 34 panelists for ELA and 34
for math. Forty-eight participants were current classroom teachers and others were currently
serving in administrative or specialist roles. The average length of classroom experience was
15 years, with a maximum of 35 years of experience. 62 percent of the panelists had
experience with students with disabilities, and 66 percent had experience with English
learners. Most of the panelists had previous experience in participating in setting scores,
reviewing items, or drafting achievement level descriptors for the SBA and/or AMP
assessments.

e All 34 educators within a content area first worked through recommendations for grade 6,
then for grade 7. After setting initial recommendations, as a whole group, for grades 6 & 7,
the whole group split into lower and upper grades. The 17 educators with experience in
elementary grades 3-6 worked on recommendations for grade 5, then grade 4 and finally
grade 3. The 17 educators with experience in secondary grades 7-10 worked on
recommendations for grade 8, then grade 9 and finally grade 10.

e To begin, each educator reviewed the Achievement Level Descriptors for each grade and
identified the differences in levels for each standard. After the ALD review, the educators
took each test, thinking about what knowledge and skills were reflected in each question. The
educators then described what knowledge and skills a student would need to barely make it
into each achievement level using the Achievement Level Descriptors as a guide. The
educators were looking for borderline achievement because cut scores between achievement
levels are set at those borders. The panelists would recommend the cuts between the far

Process for Setting Scores on Assessments page 1
Alaska State Board of Education & Early Development July 14, 2017
July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 108



below/below proficient, below proficient/proficient, and proficient/advanced achievement
levels.

e The educators received an Ordered Item Booklet (OIB) presenting the test questions in order
of difficulty, from easiest to hardest, as determined by the number of students who answered
each question correctly. Educators then reviewed each test question in the OIB. The
educators discussed what made each question more difficult than the one before it, using
their professional judgment about the standards, the achievement level descriptors, and the
ability of the Alaska students in that grade level.

e Each educator individually determined if a borderline student scoring at the “just proficient”
level should be able to answer the question correctly. They repeated this process for the
borderline students in the below proficient and advanced achievement levels.

e After submitting their individual recommendations, each table group received feedback on
the scores in their group, including the median and the range of their recommendations. The
educators discussed their decisions in small groups. Educators referred to the standards and
the descriptions of achievement levels to inform their discussions. Following the discussion,
each educator could change his or her individual decision. Consensus or agreement was not
required.

e After two rounds of panelists’ recommendations and discussion, the educators were told what
percent of students from the PEAKS 2017 tests would fall into each achievement level in the
subject area and grade level of the test, based on the median of the panelists’
recommendations. The educators also were given information about the performance of
Alaskan students on the NAEP tests as well as the performance on the previous AMP
Assessment. The educators discussed their decisions in a large group. Similar to previous
rounds, following the discussion, each educator could move his or her recommendation
during the third round of the process.

e Following the third round, 24 educators (12 for math, 12 for ELA) from within the larger
group of panelists served on articulation panels to review all of the proposed cut scores. The
articulation panel reviewed the results to be sure that the cut scores represented a similar
level of rigor across all of the grade levels. These groups reviewed the items for several grade
levels and proposed several changes.

e An internal team of department staff reviewed the recommendations from the panels of
educators with Commissioner Johnson. After consideration, the department team made minor
technical adjustments to the recommended cut scores that fell within one standard error of
measurement from the panelists’ recommended scores. It was important to the department
team to honor the work and professional judgment of the Alaskan educators. It was also
important to reflect the reality of the performance of Alaska’s students on the new standards
and to recognize the performance of Alaska’s students compared to those of other states on
the National Assessment of Education Progress (NAEP).

Process for Setting Scores on Assessments page 2
Alaska State Board of Education & Early Development July 14, 2017
July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 109



Alaska Alternate Assessment

Students with the most significant cognitive disabilities (approximately 225 Alaska students)
take the Alaska Alternate Assessment in Science.

The Alaska - Dynamic Learning Maps (DLM) Essential Elements are specific statements of
knowledge and skills linked to the Alaska Standards for Science. The purpose of the Alaska —
DLM Essential Elements is to build a bridge from the content in the Alaska Standards to
academic expectations for students with the most significant cognitive disabilities.

Alaska administers the Dynamic Learning Maps assessment (DLM) as the Alaska Alternate
Assessment. DLM is administered by the Assessment and Achievement Institute (AAI) of
the University of Kansas.

Student performance is assessed on Essential Elements (EEs), challenging content standards
for the population. Each EE specifies an academic target, and for each EE in science there are
skills at three linkage levels (LLs). Each linkage level represents a juncture on the path
toward reaching the target for that EE and is based on the student’s level of communication
skills. There are two levels below the target and one at the target.

In DLM, students take testlets on essential elements of the standards. Testlets are chosen
based on the communication skills of the student which determines which linkage level to
use for assessment.

Results are reported in four achievement levels based on the numbers of linkage levels (LLs)
mastered. The number of LLs possible varies by grade and subject.

Achievement levels are:

1. The student demonstrates emerging understanding of and ability to apply content
knowledge and skills represented by the Essential Elements. (EM)

2. The student’s understanding of and ability to apply targeted content knowledge and
skills represented by the Essential Elements is approaching the target. (AP)

3. The student’s understanding of and ability to apply content knowledge and skills
represented by the Essential Elements is at target. (T)

4. The student demonstrates advanced understanding of and ability to apply targeted
content knowledge and skills represented by the Essential Elements. (ADV)

Process to determine cut scores for score ranges in each achievement level:

o Panelists from partner states that use the assessment participated from June 15-17, 2016
in the standard setting event in Kansas City, MO. The majority of panelists were
educators with experience in science and/or in teaching students with significant
cognitive disabilities.

0 The task of the panelists was to judge how many total linkage levels across the essential
elements a student should master to reach each achievement level.

0 The DLM Technical Advisory Committee reviewed methodology and cut scores and
state partners accepted the recommended scores.

Process for Setting Scores on Assessments page 3
Alaska State Board of Education & Early Development July 14, 2017

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 110



This page intentionally left blank.

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 111



PEAKS MATH

PRELIMINARY DATA BASED ON SCORE SETTING PROCESS

6.8% 6.1% 4.3% 6.1% 3.5% - i st

13.4%
1% 23.5%
34.1% 28.0% 23.1% o
39.1% 37.0% =70 33.3%

59.8%
57.3% 56.3%
0,
46.2% 0.7% 54.1%
a2.4%  44.6% 49.7%
24.7%
0,
11.6% 12.4% 15.5% 10.9% 14.3% 17.0% 18.0%
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
Advanced 6.8% 6.1% 4.3% 6.1% 3.5% 2.6% 2.2% 2.2%
Proficient 39.1% 37.0% 34.1% 33.3% 28.0% 23.1% 23.5% 13.4%
Below Proficient 42.4% 44.6% 46.2% 49.7% 54.1% 57.3% 56.3% 59.8%
Far Below Proficient 11.6% 12.4% 15.5% 10.9% 14.3% 17.0% 18.0% 24.7%
15.5%
31.5% 25.7% 25.7%
. (]
s o 43.1% 38.4% 39.4%
84.5%
68.5% 74.3% 74.3%
54.0% 56.9% 61.6% 60.6%
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
Proficient/Advanced 46.0% 43.1% 38.4% 39.4% 31.5% 25.7% 25.7% 15.5%
Below/Far Below Proficient  54.0% 56.9% 61.6% 60.6% 68.5% 74.3% 74.3% 84.5%

PEAKS Scores
Alaska State Board of Education & Early Development July 14, 2017
July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 112



120%
PRELIMINARY DATA BASED ON SCORE SETTING PROCESS
100%
Sl 8.2% 5.7% 7.2% 8.4% 8.4% 7.6% 5.3%
80% 27.7% 26.5% 26.7%
79 33.9% 29.7% =0
30.7% 38.1% 35.5% ?
60%
26.1% 28.9%
36.29
RETRY” . 31.8%
40% 34.7/7 25_1% 29.2%
20% 39.8% 39.1%
30.6% 30.0% 25.7% 29.5% 26.9% 30.1%
0%
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
Advanced 5.5% 8.2% 5.7% 7.2% 8.4% 8.4% 7.6% 5.3%
Proficient 27.7% 30.7% 33.9% 38.1% 35.5% 29.7% 26.5% 26.7%
Below Proficient 36.2% 31.1% 34.7% 25.1% 29.2% 31.8% 26.1% 28.9%
Far Below Proficient  30.6% 30.0% 25.7% 29.5% 26.9% 30.1% 39.8% 39.1%
33.2% 34.1% 32.0%
.19
38.9%  396% ... g3gy  381%
66.8% o 65.9% 68.0%
1.99
61.1% 60.4% B 56.2% 61.9%
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
Proficient/Advanced 33.2% 38.9% 39.6% 45.4% 43.8% 38.1% 34.1% 32.0%
Below/Far Below Proficient 66.8% 61.1% 60.4% 54.6% 56.2% 61.9% 65.9% 68.0%

PEAKS Scores

Alaska State Board of Education & Early Development

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 113

July 14, 2017



To:  Members of the State Board of July14, 2017
Education & Early Development

From: Michael Johnson, Commissioner Agenda Item: 3

¢ ISSUE

The board is being asked to adopt regulations related to assessments and assessment
achievement level scores on the Performance Evaluation for Alaska’s Schools
assessments in English language arts and math and for the Alternate Assessments in
science.

¢+ BACKGROUND

Currently, Alaska regulation 4 AAC 06.737 requires districts to administer standards-
based assessments in English language arts and mathematics annually to every student in
grades three through ten. The proposed change in the regulation would allow the
department the flexibility to test in only one grade in high school.

The new Performance Evaluation for Alaska’s Schools (PEAKS) assessments for English
language arts (ELA) and mathematics were administered in spring 2017.

New assessments require the development of new score ranges to determine student
performance in each achievement level. These score ranges are adopted in regulations.

On the PEAKS ELA and math assessments, students score on a scale placing them into
one of four achievement levels. Based on stakeholder feedback, the four achievement
levels proposed are: advanced, proficient, below proficient, and far below proficient.
Students who score at the proficient or advanced level are meeting the standards.

The *“cut points” that are proposed to set the ranges of scores for each PEAKS
achievement level were determined through a process of review called “standard setting.”
Alaskan educators participated in this process May 30-June 3 to determine recommended
cut points for the score ranges. The work is based on achievement level descriptors that
had been drafted by Alaskan educators in April 2017.

The proposed methodology used for setting the score ranges was reviewed and approved
by the Alaska Technical Advisory Committee in May.

The Alaska Alternate Assessment (AA) is taken by students with severe cognitive
disabilities. Alaska students participated in the Dynamic Learning Maps (DLM) science
assessment for the first time in 2017. The items on the science AA are linked to the
science standards.

On the Alaska Alternate Assessment in science, students’ scores place them into one of

four achievement categories: emerging, approaching target, at target, or advanced (from
low to high).

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 114



e Panelists from partner states that use the assessment participated in the standard setting
event in Kansas City, MO from June 15-17, 2016. The majority of panelists were
educators with experience in science and/or in teaching students with significant
cognitive disabilities. The DLM Technical Advisory Committee reviewed methodology
and cut scores and state partners accepted the recommended scores.

e Behind this cover memo are the proposed regulations.

e Margaret MacKinnon, Federal Programs Coordinator will be present to brief the board.

¢ OPTIONS

Adopt the proposed regulations.

Amend the regulations and adopt the amended regulations.
Seek more information.

¢ ADMINISTRATION’S RECOMMENDATION
Adopt the proposed regulations.

¢ SUGGESTED MOTION

After considering all public comment, | move the State Board of Education & Early
Development adopt proposed amendments to 4 AAC 06.737 Standards based test, 4 AAC 06.739
Assessment achievement level scores, and 4 AAC 06.775 Statewide assessment program for

students with disabilities.

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 115



Register , 2017 EDUCATION AND EARLY DEV.

Amended version for consideration of State Board of Education and Early Development at
meeting of July 14, 2017

4 AAC 06.737 is amended to read:

4 AAC 06.737. Standards-based test. The commissioner will select a standards-based
test to estimate the degree to which students have mastered the state's standards for English
language arts, mathematics, and science. For school years 2012 - 2014, the standards-based test
must test for mastery of the reading, writing, mathematics, and science standards described in the
department'’s publication Alaska Standards: Content and Performance Standards for Alaska
Students, as revised as of March 2006, and adopted by reference for purposes of administering a
standards-based test through school year 2013 - 2014. For school years after school year 2013 -
2014, the standards-based test must test for mastery of the English language arts, mathematics,
and science standards adopted by reference in 4 AAC 04.140(a). Except for students eligible for
an alternate assessment under 4 AAC 06.775(b), each district shall administer the standards-
based test in English language arts and mathematics annually to every student in grades three

through eight and in one or more years, as determined by the commissioner, in grades nine

through 12 [TEN], and each district shall administer the standards-based test in science annually
to every student in grades four, eight, and ten. (Eff. 3/3/2000, Register 153; am 9/11/2004,
Register 171; am 11/10/2005, Register 176; am 5/18/2006, Register 178; am 10/16/2012,
Register 204; am 12/26/2014, Register 212;am ___ /|, Register __ )

Authority:  AS 14.07.020 AS 14.07.060

4 AAC 06.739(b) is repealed and readopted to read:
(b) Achievement levels for English language arts and mathematics are advanced,

proficient, below proficient, or far below proficient. Students obtaining achievement levels of

1

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 116



Register

2017 EDUCATION AND EARLY DEV.

proficient or advanced meet standards. To obtain an achievement level of advanced, proficient,

below proficient, or far below proficient in English language arts and mathematics, a student

must obtain a score as set out in the following table:

Achievement
Level

Grade 3

Grade 4

Grade 5

Grade 6

Grade 7

Grade 8

Grade 9

Grade 10

English

language arts:

Advanced

542 - 600

538 - 600

548 - 600

551 - 600

546 - 600

541 - 600

535 - 600

535 - 600

English

language arts:

Proficient

500 - 541

500 - 537

500 - 547

500 - 550

500 - 545

500 - 540

500 - 534

500 - 534

English

language arts:

Below
Proficient

464 - 499

468 - 499

464 - 499

473 - 499

471 - 499

469 - 499

471 - 499

470 - 499

English

language arts:

Far Below
Proficient

400 - 463

400 - 467

400 - 463

400 - 472

400 - 470

400 - 468

400 - 470

400 - 469

Mathematics:
Advanced

554 - 600

559 - 600

568 - 600

554 - 600

559 - 600

562 - 600

570 - 600

568 - 600

Mathematics:
Proficient

500 - 553

500 - 558

500 - 567

500 - 553

500 - 558

500 - 561

500 - 569

500 - 567

Mathematics:
Below
Proficient

458 - 499

460 - 499

462 - 499

454 - 499

451 - 499

448 - 499

450 - 499

445 - 499

Mathematics:

Far Below
Proficient

400 - 457

400 - 459

400 - 461

400 - 453

400 - 450

400 - 447

400 - 449

400 - 444

2

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 117




Register , 2017 EDUCATION AND EARLY DEV.

(Eff. 3/16/2001, Register 157; am 11/23/2003, Register 168; am 9/4/2005, Register 175; am
5/18/2006, Register 178; am 9/3/2006, Register 179; am 9/27/2008, Register 187; am
|| Register )

Authority:  AS 14.03.015 AS 14.07.030 AS 14.07.060

AS 14.07.020

The introductory language of 4 AAC 06.775(b) is amended to read:

(b) The commissioner shall select an alternate assessment for use in this state, to be
known as the Alaska Alternate Assessment, for assessment of students with significant cognitive
disabilities who are not able to complete either regular curricular offerings or substitute courses
under 4 AAC 06.078 that would lead to a diploma. A student's eligibility for the Alaska
Alternate Assessment shall be established in the student's IEP in accordance with the criteria in
the Participation Guidelines for Alaska Students in State Assessments, adopted by reference in
(a) of this section. Each district shall administer the Alaska Alternate Assessment to eligible
students whenever it administers the state assessments described in 4 AAC 06.710. Achievement

levels for the English language arts, [AND] mathematics,and science Alaska Alternate

Assessment are advanced, at target, approaching target, or emerging. Students obtaining an
achievement level of advanced or at target meet standards. [ACHIEVEMENT LEVELS FOR
THE SCIENCE ALASKA ALTERNATE ASSESSMENT ARE ADVANCED, PROFICIENT,
BELOW PROFICIENT, OR FAR BELOW PROFICIENT. STUDENTS OBTAINING AN
ACHIEVEMENT LEVEL OF ADVANCED OR PROFICIENT MEET STANDARDS.] To

obtain an achievement level in

3

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 118



Register , 2017 EDUCATION AND EARLY DEV.

4 AAC 06.775(b)(2) is repealed and readopted to read:
(2) science on the Alaska Alternate Assessment, a student must obtain a score as

set out in the following table:

Achievement Grade 4 |Grade 8 |Grade 10

Level
Science: 21 or 23 or 23 or
Advanced above above above

Science: At 15-20 16-22 16-22

Target

Science: 9-14 10-15 8-15
Approaching

Target

Science: 8 or 9or 7 or
Emerging below |below |below

(Eff. 12/19/2002, Register 164; am 9/17/2004, Register 171; am 11/10/2005, Register 176; am
10/18/2007, Register 184; am 11/10/2007, Register 184; am 9/27/2008, Register 187; am
6/11/2010, Register 194; am 10/3/2011, Register 200; am 4/20/2012, Register 202; am
12/26/2014, Register 212; am 3/4/2015, Register 213; am 5/15/2015, Register 214; am

| | Register )

Authority:  AS 14.03.075 AS 14.07.060 AS 14.07.165

AS 14.07.020

4

July 14, 2017 Board Packet, Page 119



	00 - Agenda (Audio-conference)
	01 - Every Student Succeeds Act Cover Memo
	1.1 - ESSA 2nd Draft Application
	02 - Cover Memo Assessment Scores
	2.1 - Proposed Regulation 4 AAC 06.737 Assessment Scores
	2.3 - Public Comment
	2.5 - Process to Propose Scores for PEAKS Assessments
	2.7 - PEAKS Impact Data
	03 - Cover Memo Assessment Scores (Business Meeting)
	3.1 - Proposed Regulation 4 AAC 06.737 Assessment Scores



